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Financial Highlights

Our resilient and innovative approach
has delivered strong profit growth,
enabled the successful integration

of acquisitions and a continued
delivery of organic growth despite
disruption due to COVID-189.

Nots

SNUNCE Fineanes

The Group reports certein Altermative Perdd

additional Information for the undarstanding 6
measures are usad to provide the users of the a 4
time. Full definitions and explanations of these mea 3
ara provided in pages 116-117.
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At a Glance

What we do

Kni g hts h as g rown t o) Knights provides a full service

offering to corporate clients

becomed leding legql as well as synergistic services

to high net worth individuals,

and professional services who are typically clients

of the Group’s corporate

bUSiness outSide London, and commercial services.
‘with over 1,000 fee earners becn sranginenca furiher
operating from 16 office through the recruiiment

of high-calibre talent and

ocqtions ACross the UK. acquisitions during the year.

. Our team’s deep expertise, sector insight and  Our modern way of working ensures
-understanding of our clients’ needs underpin  we always deliver on our clients’

our reputation as a trusted adviser. requirements in the most efficient
. way possible, delivering value to them
without carrying unnecessary cost.

\
i
i

Our high-quality advice enables our clients

to make informed strategic decisions to grow
_ _ _their businesses and navigate any challenges. _This allows our professional advisors to -

they may face. thrive on what they do best: advising quality
clients on interesting and exciting wark while
Knights' operational team focus on the
day-to-day running of the business.

Our unigue culture and early adoplion

of a corporate structure underpins our

‘one team’ approach and is a key driver of
our competitive advantage. It ensures our
professionals are always working in the best
interests of our clients and the success of
the Group as a whole, rather than focusing
on their own individual performance.

A full suite of services strengthened by sector specialisms and non-legal services (% of total revénues)

Real Estate Sector specialisms
34.8% -

- (o) P Agriculture and the food supply chaln
Dispute Resolution W Aviation
2 6 70/ B Consumer and retail

] (o] ® Energy, waste and natural resources
Corporate ® Financial and professional services
] 5 6 0/ P Gambling and licensing

of total revenues - (o] ® Healthcare i
Employment ® Housing and regeneration :
6 4% B Industrials, transport and support services
[ ]

® Property management and development
Private Client

16.5%

» Technology, medla and telecommunications
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Who we work with Where we operate

f,We build longstanding We are focused on the key regional markets in the
-‘relationships with a range UK outside London, currently operating from 16 office

‘of clients from international locations strategically located where we possess strong

: corporations through to small local market knowledge and networks.

‘and medium enterprises. :

We have the scale to flexibly deliver '
_ high-calibre expertise across a range
- of services whilst retaining our trusted
" “partner approach, which ensures

! we remain aligned with our clients’
2. priorities and requirements.

-+ Our operatichal setup in regional locations
. " gutside London means that we also

.. bring strong local market knowledge

. '.j -and networks, offering quality advice

- - from a competitive cost base.

We are proud to work with a highly : g;:z:;:ggz:

. ‘diversified client base of over 13,000 D Chester
businesses in addition to our private B Crawley
clients, with no one client accounting ® Exeter
for more than 3% of revenue. ® Leeds

- B Leicéster
B Maidstone
P Manchester
P Nottingham
B Oxford

® Sheffield

B Stoke

® Weybridge
B Wilmslow
» York

Service Line Service

All contentious and non-contenlious _ - Asset management - Mines & minerals - Retail

matters across the real estate - Business parks - Planning -Telecommunications
lifecycle from town planning - Construction - Plot sales - Volume

to asset management, - Development - Propenty litigation  conveyancing

Real Estate

- Arbitration - Restructuring
Dispute Resolving disputes across - Debt recovery and insolvency
Resolution the full spectrum of services. - Litigation

- Mediation

- Banking - Intalleotual proparty - Tax and

- Commetcial - Mergers, financial services
- Data protection ~~~ acquisitions and o
- Immigration. disposals_

Commercial and practical advice
Corporate . on all operational activities acrass ..
a highly diversified client base.

“ Providing strategic HR advice - Litigation/Tribunals - Strategic projects
on arange of contentious and - Management - Strategic
non-contentious iaaues across ‘ training . auditsfreports

Employment
M : avariety-of-sectors: —Reorganisation——-TUPE-

- Complex famlly ~ -Tax and trusts
matters - Wills

- Conveyancing

- Landed estates

Supparting the full range of needs
Private Client for high net worth individuals and
their families.
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A strong track record in a highly
attractive market

Premium
quality from
a competitive
—cost-base—.

Experienced :
operator « 0
delivering “

first-class

returns
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Profitable
growth

Highly cash _
generative

Robust
platform

Nole
* Excluding acqulsitions.




__ Revenue

103.2m

{2020 £74.3m)

Underlying profit before tax™

“$35.3%

H2 organic revenue growth
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The Group has delivered 39%
revenue growth to £103.2m

(2020: £74.3m), including a £2.1m
contribution from the acquisitions
made during the year and £28.4m
from the full year impact of
acquisitions made in the prior year,
which were in line with our ongoing
commitment to broadening
Knights’ geographical reach and
scale. Following the initial impact
of the pandemic in the first half,
the Group returned to organic
growth in the second half of the
year. This reflected the strength
and agility of our business, which
is highly diversified by client,
sector and service, as well as our
continued focus on recruiting high
calibre senior fee earners.

Our early and prudent actions to manage
costs demonstrated the benefit of the Group’s
corporate structure and abllity to trade through
an uncertaln economic environment, with our
underlying PBT' margin Improving to 21.8%

in the second half, leading to underlying profit
before tax? of £18.4m (2020: £13.6m) and a
27.7% Increase in underlying EPS® to 18.30p
(2020: 14.33p).

Thesa results were achleved without the Group
benefitting from the Government's COVID-19
related support schemas, such as the Job
Retention Scheme, and despite the initfal .
distuption from COVID-18 during the first half,
which saw the Group’s ability to transact on
behalf of its clients impacted due to a slower
transition to working from home amongst
counterpart law firms. Importantly, Knights’
position as a modernised and well-invested
legal services business operating on a single
technology platform meant that the team was
able to transition seamlessly to working from
home with strong levels of productivity. Our
resilience also allowed us to execute carefully
selected acquisitions and continue to make
operational Improvements across the business,
On behalf of our Board, | would like to thank
our people for their tireless commitment
throughout a year In which we have worked
together more closely than ever before, desplte
the majority of the time being spent apart.

Confidence In our strategy
reinforced

Unlike many businesses which struggled at the
onset of the pandemic, Knights has continued
to execute on its vision to become the leading
legal and professional services business outside
London. Our confidence In the Group's strategy
and its strang financial position enabled us to
continue to build the business both organically,
with the Group continuing to attract high quality
senior candidates across the country, and
through acquisition.

Corpordle Governance

Our momentum in recruitment has
demonstrated that, with Its Increased scale
and breadth, Knights has reached the critical
mass to be a highly attractlve prospect to top
talent in the regions, with the majority of new
candidates coming from other top 50 law firms.
We also believe that the pandemic has only
served to make Knights more attractive as an
employer, as it has prompted people to seek to
work closer to home. As a result of hiring high
calibre peaple, we have onboarded larger and
higher quality client followings, which smaller
reglonat Independent law firms would not be
able to adequately support due to their imited
scale and range of services.

Integration of the three acquisitions completed
at the end of the previous financial year

was completed successfully and ahead of
schedule In the first half, bringing further scale
to the Group and increasing our confidence

in our ability to rapidly integrate simultaneous
acquisitions during a period of working
remotely, The Group’s four acquisitions in the
second half provided entry In to the South
West and an expanded presence In Yorkshire
and the South East, and an extension of its
housing services offering, with COVID-19 only
accentuating the pipeline of quality acqulsition
opportunities available.

Board and ESG

Despite a full year of working remotely, our
executlve team has shown great commitment
to ensuring the Group's highly colleglate culture
remalns as strong as ever and to ehsuring

the wellbeing of our people, There has been

a heavy focus ch engaging with, motivating,
nurturing, and developing our existing talent,
and our ‘one team’ approach has ensured new
joiners feel welcomed and connected to the
broader Knights community.

Volunteering in local communities has played
a key role during the pandemic, and | am
particularly proud of our colleagues that have
supported local organlisations in offering their
assistance for four hours of work time per
month through our flagship 4 Our Community
programme. We were also pleased to
announce our new partnership with mental
health charity Mind during the year and look
forward to bringing our teams together to raise
our target of £20,000 over the next two years.

Wae also look forward to welcoming colleagues
back to our offices as part of the Group's
return in September which, whilst allowing

our people to retain the flexibility to work .
from home productively some of the time,

will enable greater collaboration and ensure
less experienced colleagues feel supparted
and are learning from other team members

in an office environment.

Gilllan Davies was appointed as Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director and
Chair of the Audit Committee with effect
from 17 March 2021. She brings significant
experience working in senor roles at high
growth businesses, which will be of great

Financial Staternents

value to the Group as we continue to execute
on our strategy, Glilian’s appolntment also
means the Group’s Board has greater gender
dlversity with an equal weighting of men

and women. The appointment follows Steve
Dolton’s decision to step down from the Board
as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director,
to pursue other opportunities.

In addition, we continue to operate and
govern the Group In line with the key
principles of the QCA Cade, as set out
In the governance section.

A more detailed overview of the Board's
approach to ESG is provided on pages 22-29.

Dividend

Given the cost saving measures taken by the
Group during the year, the Board has decided
that no final dividend is declared for the year
ended 30 April 2021. It Is the Board’s intentlon
to resume paying dividends In respact of the
year ending 30 April 2022 in accardance with
the previous dividend policy of paying out 20%
of profit after tax.

Summadry and
medium-term outlook

Despite a year of macroeconomic uncertainty,
our resilient, well-invested, diversified and cash
generative business, and highly committed
management team, have allowed us to make
significant progress in executing our vision

to become the leading legal and professional
services business outside London. While we
are emerging stronger, the impact of COVID-18
has accentuated the near-term challenges for
many firms across the traditional legal services
industry, making Knights’ unique proposition
ever more relevant to talented lawyers,
acquisition candidates and clients alike.

Note

1 See Financlal Review on pages 34-43,
2 See Financial Review on pages 34-43.
3 See Flnanclal Revlew on pages 34-43.
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Strategic Report

The Group’s rapid return

to delivering strong levels of
organic growth in the second
half, following the disruption

in the first half, is testament to
the momentum in the business.

With the critical mass that the Group has

now achieved, It Is Increasingly attracting high
callbre talent with strong client followings,
good quality clients who recognise the value
of our premium setvice, and legal service flrms
that would like to be part of a larger, diversified,
farward thinking group. The four acquisitions
cceurring In the period expanded our footprint
into Sheffield and the South West, and
strengthened our presence in the South East
which we expect to benefit from a growing
pool of talented lawyers that no longer wish

to commute into Lendon.

Our abliity to react quickly to a changing
external environment at the onset of the
pandemic demonstrated the benefit of

our corporate structure. Early and prudent
actions, supported by our well invested IT
infrastructure, positioned the Group to trade
well through all of the lackdown periods, with
our diversifled, full service offering proving
resillent, our staff moving seamiessly to
working from home, and the successful
remote Integration of prior acquisitions,
which were completed ahead of schedule.

The safety and wellbeing of our people
remained the Group’s priority, with all staff
waorking from home continually throughout the
COVID-19 pandemic since 13 March 2020,
ahead of the UK government lockdown. | am
particularly proud of the continued high levels
of outstanding service delivered by our people
as well as the efforts of the wider executive
team in ensuring colleagues were kept
informed and fett part of our ‘one team’ cuiture
despite being away from a traditional office
environment. We look forward to seelng both
familiar and new faces In the coming months
as part of our return to more office-based,
hybrid working in September.

Client satisfaction

Net Promoter Score

Coipmale Govemnunce

A year of significant progress

The increased scale and geographical presence
achlevad in recent years has delivered a step
change in the Group's credibility as a leading
legal and professional services business which,
In turn, Is attracting more high quality talent,
clients and acquisition opportunities.

At a time when the pandemic has only served
to highlight the challenges and uncertalnties
inherent in the traditional partnership model

to some partners, Knights has earned a
reputation as a well-positioned, growing
business with an attractive model. As a result,
we have continued our momentum in recruiting
high calibre talent from other top 50 law

firms and well-reputed professional services
firms, typically with strong client followings.
importantly, we have also continued to invest
in the training, development and wellbeing

of our existing talent, and in modern offlces

in prime locatlons from which to work, helping
us to retain the high quality people that will
enabla the business to grow.

The quality of our people and Knights'
premium full service cllent offering has allowed
us to continue to both win new clients and
bulld on our already strong relationships

with existing clients. The level of trust and
reputation ascribed to Knights’ services in the
reglons has validated our market position and
brought the canfidence to our fee earners to
charge clients appropriately for the premium
service we provide. Alongside greater focus
from our growing pool of talented lawyers

on strengthening our client relationships,

our expanded Client Services team and

Sales Director are also developing a greater
understanding of our client base with a view
to identifying opportunities to expand the
services Knights can offer its clients. Whilst at
an early stage, this greater focus on data will
aid our drive to deliver continued strong levels
of organic growth, allowing us to leverage our
Investment In our strong operational backbone.

Our scale has enabled us to s(Jpport the
onboarding of larger, high-quality clients,

Finanelal Slaletnents

with our ‘one-team’, service-driven culture
encouraging greater collaboration across

a growing sulite of services. During the year
we have achieved a number of significant
arganic client wins across the Group Including
easyJet, Papa John’s, British Alrways and
Willlam Hill.

In addition, we are widening our offering where
we believe we can strengthen our posltion as
key trusted advisors to our clients and expand
the existing relationshlps across our corporate
teams. For instance, we have built a significant
dedicated team of specialist tax advisers,
combining lawyers and accountants, which
we are also replicating in debt advisory, where
we baelisve thers Is a unique opportunity for
Knights to offer a halistic accounting and legal
service to corporates.

To support the Group's ongoing growth, we
contlnue to invest in the business, We have
agreed atiractive lease arrangements in
Birmingham, Leeds and Nottingham, with high
quality office space remaining an Important
element of supporting Knights' collaborative
culture, whiist hybrid working is expected

to provide us with ¢.20% greater capacity.
We continue to enhance our technology
platform, launching our HR hub In the first
half to complete our scalable operational
platform, and remain focussed on continually
developing tools to better support the
business, its clients and acquisition integration,
We have also appointed two additional Client
Service Directars, taking their total number

In the Group to eight. The Client Service
Directors play an essential role in delivering
operational performance across the business,
Working closely with the executive Board they
have overall responsibility for the financial
performance of their offices and deliveting
organic growth In line with the Group's key
oblectives and culture. They also support the
Group's acquisition strategy by taking the lead
on the Integration and management of each
new business into the Group before, during
and after the acquisition.
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

Building on our acquisition
track record

The successful integration, ahead of schedule,
of the Fraser Brown, Shulmans and ASB
acquisitions which were announced in
February and March 2020 during a period

of transitioning to home working, only

served to increase our confldence in our
ability to execute on our attractive pipeline

of acquisttions.

Building on our track record of acquiring high
quality businesses with a strong cuitural fit, we
have continued to execute on our strategy to
acquire businesses that provide entry Into a
key market, providing a platform for organic
growth in the reglon, or that can be bolted

on to bulld scale in our existing locations.

Entry into Exeter, akey city
in the large South West legal
services market

Accordingly, on 14 Dacember 2020 we
completed the acquisition of OTB Eveling LLF,
providing an entry into the South West and the
city of Exeter, a key city in one of the largest
regional markats for legal services (Bureau van
Dijk, Mintel UK Legal Services Report 2021).

Founded In 2012, OTB Eveling further extends
Knights' existing national presence with a full
offering including corporate, employment,
dispute resolution and real estate services.

Since welcoming its 17 fee earnerstothe ——- .-

Group, Knights' scale and natlonal reputation
has already attracted quality recruits across
the region. Now fully integrated {nto the
Group, the business continues to progress
well, with performance to date In line with

- our expectations. T

Strengthened presence in the
South East provides a strong
platform for recruitment

On 16 April 2021 we complated the acquisition
of Mundays LLP, an independent commercial
_law firm based in Surrey. Established over
sixty years ago in Weybridge, Mundays’
strong corporate, real estate and private client
services offering further strengthens Knights'
existing presence in the South East, achieved
through the acquisition of Crawley and
Maidstone based ASB, in April 2020.

With its strong cultural fit evident from meeting’
a conslderable number of the team before
acquisition, its 34 fee earners and systems
have integrated well, delivering initial synergy
savings In line with expectzations, The pericd
of home working during lockdowns has also
shown eatly signs of some talented lawyers
being drawn to working in towns surrounding
London instead of commuting, providing
invigorated momentum to an already strong
recruitment pipeline for talent on the outskirts
of London.

10

On 23 April 2021 the Group completed the
small acquisition of Housing Law Services,
a niche housing team based in the South
East, to complement Knights' existing
housing services offering.

Joining up our presence
in Yorkshire with entry
into Sheffield

Having grown our position In Yorkshire
significantly, we were delighted to annaunce
the acquisition of Keeblas at the year end.
Established over a century ago, its fuli service
offering and leading position in both corporate
and real estate law provides an entry into

the Important city of Sheffield and the wider
South Yorkshire area, complementing Knights’
existing presence in Nottingham and Leeds.

The acquisition added 138 fee earners to
Knights, bringing critical mass In an important
market. The business has proved to be an
exceptionat cultural fit for Knights and early
integration Is encouraging.

Current trading and outlook

The well-balanced and highly diversified
business we have built over a number

of years proved to be resilient during

a difficult economic period and, having
further strengthened our depth and
breadth, the Group’s enhanced reputation
is attracting high quality talent, clients
_and acquisition candidates.

initial stages of the pandemic, our momentum
continued to build through the second half of
the year, allowing us to return to strong levels
of organic growth in the last two months of the
trading peried. This momentum has continued
with an increasing quantum and quality of
new instructions across the business as we
entered FY22, supported by a growing team
of motivated and committed people across
the Group.

We continue to see a high level of senlor

fee earner recruitment and acquisition
opportunities, providing a strong pipeline

of candidates from which to select. Having
effectively executed several acquisitions and
onboarded new joiners despite a period

of home working, we look forward to
bullding on this track record as we exit

the latest fockdown.

In a challenging year for many businesses
across the UK, the Board’s confidence in

the Group’s strategy has been reinforced.

We expect that COVID-19 will only accentuate
the recruitment and acquisition opportunities
for our resilient, well-invested, divarsified

- and cash generative business In the highly

fragmented and often under-invested market
for legal services outside London.

Having emerged in a stronger position from the
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Market Opportunity
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The UK legal services market remained resilient
despite the challenging operating environment
and a fragmented landscape.

A fragmented market ripe for disruption

Despite the challenging operating
environment, the legal services
market has remained resilient
during the last 12 months.
Nonetheless, pockets of the
wider legal sector have reported
difficulties, resulting in insolvency,
acquisition or reduced turnover.

Strong market drivers

The legal services market in the UK Is largely
polarised between the major law firms, who
operate from London and internationally, and
are typically focused on the largest UK and
international clients and deals, high street law
firms focused on consumers, and small to
medium sized B2B focused independent law
firms, who are often subscale and operate out
of a single office regianally, serving businesses
typically headquartered outside London.

This latter market is our focus.

The majority of our direct competitors operate
under the traditional partnership model, rather
than operating as a corporate business with

a clear division between management and fee
earners. In our addressable market, there are
¢.175 firms operating outside London with
typical annual revenues of £2m-£60m.

The unprecedented impact of the
pandemic has demonstrated the
benefit of a corporate structure

in which the managers can act
with agility to adapt according to
market conditions, leaving lawyers
to focus on delivering a ‘business
as usual’ service to clients.

We are well positidned to benefit

In contrast, Managing Partners operating
under the traditional partnership modei have
experienced the additional cost of carrying
high ratios of support staff, a pressure to
malntaln profit per equity partner levels, under
investment in technology to support remote
working, lower utilisation across staff bands
and the retirement of senlor personnel resulting
in investment withdrawals.

COVID-19 Is only exacerbating these structural
market drivers and Is likely to accelerate
consolidation In the industry, as firms and
individuals increasingly look for change.

The size and scale of the regional
market opportunity, the agility

to respond to changing market
drivers and corporatised model
provides Knights with an
opportunity to continue to

grow its market share.

We are well placed to take advantage of the
current market disruption due to our strong
balance shest, scalable operating platform
and agllity to respond to changing market
conditions. Our focused acquisition strategy
has resulted in the acquisition of three of the
independent players during the period, while
the business has contihued to attract talented
professlonals from top 50 firms, In-house
positions and speclalists in niche markets
which, In turn, has secured clients who

are seeking a premium service from a
reglonal business.

12
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Business Modell

Fuelled by our passion for creating the leading legal and professional
services business outside London, our business model enables us to
build value by executing our four strategic pillars:

ultur
Clients c al

Seeking
a premium service
for optimum value

Professional Advisors Cultural Operational Financial
Seekmg P An empowering cuiture B Corporate structure B Cash and capital
opportunltles to - Unleashing fee earners’ - Separate and strong - Highly cash generative
i talent through our leadership team, with model, supporting
i QAaree .
gl’OW thelr C,‘F.lr_er collaborative and triendly, broad experience beyond investment in people,
na SUppOI’tIVG target free environment. the legal sector. technology and
L Infrastructure,
environment - ‘One team’ culture, where - Enabling fee earners to nirasiriciure
resources flow quickly to focus entirely on what they - Strong balance sheet,
create the right team for do best, senvicing clients. alded by industry
the client. - Commercial and leading working capital
; . managemant.
- Entrepreneurial, can-do entrepreneurial approach Is
mindset, where fee earners embedded in our culture. - Support of the UK’s
can be themselves. strongest quality
Law Firms growth funds.
. Trusted advisors to clients Efficient and Acquisition track record
Seekmg scalable platform d
t . bl - Commerclal, business - |dentifying the right
a sustainanie outcome mindset, - Single technology platform businesses, drivan by
p[atform to grow underpinned with expertise delivers efficiency, speed a strong cultural and
. . and local knowledge. of service, and makes strategic fit.
their business collaboration easy.

Principles

- A premium service delivery
with responsiveness being
a key focus.

- Flowing work to the
right expert or level of

- Integration is 'business
as usual’, led by an
experienced and

, ) experience, to optimise dedicated team.
- Long-term partnering with valuo for ofianto.
clients that want a premium - Rapidly unlocking existing
service and respect for - Rapidly assembling teams and creating new value
those that deliver it. to deliver on short lead sustainably.

times, complex matters or
volume needs of cllents.

888 One team Quiality

Commercial
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Strategic Scale the @SEJ Exploit Data

QOperation and Technology

Delivering value for clients Clients

P We deliver results that matter to our clients as we are led by o
their goals, and use our commercial mindset, market insight +7 5 4 5 +l o /o
NPS

and legal expertise, to deliver optimal business solutions. i
No. of FTSE Increase of existing
P We are trusted advisors, as a result of our understanding 250 clients clients using more

of our cllents, thelr experisnce of our advice, and our speed than one service
of responsiveness.

® We siructure our resources to deliver the best solutlon,
underpinned by a high~quality service, enabled by our
one team approach and low overheads.

Accelerating career ambitions Employees
B We provide an environment that attracts energetic; o) o)
commercially minded innovative professionals. 9 5 A + 3 9 67 /o
® Our fast growing business, one team approach and drive Retention* ENPS Jained from
to change the delivery of professional services, provides .- - - - . -~ - top 50 law firns

outstanding opportunities to flourish.

® Fee earners focus on what they do best and love, deliveting
a premium service to clients, without the time and emotional
drains of targets, politics and management meetings.

Unlocking value from acquisitions Shareholders

D We carefully select strategic acquisitions that have a strong o o
cultural fit, with people who share our belief that there is a 1 8 3 0 p 5 6 4 /o 24 5 /o
) ® . ]
TSR

better way to deliver professional services.

P We quickly release value from cost synergies by implementing Underlying earnings 3 year underlying

Knights' operating model. per share profit CAGR
B Woe accelerate growth by bringing scale, operational

infrastructure and new expertise to acquired teams, enabling

them to better serve their existing clients, win new ones, and Communities

expand their reach, '
4 87% 9%

(o] o)

Working hours a Less paper used Energy reduction
month per employee Vs peer group (builldings, data
avallable to dedicate centres and lighting)
to thelr community

Q Pioneer >+< Agile A Ambitious
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Strategic Progress

Building leadership in key regions

A presence in two city centres before the acquisition of a leading independent  Organic growth in Yorkshire has seen us
in the Yorkshire region boosts firm Shulmans* based i1n Leeds in April ref;:rult 33 (fjee earnerfj z;cross the combined
. . 2020, adding a further 130 fee eamers. offices and presented further acquisition
recru_'t_"!ent and prov.l ‘?es new The combination of the two offices and our opportunities resulting in the announcement
acquisition opportunities. landmark office in Leeds (The MaJestic) has on 30 April 2021 of our acquisition of Keebles
Knights successfully entered the legal market added momentum to recruitment effortsin LR, an independent law firm primarily based
in Yorkshire In 2020 through a combination both locations, with new hires attracted to in Sheffield with additional offices in Leeds
of organic growth and an acquisition. the combination of scale, flexibility of office and Doncaster. The addition of Keebles grows
location and access to city relationships our geographic presence and resource across
The York offica was opened organically In through a presence across the reglon, Yorkshlre to over 250 fee earners,

January 2020 and grew to 20 fee eamers

Strengthening our core services

® A strong and expanding team, with new practices established in the South West and South East.

® Added to our expertise In housing and regeneration with the acquisition of housing law services,
a niche law firm in the South East, providing dedicated legal advice and practical support to registered

gztaa‘te providers of social housing, local authorities and arm’s length management organisations, whilst also

building critical mass in our volume remortgage and conveyancing team.

P Added relationships with Papa John's and Schuh to our already impressive client portfolio
of retall clients which includes Dunelm and The White Company.

P Expanded the depth and breadth of our dispute resolution offering with new speclalisms including

Disput gambling and licensing through the recruitment of a speclalist team from a top 50 Jaw firm.
ispute
Resolution P Delivered property litiqation services to a number of notable FTSE 100 retall cliants.

®» Newly Instructed by William Hill Group to support with a range of litigation disputes.

P Our strong natlonal team now Includes a sizeable presence in the Midlands, Yorkshire, South East
and North West.

B Strengthened our non-legal service offering with a dedicated team of specialist tax advisors,
Corporate combining lawyers and accountants.

P Appointed to easyJet's legal panel for commerclal matters, supported Stirling Lloyd with its
£73m buyout by US listed company GCP Applied Technologles, and represented the Logson
Group in the majority stake sale of the £188m turnover packaging manufacturer to W&R Barnett.

® Expanded the team to over 50 fee eamaers, with a team of new professionals jolning us in the
South East as part of recent acquilsitions.

P Advising on a number of strategic HR projects following the COVID-18 pandemic whilst supporting
clients specifically with volume settlement agreements at short notice, by using robotics to accelerate
service delivery and provide leading service quality.

B Developed new relationships with British Airways, Malmaison/Hotel Du Vin and Fox’s Biscuits
in addition to providing prolect based support to easyJet as part of the Group’s panel.

® A specilalist team that continues to deliver high-quality services to high net worth individuals
and thelr families.

® Advised landed estates clients throughout the UK.

® Further enhanced our team to over 180 professlonals (2020: 149).

' Source; The Lawyer UK Top 201, 2019.
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Strategy in Action

Grow Organically

Grow
Organically

Meeting more of our
clients’needs __ _ .. ____ .

Broadening our relationships with clients
to deliver more than one service is a

key opportunity in the industry to diive
continued organic growth. Our model
means we are well positioned to address
a greater share of our clients need, and

existing clients using more than one service
during the financial year, driven by the high
trust of our clients, and the high internal
trust between colleagues to facilitate
introductions. The quality of our people and

We have continued to deliver

strong organic growth despite a
challenging market environment.

Enhancing our

15 of the professional advisors at

Knights pravide non-fegal services to
poth existing and new clients across the
business. Combining lawyers with other
professional advisors provides clients with
a complementary service offering which

___currently_includes Town.Planning. and

Tax. This year, we have built a significant
dedicated team of specialist tax advisors,
combining lawyers and accountants, which
we are also replicating in debt advisory,
where we believe there is a unique

Knights’ premium full.senvice client-offering—|-—opportunity-for-Knights-te-offer-a-holistic

has allowed us ta continue to both win
new clients and build an our already
strong relationships with existing clients.

Ge

Knights’ culture of sharing
clients has connected me
with exciting projects from
high-quality clients
across the business.

| was attracted to Knights by the scale of

the wider team, which hag meantthat my

“clients have access to the right level of
expertise and strong relationships with my
colleagues. Working collaboratively, without
geography or hierarchy being a barriet, is

accounting and legal service to corporates.
We have also recruited talent in other niche
areas, including VAT and Capital Markets.

A

Knights offered me

a platform to deliver
specialist tax services
to a high-quality
clientbaseina
commercial, friendly

_oandsupportiveway.

After many years of working both in the big
four and also private equity, | was looking
for a collaborative cuiture with a focus on
delivering a premium client service where

Whilst COVID-19 had a significant impact
predominantly in the first haif of the year,
our underlying drivers of organic growth
remained healthy (attract top talent,
dellver more services to existing clients,
grow our talent), with each performing

in line or ahead of previous fiscal years.

The key ways In which we delivered on
our organic strategy this year were by:

Building out our specialisms:

__|—_non=legal services. _ . — - - .| —Gambling and Licensing— - ~|--

We continue to expand the depth and
breadth of our legal service offering,
including with new specialisms. This

year, we have expanded our existing
specialism of Gambling and Licensing
through the recruitment of 2 new Partners
and.a.supporting-team.-Our-extended
team currently supports a number of the
FTSE250 listed Gambling and Licensing
organisations in the UK.

Ge

Having previously worked
in-house for a well-known
gambling operator, as well
as spending many years
acting on behailf of several
major bookmakers, | was
looking for something
more commercially.driven
than a traditional law firm.

Joining Knights has presented me with __

“a really exciting oppo uniryfo wark with
a high-quality team to huild a practice
from an embryonic stage. Knights’ trust
in the team has allowed us to build on our
experience in this niche area to develop

refreshing and is testament to A cuiture VI LR SETVY
wheré people and clients come first.” —we gorto'market togetheranddothe a service which Is centred around a deep

Jonathan Askin
Partner

18

best for our clients. | was delighted to join
Knights to help accelerate the growth of
this exciting opportunity to defiver holistic
protessional services to clients.”

Paul Cooper
Partner

knowledge of the sector, which s expected
by the high-qualily clients that we support.”

Peter Worsencroft
Partner
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Strategic
Acquisitions

Entry into
a key market

Knights entered the South West in
November 2020 with the acquisition of
OTB Eveling LLP in Exeter, a key city

in the South West which is one of the
largest regional markets for legal
services. The acquisition further extended
Knighte’ existing Corporate; Employmont,
Dispute Resolution and Real Estate
offering to the South West region and
provided a platforrn for arganic growth
and recruitment opportunities.

A6

Joining Knights has
endabled us to accelerate
our growth plans as part
of an innovative and
ambitious team who
share our commitment to

We were delighted to be Knights® first
point of entry into the South West legal
market. The cultural fit has been great
and the opportunities we are already

seeifng are hugely exciting for the

whole team.”

James Eveling
Partner, Exeter

-

The increased scale and

geographical presence achieved

in recent years has delivered
a step change in the Group's
credibility which is expanding
the pool of high-quality
acquisition candidates.

Accelerating growth
in o lcoy rogion

Knights entered the South East market

in April 2020 with the acqulsition of ASB
Law LLP, a firm which had built up strong
relationships with a number of large
corporates, as well as a niche specialism
in the aviation industry. With offices in
Moidatone and Crawlcy, this acquigition
created a platform for Knights to grow a
presence in the region. in April 2021 we
completed the acquisition of Mundays
LLP an independent commercial law firm
based in Weybridge, further strengthening

—Knights"existing presencein the South™

East with over 130 fee earners across
the combined offices.

Gt

Knights was an attractive
culturai fit for Mundays
and we were delighted to
strengthen our footprint
in the South East joining
Knights' expanding

_____outstanding.client.service.—|—regional-resource.

We are excited by the opportunity to
collectively serve existing and new clients
with the much broader and stronger
service offering that Knights provides us

with, farther enhanced by {he increased

recruitment opportunities presented by
ex-City lawyers looking for new careers
without commuting into central London."

Neale Andrews
Partner, Weybridge

—us this-yearis-another steponthatjourney.

Building on our track record of acquiring
high-quality businesses with a strong
cultural fit, we have continued to execute
on our strategy to acquire businesses
that provide entry in to a key market,
providing a platform for organic growth
in the region, or that can be bolted on

to build scale In our existing locations.

Building the scale of
our apcoeialist tcama

In February 2020 Knights acquired
Croftons, a Manchester firm specialising
in housing associations and regeneration.
The addition of Croftons boosted our real
estate services and quickly provided furiher
apportunities for the wider team. In March
2021 we expanded the Qrouf's presehce
in the housing sector with the acquisition
of housing law services, a niche law firm
providing dedicated legal advice and
practical support to registered providers of
soclal housing, local authorities and arm's

——lengtimanagement organisations Based

in East Sussex. Knights now acts for 100+
registered providers across the country
which include Jigsaw, L&Q and Regenda.

A6

Croftons had a strong
reputation but we wanted
to expand our services
and geographic coverage
to better serve the housing
and regeneration sector.

—Since

has been centred around providing a
superlative and tull service ta housing
clients, with enhanced geographic
coverage. Housing Law Services joining

Simon Leighton
Partner, Manchester
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Strategy in Action continued

Scale the Operation

Scale the
Operation

Scaling the senior
leadership team

Knights is operated by an experienced
senior leadership team who can act with
agility in a tow hierarchy madel.

To support the Group’s ongoing growth,
with a focus on client service delivery and
acquisition integration, we have appointed

two Additional Client Service Directors,

who play an essential role in delivering
operational performance across the
business as well as supporting the Group's
acquisition strategy.

e

oy

L
4[4
| am delighted we have
continued to enable fee
earners to focus on what
they do best, delivering

a premium service to
our clients, through the

—addition of two new Client

Services Directors.

The grawth in our leadership team has

relnforced our mode! of creating a clear
=
Separation between management and

fee earners.”

Mark Beech
Group Director of Client Services

I During the year, we continued

to strengthen our operational
backbone to support our
rapid growth.

Investment in our operational platform
ensures the sustainability of our success
into future periods, with capaclty across
our leadership and systems allowing us
to continue to benefit from economies
of scale.

Investment in
office space

Knights' culture is a source of immense
pride and the Group firmly believes that

it is a key differentiator for clients and
colleagues alike. High quality office

space is an important part of supporting
Knights’ collaborative culture and we have

___continued.to.invest,.agresing-attractive

lease arrangements in Birmingham, Leeds,
Nottingham and York,

Our offices create a light, clutter free, open
ptan environment that fosters welloeing and

facllitates our ‘one team’ and modern ways

of working. We anticipate hybrid working to
create 20% extra capacity across all of our
office locations.

Having previously worked
in industry, it's exciting to
be working for a business
that is committed to
providing a team based

culture through continued

investment in Grade A
office space.

Our ongoing commitment to providing a
high-quality and a collaborative working
environment for our colleagues continues
to support our organic growth ambitions
as we continue to scale.”

Andrew Flanagan
Property Services Director

This continual investment ensures the
Group has the capabllities to harvest
future opportunities as they arise.

Our ability to react quickly to a changing
external environment at the onset of the
pandemic demonstrated aur operational
strength. Early and prudent actions,
supported by our operations team and
well invested [T Infrastructure, saw our
colleagues move seamlessly to working

. from home, and the successful remote
Integration of acquisitions was completed
ahead of schedule.

Operating
with efficiency

Professionals who have built their careers
in operations leadership and delivery have
continued to support our rapidly growing
business. A team of 10 Directors lead over
200 colleagues in our aperations team
which ensures that the Group has the
— capability-to-harvest-futuie-opportunities——|——
as they arise.

The strength of our operational backbone
means that we can operate with both
excellence and effliciency as we continue
___to_deliver.a premium_setvice_to.our.growing—
client base, as evidenced by our fee earner
to non-fee earner ratio, which reduced
to 4.5:1 in the period against an industry
norm of 1.7:1.

)

L ( L
515
I’'m very pleased at how
our model has continued
to scale as expected,

driven by our prior
investment in technology

and quality operations | §

professionais.

Our continued investment has built the
runway for future growth. A key part of
that has been to sustain the agility we had
a5 a twenty million pound BUsifess now
we are five times the size and continue to
grow, maintaining our fee earners’ ablity
to be entrepreneurial and responsive.”

Richard King
Chief Operating Officer

o
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Exploit Technology

and Data

One robust scalable
platform
This year we have expanded the

foundations of our operating platform
to enable it to scale even further:

People Hub

Technology use is a

core part of our strategy
to scale the business and
increase efficiency.

Continual business
improvement in efficiency
and revenue growth

We continue to automate repetitive
everyday tasks, delivering over 20 full time
equivalent people of capacity, increased
execution speed and releasing our talent
to focus on more motivating tasks.

Our.new-People.Hub.ensures.all Human___ ——Examples-of tasks-include-client-identity

Resources related information is available
in a single place, delivering improvements
in efficiency for cur team.

Acquisition Integrator

verification, registering documents with
the tand registry and invoice processing.

We are generating revenue leads by

exploiting data to improve the opportunities

Ourblueprint forintegrating-acquisitions— ——available-to-our-dedicated.Sales-team

enables us to be a volume consolidator
of the fragmented market, as we can now
integrate multiple businesses in parallel
rather than one at a time. We can migrate
the systems of our acquisitions into
Knights® Operating Platform in typically
8-12 weeks, meaning fee-earners
transition quickly to Knights' ways of
working, a key to long-term integration
success. This contributes lo the rapid
harvesting of initial operating synergies.

and our fee earners' ability to target new
client and cross selling opportunities.

For example when targeting new prospects
we use algorithms to:

& Use external and proprietary data
to identify potential new clients that
fit a particular archetype.

i» Create insights on whether a client
might be interested in an additional
service due to a likely event.

The number of existing clients
using more than one service has
increased 10% versus a year ago.

Whilst retaining the simplicity of our
operation with one single set of systems
by rapidly transitioning acquired businesses,
we have continued to expand the depth
and breadth of our use of technology to
Increase the scalability and efficiency of
our operations, and increasingly, to enhance
our services to clients.

Our strong foundations of a fee earner base
skilled In using technology combined with
our scalable infrastructure, allowed us to
move to home working with no impact on
productivity and to integrate four businesses
in parallel onto our platform in a matter of
weeks after acquisition.

Our focus remains in three areas:

Service
enhancement

We are increasingly using technology
externally to enhance our client service

to clients, with a focus on accelerating
speed to seive and saving our clients’
valuable time. For example, we have used
robotics to transform our employment
bulk settlement agreement service to

give employees greater peace of mind.

This has been achieved by providing advice
on voluntary redundancy offers within
hours not days, and increasing the time
employees have to make this important

—decision by 30% The-employer-benefits

by minimising stress on their employees
and reducing reputational risk, as their
employees have a quality experience in a
highly emotional period. What we believe
to be a unique offering has resulted in our
team acting for individuals exiting a range
of businesses including, Virgin Atlantic,
Dickies and Manchester Airport.

We are making it easier and guicker for
key clients to work with us as one team
via flexible online portals to make day

to day interaction simple and seamless,
for topics such as making worl requests,
seeking status updates, and accessing
key documents,
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Corporate Sustdinability

Building a sustainable business that
enables all its stakeholders to thrive.

Knights is committed to building a Taken together, these goals form a key patt those set out by the London Stock Exchange,
sustainable business that enables all its of the Group’s overall drive to transform legal Knights Is proud of the continued progress
stakeholders to thrive: a buslness that services away from the traditional model, and it has made across Environmental, Social
minimises its impact on the environment, are critical to its wider investment case. and Governance reporting, having initiated

a strategic programme In 2020 to underscore
its commitment to make a positive impact,

looks after its people and communities and
operates ethically with the highest levels
of governance.

Informed by guidelines from independent
agencies such as MSCI and aligning with
external disclosure recommendations, including

Managing our
business for
thelong-term

Looking Our

after the
environment

ESG pillars

Caring for people and
our communities

The Group Managing our Caring for people Looking after
focuses on three business for the and our communities  the environment
key pillars within long-term
its SUStamabl"ty Alming for the highest standards Fostering a diverse, team-based, Focussing on cutting our paper
dppl‘OdCh! of corporate and saclal behaviour merltocracy-driven culture and energy consumption.

and running its operations with and encouraging community

high ethical standards. contributions.

» Read more on page 24 P Read more on pages 26-27 P Read more on pages 28-29
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Jane Pateman

Financial Staternents

stan dards of governance one .would expect from a regulated lega
.serv'ces prowder ”

“Non Executive Directot, Knights Group Holdlngs P|C

's ESG initlatives since FY20

Key performance indicators

Knights' strategic
programme has introduced
a strengthened framework
of KPIs and goals, to monitor
its impact on its people and
its communities, particularly
when modernising and
integrating acquisitions.

® Employee NPS +39 impraved by 3 and
Client NPS +75 improved by 15.

® Gender diversity overall, Including
at leadership levels, reflect a strong
meritocracy that Is effective in creating an
inclusive and diverse one team cuiture.

P Used lockdown as an opportunity to
accelerate paper-light working to enhanca
service delivery and reduce environmental
impact. Like for like consumption of

P The Group's Anti-Money Laundering

paper is now 87% lower than the industry
average, compared to 68% a year ago.

processes have been Identifled by external
auditors as “effective with evidence

of strong governance and determined
leadership by the Compliance Team and
the Maoney Laundering Reporting Officer”
in a recent audit.

Managing our business
for the long-term

Board Composition

B Non-legal background: 83% (5 of 6)
» independent Directors: 50% (3 of 6)
® Gender diversity: 50% (3 of 6)

P Ethnic minority diversity: 17% (1 of 6)

Accountability

» ESG accountable Board member:
Jane Pateman

P Independent Audit committee chair:
Gillian Davies

® Independent Remuneration committee
chair: Jane Pateman

®» Compliance Director: Elinor Lioyd,
who reports independently from the
fee earning organisation

Foundations

P ESQ and Corruption Fines: Nonhe

® Political contributions: None

P Compllance training: 99.2% of staff
fully trained

Caring for people and
our communities

Sentiment

® Client NPS; +75

B Employee NPS: +39
» Staff Churn: 5%

Flexibility & Diversity

® Female Partners: 39%

®» Female Directors: 30%
P Female promotions: 58%
P Part time staff: 20%

P Part time Partners: 15%

People Investment

25 Trainee Solicitors

20 Apprentices

Employes training: 18,188 hours
Community: 4hrs/month per person
Company ownership: 52% of collesgues;
3 company share schemes since IPO

Foundations
» H&S Lost Time Injurles: 0

® Data Protection & Privacy: (5027001,
GDPR, UK Cyberessentials+)

» Temporary staff: 2%

Looking after
the environment

Consumption

P Paper: 87% lower than industry average.
Intraduced a new target to be a further
33% less by 2022

P Energy: 9% like for like reduction
vs 9.9% 3 year target by 2022

Waste

® Hazardous Waste: Okg

P Recycled/Energy Recovery: 100%

23
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Managing our Business for the Long-Term

Knights runs its operations with the highest standards of
corporate governance and conduct. All of this is overseen
by a Board of Directors who bring a wide range of relevant

skills and experience.

Board role, independence and diversity

The Board guides Knights'
approach and is committed

to extending its values to all
stakeholder groups, including
shareholders, clients, employees,
governments and regulators,

as well as communities in which

it operates.

Further details of the Board's outreach

are detalled in our Section 172 Statement
on pages 30-31 of this Annual Report.

Business ethics and compliance

The Board is comprised of three Executive
Directors, the Non-Executive Chairman,
and a further two independent Non-
Executive Directors.

The Board believes that the Directors have an
effective blend of financial and public matlet
experience, diversity, skillsets and capabilities.
Only ane member of our Board - CEQ,

David - has a legal background, with the rest
of the Directors bringing broad experience
{rom operations, sales, human resources,
accounting and finance dlsciplines across

a wide range of industries.

Board members

6

Independence

50%

Non-legal background

83%

Gender diversity

1:]

Scaling our cuiture of operating
responsibly, sustainably and with
integrity is essential to the long-
term success of the Group.

The Group is governed by the Solicitors’
Regulation Authority, the Financial
Conduct Authority and its own rigorous
approach to conducting its business

to the highest standards.

Knights has a rigorous ‘Know Your Client’
pracess to ensure that its business is

not used as a conduit for the proceeds

of crime, terrorism or money-laundering.

The Group conducts thorough audits on
clients' background before working with
them, and its dedicated, independent in-house
compliance teams rigorously monitor ail work
being conducted throughout the buslness

on an ongaing basis. For example, our
regulator found in a recent audit that our antl
money laundering processes were “robust,
comprehensive and well informed”.

All colleagues receive mandatory compliance
training during the onboarding pracess and
are required to refresh this every year, with
over 3,400 hours of refresher tralning delivered
in Fya1.

Anti-Bribery and Corruption

Knights is committed to maintalning the
highest standards of ethics and compliance
with all relevant laws wherever it does
business. The Group does not tolerate any
form of bribery or corruption and requires
all indlviduals working for it to comply

with antl-bribery and corruption laws and
ethical standards.

Whistieblowing

All employees of Knights should feel able

to raise concerns about any safety, legal

or ethical issues. If they feel unable to report
these concerns to a manager, the Group
also provides a anonymous whistleblowing
process, which is detailed on its Intranet,

Modern Slavery

The Group has a zero-tolerance approach
to modern slavery anywhere In its supply
chain and a full copy of its policy is detalled
on its website.
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Caring for People and our Communities

Knights’ culture is a source of immense pride and the
Group firmly believes that it is a key differentiator for
clients and colleagues alike in a crowded market.

Thriving inclusive culture

The team-based culture is
focused on helping colleagues,
their communities and clients
to thrive.

Central to this Is attracting talented individuals
who value a culture of mutual respect,
coliaboration, positivity and transparency. In
turn they will then carry and amplify the culture.

Day to day, the approach to nurturing Knights*
culture is simple. Focus on what people
contribute, not rhetoric or their background.
Reward people who lead by example in deed
not word. Help each other. Be candid.

The Group Is proud of the restlts that flow from
this approach,

Further improvement in the Group's
employee net promoter score, an increase
of three versus a year ago to +39, reflects
the supportive environment that empowers

Investing in people

colleagues to be themselves, and use their
judgsment to do what’s right for clients,

the business and the wider community.

In professional services, empowered and
content individuals are key to providing great
client service, as is reflected in our client net
promoter score of +75,

The inclusive approach has resulted in a
diverse organisation when measured against
varlous vectors of diverslity, such as the
percentage of female Partners being in the

top 10 percentile of the industry*, aver half of
mid and upper quartile earners being femals,
and benefits fram a mix of talent with a diverse
range of ethnicities and religious backgrounds
as well as sexual orientation,

Whilst proud of what we have created, we
continue to focus heavily on sustaining and
Improving an environment where everyone
can thrive,

Employee NPS

+39

ClientNPS

+75

Female Partners

39%

Part time colleagues

20%

Retentiont

95%

Creating a supportive environment
in which professionals can pursue
their aspirations is highly

valued by colleagues and a key
differentiator of our business.
Offices

Investing in modern grade A office space to
provide a quality working environment for
colleagues and fostars teamwork and supports
modern ways of working, remains core to our
model. In FY21 we moved in to new modern
offices In Blrmingham, Leeds and Nottingham
to provide a quality working environment,
whilst creating the capacity ta cater for

future growth,

Community

Learning & personal development

Investing In the growth of our people is
Important to the business, Excluding the 25
Trainee Solicitors and 20 Apprentices who are
part of farmal training programmes, colleagues
have received ¢.18,000 hours of formal training
ranging from technical skills, business skills
and health and wellbeing.

Flexibility

Knights aims to offer a working environment to
suit everyone’s work and personal life balancs.
20% of colleagues work part time, including
15% of Partners.

Promotions

This key patt of career progression continued
throughout the pandemic with the Group
announcing a high single dlgit percentage of
promotions, including 35 Partner and Senior
Associate promotions. Over half of colleagues
promoted were female.

Employee ownership

Knights is proud to be able to offer colleagues
the opportunity to hold shares in the business.
Currently 570 colleagues are shareholders via
the Group's various share plans, reflecting the
strong sense of ownership they feef and their
direct interest in its future prospects.

Our strategy to maximise

our positive impact is simple.
Create the healthiest working
environment possible so that
people can thrive, and make
it as easy as possible for
people to have an impact
beyond the business.

Knights believes that people who help other
people are more engaged and have deeper
perspectives on thelr community. It’s those
people who are best placed to drive the
business forward in the long-term.

Knights’ 4 Our Community programme
provides colleaguss with four hours per
month of work time to spend helping thelr
local communities.

Source:
* The Lawyer Top 200 report 2020.
Note:
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Looking After the Environment

Knights is conscious of its impact on the environment and is committed to
making positive changes at every level of its business.

in comparison with other sectors, the Group Is fortunate that its environmental impact Is relatively low, but climate change Is a glabal
challenge and every business has to play its part In minimising the footprint of thelr operations.

We are delighted to have exceeded our three year goals to reduce our paper and energy use, albeit the long periods of lockdown make
it difflcult to accurately assess how this will translate into future typical years.

Paper reduction

The number one consumable

in the legal and professional
services sector is paper, which
has traditionally been used heavily
in law firms. The importance on
reducing it beyond cutting down
less trees becomes clear when
looking at the full lifecycle.

In 2019 the Group set the 3 year target to
reduce usage to 33% lower than the 2019
industry average, driven by the strategy to
digitise how professionals work, predominantiy
through upskilling and habit changing. In FY20
we had already succeeded in exceeding our
target, consuming 68% less than average.

Offices

In FY21, consumption has reduced by 87%

vs industry average, with the continued
progress being driven by COVID-19 lockdowns
accelerating habit changes, and the launch

of our client eSignature solution eliminating
amajor paper consumption driver. Our focus
when colleagues return to the office will be

1o ensure that we sustain and expand on the
good habits and skills.

Paper consumption reduction
vsindustry average

87%

Target: 33% by 2022

Accommodating our staff and
clients represents our number
one use of energy and COe. The
Group’s strategy for minimising

~=-this has two elements: ==~ FEeT s

Maximise space efficiency - by
consolidating into fewer larger offlces,
making best use of space via open plan
layouts, minimising paper to reduce
filing cabinets and printers, plus flexible
working to increase occupancy. For
example in Nottingham and Derby we
have consolidated from four offlces
into one, reducing energy consumption
by 9%, whilst providing a dramatically
improved working environment.

Maximise energy efficiency - by moving
from older office buildings to grade A
space equipped with more efflcient
heating, cooling, lighting systems and
superior insulation we have seen a ¢.9%
energy reduction,

Energy reduction per year

9%

... Jarget: 9.9% by 2022

e
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Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) statement

.. The Group has reported scope 1,2 and 3 The figures were calculated using UK

. . greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in accordance  government 2020 conversion factors,

- with the requirements of Streamlined Energy expressed as tonnes of carbon dioxide
“and Carbon Reporting (SECR). equivalent (tCO,e€).

This includes the Group's stated emissions for Energy Efficiency Actions
one reporting year for the financial year ending

30 April 2021, Energy efficiency and climate change are

at the centre of Knlghts’ strategy. Prior to
Energy and GHG sources included in and during the reporting period the following
the process: projects have taken place:

+ Scope 1: Fuel used in company vehicles + LED lights have been fitted at the Oxford
and natural gas. and Stoke offices.

Scope 2: Purchased electricily. A contractor will be carrying out an

environmental survey at the Stoke office in Knights worked with

June to assess the steps that can be taken environmental consultant
to make the building more efficient. Green Energy to collect
Chester and Maidstone offices use 100% the data related to this
renewable electricity. statement.

Scope 3: Fuel used for business travel
in employee owned or hired vehicles.

All seven Kyoto protocol GHGs were
included: CO,, N,O, CH,, HFCs, PFCs,
SF, and NF,.

01/05/2020 to

Knights was responsible for the
Annual energy consumption: (KWh) 30/04/2021 g P l

nternal management controls
Clectricty o 1,428,208 goveming the data collection process.
Gas T B X R (reen Clement waa rospoheible for
Transport fuel _ the data aggregation, any estimations
{ and extrapolations applied (as required)
and GHG calculations performed,
and the emissions statements,

Annual GHG emissions {tCO,¢)

Scope 1 Greenhouse gas amissions were
Emissions from combustion of gas .6 calculated according to the Greenhouse
Emisslons from combustion of fuel for transport purposes : - Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting._ .
and Reporting Standard.

Scope 2
Emissions from purchased electricity - location based
Emissions from purchased electricity - market based*

Scope 3 Scope and subject matter:

Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee vehicles-where
company is responsible for purchasing the fuel The boundary of the report includes
Emissions from electricily upstream transportation and distribution losses . all UK offices that wera operational for

and excavation and transport of fuels - lacation based any time during the reporting period
Emisslons from upsiream transport and distribution losses and excavation (Bingham, Birmingham, Cheltenham,
and transport of fuels - marel based’ Chester, Crawley, Derby, Exater,
3] Hollins Chambers, Leeds (Malestic
& Weliington Place), Leicester,
Lincoln, Lombard House, Maldstone,
" Manchester, Nottingham (Castle
Intensity (tCO,e / FTE) Helghts, Embankment House & Friar
t {FTE) Em, ) ’ i B Lane), Oxford, Stoke, Wilmslow &
’“” Ao S : 2 ; : e York). Data for the following newly
: : opened offices was estimated on a m?
basis; Birmingham, Leeds (Majestic)
. & Nottingham (Embankment House).
Intensity (tCO,e / £ million revenue) ’ - o S Actual data will be collected and
reported for these newly opened
offices In the next reporting year.

Revenue (M)~ =

Methodology i . GHG.Protacol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard - -

Nate
+ Chester and Maldstone offices use 100% renewable electriclty; all others were assumed to use the grid average in the absence
of supplier fuel mix In order to calculate market based efectricity emisslons.




Engagement with stakeholders

Shareholders

- * The Board regulatly engages with its
shareholders and Is committed to an open
dialogue and fair and equal treatment of

all shareholders. The Chairman meets
sharsholders without management present and
reports to the Board. The Board receives regular
updates on shareholder engagement and
analyst commentary and receives presentations
from corporate brokers on investor perception.
Knights' CEO has a full programme of
engagement with shareholders and presents

to the Group's largest shareholders, as well as
sell-side analysts, following the full and half year
results. The CEO and CFO also meet regularly
with Individual shareholders.

As a result of Knights being an ABS, regulated
by the Solicitors Regulatory Authority (SRA),
any shareholder seeking to Increass its Interest
in Knights such that its shareholding In Knights
exceeds 10% requires authorisation by the
SRA. Through shareholder engagement
throughout the year the Board has been able
to ensure that shareholders are supported in
making such applications to the SRA by the
business if they are proposing to increase their
interests such that they exceed 10%.

Our Annual General Meeting (AGM) is an
important part of effective shareholder
communication, with all shareholders having
the opportunity to hear from the Company
and ask questions. The Board welcomes the
opportunity to engage with shareholders,
typically providing a brief update presentation

30

at each AGM and with all Directors available
to answer questlons. The Board would,
however, welcome greater particlpation from
shareholders, and the current COVID-19 crisis
may alter the dynamics of these meetings

in the future. The Company is looking at other
ways to broaden the participation of

all shareholders,

Employees

During the year engagement with employees
whiist the business has worked in a remote
environment has been more important than
ever. The Executlve Directors have ensured
constant engagement throughout the period
virtually with employees and the Board has
received regular updates of the outcome of this
engagement via the Executive Directors.

Regulators

The Group continues to work hand in hand
with its regulator, the SRA, and its complaints
handling body, the Legal Ombudsman, in
ensuring that it abides by its professional and
regulatary duties and obligations in an open
and transparent manner. The Board conducts
regular regulatory compliance reviews, with a
dedicated Compliance section in every board
pack to analyse client risks. Through the CEO
and CFO, the Board is in contact with the
Solicitors Regulation Authority and, as an AIM
listed company, the Group is in regular contact
with its Nominated Advisor and the Financlal
Conduct Authority.

Clients

- Knights takes g proaclive approach o

communicating with clients and updates are
regularly provided to the Board by the Chief
Executive Officer, The CEO and selected
members of the Board also mest existing

and potential clients regularly through video
conferencing (in light of the COVID-19
pandemic), to maintain its strong relationships.
The Board believes that its decision to invest in
a variety of technology platforms has ensured
that there has been no disruption to client
service during the pandemic as Knights was
able to Immediately move to remote working
without missing a beat.

Suppliers

The Group's procurement policy includes a
commitment to sustainable procurement and
mitigation against the risk of modern slavery,
bribary or corruption anywhere In the supply
chain. The Group also aims to conduct itself
to the highest standards and pay all invoices
promptly. The Board playa a key oversight role
in these policles.

Community participants

Knights’ Environmental, Sustainability and
Governance strategy Is focused on adding
value to the cormmunities in which it operates
and is detailed on pages 26-27 of this

report. Detalled updates on this strategy and
assoclated programmes of work are
provided to the Board and discussed in

its Audit Committee.
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Acquisitions

The Group acquired four law firms during

the year, providing additional scale, practice
areas and presence in a number of key
geographical markets in order to allow it to
deliver its strategy-to be the leading legal and
professional services business outside London.
The acquisitions provide enhanced revenue
generation which in turn provide returns to
shareholders in the longer term and enhanced
employment opportunities as part of a wider
Group. Prior to completing the acquisitions

the Board consldered the effects that the
acquisitions would have on the Group's gearing
and creditors In order to ensure that executing
the acquisitions would not adversely impact
creditors interests, The Board also considered
how each acquilsition would fit in with the
culture of the business and the long-term value
creation strategy of the wider Group.

Addressing the impact of COVID-19

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and

the measures that have been taken by the
government to counteract the impact on public
safety the Board had to take swift and decisive
action to protect the health and well-being

of the Group's employees. In considering

the needs of the employaes the Board took
the declslon on 18 March 2020 (prior to the
government lockdown) to require ali employees
to work from home and the employees of the
Group have continued to work from home
throughout 2020. The Board believes that

the Group's previcus investments in secure,
robust systems, Infrastructurs and technology
platforms has enabled teams to work
effectively from home and that its investment,

along with a strong team culture, has enabled
Knights to protect its calleagues without
adversely disrupting service levels to clients,
which in turn maintains both client relationships
and In the longer term shareholder retums.

In order to preserve jobs and cash reserves to
ensure the continued ablfity to pay suppliers
and employees in the event of an economic
downturn, the Board took the decision to:

P reduce Board members’ salarles by 30%,
and the salaries of employees earning
in excess of £30,000 by 10% with effect
from 1 April 2020, in addition to other cost
cutting measures in relation to non-essential
capital expenditure; and

P not declare a final dividend to shareholders.

At the earllest available opportunity In October
2020 the Board made the declsion to reinstate
pay with effect from November 2020 to ensure
that once the wider economic effects résulting
from the COVID-18 pandemic on the business
had stabilised, the employees were ho

longer impacted financially. In reaching

this decision the Board consldered all

key stakeholders including shareholders,
employees and creditors.

Following employee engagement throughout
the year the Board made the decision to
arrange sesslons which all employees were
able to participate In with external advisors
ta promote and support mental wellbeing

of employees given the wider effects that
the COVID-18 pandemic has had on mental
health globally.

Approval of the Budget

The Group's business plan is to drive
sustainable growth In the long term, which Is in
the Interest of all of its stakeholders. The Board
has paid close conslderation to this abjective
in establishing and approving the 2021 budget
and taking measures to continue to improve
cash collection and lock up days. In light of
the raplidly changing economic climate the
Board has had to conslder and monitor the
impact of COVID-19 on each sector in which
the Group operates, ensuring no over reliance
on any practice area, professional or individual
clients; ensuring the Group is best placed to
continue to deliver a high standard of client
service through evolving to the new way of
working, working closely with its suppliers
whilst continuling to focus on minimising the
environmental impact of the Group.

Appointment of Gillian Davies

The Board is committed to ensuring that

it possesses the right balance of skills,
experience and knowledge to perform ts
dutles effectively and deliver strong continued
growth. On 17 March 2021 Gillian Davies was
appolnted as Non-Executive Director and
Senlor Independent Director of the Group.

In selecting Gillian to replace Stephen

Dotton, the Board sought external advice and
considered the exlsting sklilset and experience
of all candidates and the culture of the Group.
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We have set out where information related to
these disclosures can be found in our Annual
Repont, including our business model which
Is set out on pages 14-15, The principal risks
relating to these matters and due diligence

Requirement
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Looking after the
environment
pages 28-29

Investment case
pages 04-05

Chairman's
statement
pages 086-07

Chief Executive’s
statement
pages 08-10

Business model
pages 14-15

Caring for our
people and
communities
pages 26-27

Section 172
statement
pages 30-31
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undertaken In pursuance of our policies is set
out in the Risk Management section of our , '
Annual Repott, on pages 44-47 respectively.

Palicy overview

| > |

The Group’s materiality assessment has determined that Knights' environmental impact is
relatively low. As a people and services business, Knights’ key impacts are the consumption

of paper and wider energy usage. We recognise the need to minimise our impact and continually
meastire and monitor the environmental sustainability of our operations and, where possible,

set targsts to ensure that we operate with the minimal impact. Knights provides regular
environmental and progress updates to employees, clients and other Interested stakeholders.

A summary of our progress this year is detalled on page 28 and KPls refating to the Group’s
streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR) Is avallable on page 28.

As set out in the Investment case, pages 04-05, Chalrman's statement, pages 06-07, Chief
Executive's statement, pages 08-10 and Business Model, pages 14-15, our employees are an
essential component of our business with their health and wellbeing remalning a Group priority.

Health & Safety Policy: Knights ensures that, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health,
safety and welfare of all employees working for the Company and other persons who may be
affected by its activities. The policy of management Is to do all that is reasonably practicable to
prevent personal Injury and damage to property. All employees are informed of thelr personal !
responsibilities to take due care of the health and safety of themselves and to ensure that they
do not endanger others. ' '

Knights ensures continued consultation with the workforce to discuss all viewpoints and
recommendations at regular intervals. The organisation has a systematic approach to Identifying
hazards, assessing the risks, determining suitable and sufficient control measures and informing
employees of the correct procedures needed to maintain a safe working environment. Knights
will provide, so far as is reasonably practicable, safe places and systems of work, safe plant

and machinery, safe handiing of materials and substances, the provision of adequate safety
equipment and ensure that appropriate information, Instrugtion, training and supervision Is given.
Management Is committed to continually measure, monitor and revise an annual plan to ensure
that health and safety standards are adequately maintained. The policy is implemented by our
Quality, Heatth and Safety Manager, who recommends any changes to meet new clrcumstances,

Training: A wide range of training and development opportunities are available for all employees. |
Fee-earning colleagues receive mandatory compllance training during the onboarding process !
anhd are required to refresh this every year.

Diversity & Inclusion Policy: Knights is an equal opportunities employer, committed to ensuring
the workplace s free from unlawful discrimination, victimisation or harassment on the grounds of
age, disability, race, sex, sexual orientation, religlon or belief. Knights values and is committed to
promoting equality and diversity within the workplace by seeking to ensure that all individuals are
treated fairly with dignity and respect and by recognising and encouraging Individual contribution
within the organisation. Knights is committed to ensuring that all its employees and all applicants
for employment are protected from unlawful discrimination. Knlghts does not discriminate against
employees. Knights has leading levels of gender diversity for any professional services business
and publishes an update of its gender pay gap report on its website on an annual basis.

Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties: Tha policy covers our conflicts of interest, which
states that Knights can never act where there is an own conflict of interest with a new or existing
cllent. The SRA Standards and Regulations do not allow a client to walve or cansent to a conflict
of interests with the business. Fee earners are expected to use their judgement and seek further
guidance and approval from Gompliance In ali cases whera there may be a potential conflict.
Client conflicts are covered under the SRA Standards and Regutations, Where there Is a confilct
betwesn new or existing clients, Knights cannot accept/continue instructions unless the affacted
clients have a substantially common Interest or are competing for the sams objective. Information
conflict and duty conflict are also covered by our policy. Knights provides petlodic training on the
identification of conflicts of interest and compliance Is monitored by the Compliance Officer far
Legal Practice, who Is responsible for this policy. Policies are reviewed at least annually.

Whistleblowing: Employees are encouraged to report any serious wrongdoing by the firm or its
employees that fall short of its business principles. If they feel unable to report these concerns

to a manager, the Group also provides a whistieblowing pracess, which Is detailed on its website
and provided to employees, Knights undertakes that no employee who raises bona fide concerns
under this Policy will be subjected to any detriment as a resuit.
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Policy overview

As outlined In Caring for Colleagues and Communities, Knights is actively engaged in its
communities through both employment and community activities. Knights' legal services
are also aimed at helping local businesses thrive and grow.

The Group enables colleagues to support thelr focal communitles through its 4 Our Gommunity
programme, where colleagues can spend four hours of work time per month to offer assistance
to organisations, such as charities, schools, care homes, food banks and youth centres or any
organisation providing a soclal, educational, voluntary or charitable service to the community.

Knights' aspiration is to defiver 50,000+ hours to its communities through the programme
every year. ’

Modern Stavery: The Group has a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery anywhere
in its supply chain and a full copy of its policy is detalled on its website.

The Group's procurement policy includes a commitment to sustainable pracurement and
mitigation against the risk of madarn slavary, bribery or comnuption anywhera in its supply chaln.
The Group also alms to conduct itself to the highest standards and pay all Involces prompitly.
The Board plays a key oversight role in these policies,

Knights has a rigorous ‘Know Your Client’ process to ensure that its business is not used
as a conduit for the proceeds of crime, terrorism or money laundering. The Group conducts
tharaugh audits on clients’ background before working with them, and its dedicated,
independent in-house Compliance team tigorously monitor all wark being conducted
throughout the business on an ongoing basis.

Anti-Money Laundering: Knights ensures Its employees are aware of the law and are regularly
provided with tralning In how to recognise and deal with transactions that may be related to
money laundering. Knights provides employees with training and a manual to explain its policies
and procedures, including reference to its Money Laundering Reporting Officer. Policles apply to
all clients and all matters. The firm is required to maintaln records of client identification evidence
for at least five years from the end of our business relationship with a client. Employee obligations
are to carry out “customer due diligence” and to recognise and report susplcious transactions,
as well as avoiding tipping off a suspect about a report.

Anti-Bribery and Corruption: Knights Is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of ethics and compliance with all relevant laws wherever it does business. The Group does
not tolerate any farm of bribery ar corruption and requires all individuals working for it to
comply with anti-bribery and corruption laws and ethical standards.

Whistleblowing: All employees of Knights should feel able to raise concerns about any
safety, legal or ethical issues. If they feel unabie to report these concerns to a managet,
the Group also provides a whistleblowing process, which is detailed on its website.

i

Knights Is committed to providing an excellent leve! of service to its clients and to acting with integrity In all of its

dealings which is fundamental to our business strategy. Knights will only accept instructions and provide advice where
we are able to meet our commitment to cllent service. Where instructions or advice are outside the expertise or capability
of the business, they will be declined. Employees are aware of specific work types which require specific referral to

team risk supervisors. We will always consider the most appropriate style of communication bearing in mind the needs
and characteristics of the client. A member of the management team Is responsible for client care at Knights and

revlews this policy at least annually to ensure continued excellence.

Confidentiality Is a fundamental feature of our relationship with our clients. This duty continues beyond the end of the
retainer and even after the death of the client. The protection of confidential information s balanced against the duty

of disclosure. In practical terms, this means not speaking about clients, their details or their cases outside the offlce

or In situations where they might be overheard. This duty also applies to information about Knights as a business itself,
Where employees cannot reconcile these two duties the protection of confidential information is paramount. Employees
can contact Mark Beech or consult the SRA handbook for further information. Breaches of confidentiality are reportable
offences and should be referred to the COLP. Breaches of confidentiality may be treated as a serious disciplinary offence.

Unforeseen events could cause considerable disruption to Knights' normai business activity, the potential impact of which
could be long lasting, having an effect an health and safety, reputation, market confidence, operating efficiency and financial
security. To this end, Knights® policy is to take measures to protect itself to ensure It is prepared and efficlent in responding
to such adverse situations. Best practice business fisk management princlples balance risk with the economics of investing
in cost effective loss prevention and minimisation. These principles include the highest regard for the safety and health

of employees, clients and the public, the continuation of the highest quality service to our clients and the protection and
preservation of property and the enviranment. This has been amply demanstrated In our response to the COVID-18 crisis.

kK]
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| am pleased to report
strong performance for the
Group in the financial year,
despite the impact from
the economic effect of the
COVID-19 pandemic during
the period.”

Kate Lewis
Chief Financial Offlcer

Revenue (Em)

(R 1Y)

s
103.2

2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021

Annual Repolt and Accounts 2021

Our swift and prudent cost reduction programme undertaken at the start of the pandemic enabled
us to trade well through the difficult macro-economic environment during the first quarter of

the financial year. Although our robust IT platforms and paperless way of working meant that

as a business we were able to transition to remote working Immediately with no down time or
reduction in our abliity to transact, difficulties encountered in the wider economic environment had
a significant Impact on our level of fee income for the firet quarter of the financial year. |- lowever,
as the wider environment adapted to the new way of working, we experienced a significant
Increase in activity levels and new business Instructions and were well positioned to maximise

the opportunities avallable.

During the year we continued to Invest in the recruitment of high quality senior recrults, who bring
with them a strong client following, develop and train our client service professionals and expand
the strong management and aperational professionals required to support our continued growth
strategy. We also used the ime working remotely to invest In the high quality office environment
that we consider key to maintaining our collaborative, one team cuiture by refocating to new

office space In Birmingham, Leeds and Nottingham and Investing in the refurbishment of these
spaces as necessary, taking advantage of the attractive lease arrangements available. Despite the
disruption caused by the pandemic, | am delighted that we have continued to bulld on our historic
strong track record of cash generative revenue and profit growth over the past six years, with

a further 39% increase in revenue and a 35% increase In Underlying Profit Before Tax (PBT).

Our continued focus on cash flow has resulted in excellent cash conversion of 96% for the year,
with net debt being lower than expected, positioning the Group well to maximise on the organic
and acquisition opportunities that are expected to arise as we emerge from the pandemic and
lockdown conditions.

Financial results

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Revenue 103,201 74,254
Staff costs (62,707) (45,578)
Other underlying costs and ¢harges (22,075) (15,060)
Underlying profit before tax* 18,419 13,616
IAmortisation of acquisition related intangibles (2,622) (1,427)
Non-recurring finance costs” - 41)
One-off costs on acquisitions * (10,288) (8,090)
Profit before tax 5,509 4,058
EPS 414p 244p
Underlying EPS 18.30p 14.33p

Reported profit before tax (Em)

6 20

18

- Y-

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

e

34

Underlying profit before tax™* (Em)
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Reported revenue for the period was £103.2m
compared with £74.3m In FY20, representing a
39.0% increase.

Of this increase 2.8%, or £2.1m, was a result of
the acqulsitions made during the financial year
and £28.4m relates to the full year bensfit of
acquisitions made in FY20.

The Group achieved strong organic growth of
10% in the second half of the year amounting
to £3.2m when compared to the second half
of FY20. This was offset by a 156% reduction
in organic revenue In the first half of the year
due to the Immediate impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, giving a 3% reduction in organic
revenue for the financlal year as a whole.

Staff costs

As a well-diversified business with a full-service
offering, the business has proven to be resillent
as the macro economic environment started to
recover from the initial shock of the pandemic.
Whilst the extended lockdown in January and
February 2021 had some impact on trading
levels during February, momentum and activity
have increased In the last two months of FY21
and the start of the current financial year as we
emerge from the pandemic.

This strong momentum in activity with both
existing and new clients along with recruitment
of high calibre individuals and a continued
focus on appropriate pricing of matters, gives
confidence in our ability to drive our strategy to
deliver strong organic growth, supplemented
by further revenue growth from carefully
selected acquisitions.

2021 £103,201,000

2020 £74,254,000
2019 £52,662,000
Revenue growth

+39.0%

Total staff costs represented 60.8% of revenue
during the financlal year compared with 61.4%
in 2020.

During the Initial stages of the COVID-19
pandemic we undertook a cost reduction
exercise. As part of this exercise all employees
earning more than £30,000 took a temporary
10% reduction In salary, with the Board taking
a 30% reduction. These cost saving measures
remalned In place until 1 November when

all employees retumed to full salaries as the
Board became corfident that activity levels
wera returning to pre COVID-19 levels, No
companles within the Group benefitted from
the Government's Jab Retention Scheme whilst
operating under Knights' ownership,

Fee earner staff costs have decreased from
52.1% of revenue to 51.1% reflecting the
continued effort 1o controt costs whilst also
investing In high quality senior recruits who
bring a client following. During the year 29
partners have joined the Group as part of our
active recruitment process. This represents a
significant investment as it would typlcally

Underlying EPS (p)*

Cash conversion*

2021 86%

ot
* See Glossary on page 116-117.

take three to six months for each of these new
recruits to achieve the full expected fee earning
run rate.

We have continued to invest in our operational
infrastructure In FY21, focusing on increasing
the management resource available within

the Group to ensure we have a properly
structured operational management team with
the bandwidth to drive growth, operational
efficiency, profitabllity and cash generation as
well as the effective integration of acquisitions.
This together with the full year impact of the
investment in FY20 has increased support staff
costs for the year to 9.7% of revenue from 9.3%
in the prior year.

Management anticipates that these costs will
now begin to be leveraged by the Increased
fee generating capacity of the business and
the return to narmal levels of trading as the
ecanomy recovers from the pandemic.

Average number of fee earners
A -

Lock up days*

2021

Total staff costs (as a % of revenue)

60.8%

2020: 61.4%
2019:57.2%

Direct staff costs (as a% of revenus)

B1.1%

2020: 52.1%
2019: 49.6%

Support staff costs (asa % of revenuc)

9.7%

2020: 9.3%
2019:7.6%

Underlying PBT margin®

20214 17.8%

Reported Basic EPS

——————————————————————
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Underlying profit before tax (PBT)*

The first half of the year was significantly
impacted by the Impact of COVID-18,
therefore headline figures for the year have
been analysed into half years in the table

below to enable a view of the Group’s trading
performance as the economy recovers from
the Initial shock of the pandemic,

H1 H2 H1 H2

FY 21 FY 2021 FY 21 FY 20 FY 20 FY 20

£'000 £'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000
Revenue 46,237 56,964 103,201 31,977 42,277 74,254
Other operating Income 539 771 1,310 281 613 894
Staff costs (29,635) (33,072 (62,707) (19,931) (25,647) (45,578)
Depreciation and amortisation charges (3,367) (4,363) (7,730) (2,010) (2,266) (4,276)
Impairment of trade receivables and contract (105) (118) (223) (93) (19) (112)
assets
Other operating charges (7,909) (8,264) (16,173 (4,921) (6,583) (11,504)
Non-underlying costs (6,007) 4,281) (10,288) (1,848) (6,242) (8,090)
Operating (loss)/profit (247) 7,637 7,390 3,455 2,133 5,588
Finance costs (890) 991) (1,881) (625) (864) (1,489)
Non-recurring finance costs - - - @1) - (41)
(Loss)/profit before tax (1,137) 6,648 5,509 2,788 1,269 4,058
Taxation {337) (1,770) (2,107 675) {1,564) (2,238)
{Loss)/profit and totaf comprehensive income 1,474) 4,876 3,402 2,114 (295) 1,820
for the year attributable to equity owners of
the parent
Underlying Profit Before Tax* 5,993 12,426 18,419 5,253 8,363 13,616
Underlying PBT margin* 13.0% 21.8% 17.8% 16.4% 19.8% 18.3%
Underlying Profrt After Tax* - - 15,040 - - 10,706
Basic EPS (pence) - - 414 - - 2.44
Underlying earnings per share (pence)* - - 18.30 - - 14,33

Underlying profit before tax excludes
amortlsation of acquired intangibles,
transaction and onerous lease costs in
relation to acquisitions, disposals of acquired
assets, restructuring costs as a result of

the streamlining of the support function in
acquisitions and the restructuring undertaken
in response to the COVID-18 pandemic.

It also excludes contingent consideration
payments required to be reflected through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income under
IFRS and share-based payments for one-off
shara awards made at IPO and as part of the
acquisitions, and the one-off Share Incentive
Plan offered to employees as a result of the
listing. Any share-based payments charges
relating to ongoing SAYE and LTIP

schemes are recognised as underlying

coate of the Group.

Underlying profit before tax has been
calculated as an alternative performance
measure (see note 36 of the flnancial
statements) in order to provide a more
meaningful measure and year on year
comparisan of the profitabiiity of the
underlylng business.

Note
* Ses Glossary on pages 116-117.

Underlying profit before tax has increased by
35,3% compared with the same period last
year to £18.4m (2020: £13.6m), representing
amargln of 17.8% for the full year compared
with 18.3% in the prior year. This represented
a resilient performance given the significant
impact of the COVID-18 pandemic in the first
half of the year which reduced the margin in
the first half of the financial year to 13.0%,
compared to 16.4% in the prior period, despite
the mitigating cost reduction measures taken,

As the Group entered the second half of the
year and activity levels were beginning to
return to pre pandemic lavels, all employees
returned to full salary levels. Despite the impact
of the extended lock down in January and
February 2021 and the continued investment in
recruitment, the support function and the office
base, the Group generated an underlying PBT
margin of 21.8% in the second half of the year
compared to 19.8% In the comparative perlod
of the prior year. The improvement In margin is
a result of the increase in fee income leveraging
general overheads and finance costs In the
business which is particularly encouraging
given the level of Investment in the business.

36

In addition to the investment in fee earning and
support staff as discussed above, acquisitions
also have a margin-diluting impact for the first
full year post acquisition as support functions
are streamlined and the acquired business

is Integrated Into the Group more generally
before obtaining expected profitabllity

levels thereafter.

2021 £18.4m

2020 £13.6m

2018 £9.4m

Increase in underlying PBT*

+35.3%

Underlying PBT* growth
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Reported profit before tax (PBT)

Corporaie Governunce

Finoncial Stalements

The reported profit before tax for the year

has increased by 35.8% to £5.5m (2020:
£4.1m). The Increase in reparted profit before
tax of £1.4m In the year reflects the net
impact of increased underlying profit before
tax of £4.8m driven by increased revenue at

a slightly reduced underlying PBT margin,
increased amortisation of acquired intangibles
of £1.2m and the increased non-underlying
costs of £2.2m. The significant increase in

Earnings per share (EPS)

the non-underlying costs incurred Is due

to an Increase of £2.9m in the contingent
consideration element of the purchase cost of
acquisitions being recognised in the Statement
of Gomprehensive Income Ih accordance

with IFRS accounting conventions, offsei by a
reduction of £0.7m in other restructuring and
one off transaction costs.

2021 £5,509,000

2020 £4,058,000

2019 £4,849,000

Reported profit before tax growth

+35.8%

- The welghted average number of shares in the
year to 30 April 2021 was 82,189,113 (2020:
74,675,462) which gives a baslc earnings per
share (Baslc EPS) for the year of 4.14p (2020:
2.44p). Taking into account the number of
share options that the Group has outstanding
at the year end gives a diluted EPS of 4.09p
(2020: 2.41p).

Corporation tax

In order to compare the EPS year on year, the
underlying EPS has been calculated showing
18.30p in the year to 30 Aprit 2021 compared
with 14.33p In the prior year. This measure

eliminates the effect of any non-recurring and
non-undetrlying costs on the EPS calculation.

Underlying EPS *

18.30p

2020: 14.33p
2019: 11.31p

Basic EPS

4.14p

2020: 2.44p
2019:5.27p

The Group’s tax charge for the year Is £2.1m
(2020: £2.2m) which was made up of a current
corporatlon tax charge of £2.6m (2020: £1.9m)
and a deferred tax credit of £0.5m (2020:
deferred tax charge of £0.3m).

The deferred tax charge credit arises largely
from the reversal of the deferred tax liabllity
on acquired Intangibles.

Dividend

The total effective rate of tax is 38% (2020:
55%) based on reported profit before tax.

This has been adversely affected by non-
underlying Items (largely amartisation of
acquired intangible assets and the recagnition
of contingent conslideration on acquisitions
against profits) that are not tax deductible, The
effective rate of tax on the underlying profit of
the business is 18% (2020: 21%) (see note 16
of the financial statements),

Effective rate of tax on underlying profit

18%

2020: 21%

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the
resultant uncertainty of the effects on the

UK economy the Board undertook cost
cutting measures across the Group to ensure
that the business was in the best possible
position given the current uncertainty. The
Board has thersfore decided that, given the
cost saving measures put in place during the
year In relation to COVID-19, it would not be
appropriate to propose a final dividend for the
financlal year at this time.

The Board intends to resume paying dividends
in respect of the year ended 30 April 2022 in
accordance with the previous dividend policy,
being 20% of profits after tax.

Dividend per share (pence)

Op

2020: 1,10p
2019:1.87p
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Balance sheet
30 April 21 30 April 20
£'000 £°000
Goodwill and intangible assets 79,523 69,135
Right of use assets 40,406 23,749
Working capital 28,619 27,681
Other net assets Ajiabilities) (991) (2,012)
Lease liabllities (42,640) (23,844)
' 104,917 94,709
Cash and cash equlvalents 4,783 12,741
Overdraft (1,852) -
Borrowings (24,064) (28,650)
Net debt * (21,133) {15,909)
Deferred cansideration (1,095) (2,850)
Net assets 82,689 75,950

* Nat debt excluded lease llabliities.

The Group’s net assets as at 30 Aptil 2021 increased by £6.7m from the prior year reflecting the shares issued in relation to acquisitions In the year

and profit during the year.

Goodwill and intangible assets

included within intangible assets and goodwill
is £31.8m of intanglble assets, identified on
current and prior acquisitions. This relates to
customer relationships, values attached to
restrictive covenants, brand and computer
software. The balance relates to goodwill of
£47.7m arising from acquisitions.

The Board carries out an impairment review
of goodwil each year to ensure the carrying
value is supportable. The value in use of the
goodwill was calculated using a number of

different scenarios, some of which assumed

Working capital

a considerably worse outcome than is
anticipated by the Directors, In all instances
the future trading of the business was more
than sufficlent to justify the carrying value
of goodwill. Therefore as at 30 April 2021,
the Board concluded that the goodwill was
not Impaired.

£79.5m

2020: £69.1m
2019:; £46.4m

The Group manages its working capital
requirements closely, with impact on working
capital being a key conslderation in all business
decisions. The management of working

capital has always been a key performance
indicator for management with strong controls
and systems in place to menitor the level of
debtors and work In progress in the business.
Lock up days Is the primary metric used by the
Group to measure the length of time it takes

to convert work recorded Irto cash received
and this is discussed in the Key Performance
Indicators section.

Due to the strong controls already in place

the Group did not experience any significant
change in its working capital cycle throughout
the year as a result of the pandemic. Bad debts
remain low at the same level as prior years of
0.2% of turnover.

Management are satisfled with the level of
working capital at the year end which at
£28.6m remains at a similar level to FY20
(€27.7m) despite the acquisitions and growth
{n business during in the year.

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

Bad debt (as a % of revenue)

0.2%

2020:0.2%
2019:0.8%

The right of use assets capitalised in the
Statement of Financial Position represents

the present value of property, equipment and
vehicle leases, The Increase in right of use
assets during the year from £23.7m in FY20 to
£40.4m in FY21 Is due to new leases acquired
as part of the acquisitions completed during
the year and new leases entered into by the
Group during the period.

The lease liabilities represent the present value
of the total liabilities recognised for right of
use assets and the increase during the yeat

to £42,6m (FY20: £23.8m) again reflects the
leases in acquired entities and new leases
entered into during the period.

Right of use assets

£40.4m

2020: £23.7m
2019: £19.5m

Lease liabilities

£42.6m

2020: £23.80m
2019: £19.0m

— rmsssms mre sem seneers —
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Net debt, financing and leverage

Finuncial slatemients

The strong cash conversion in the period has
resulted in net debt of £21.1m at the year end
which was £1m better than expectations.
This figure represents an increase in net debt
from the £15.9m as at April 2020 due to an
aggregate cash outlay of £12.5m relating to
consideration for acquisitions made during
the perlod and deferred consideration paid in
relation to acquisitions in prior years.

The Group’s RCF facllity remains at £40m
glving significant headroom to continue to
support the growth strategy into 2022 through
organic recrultment and carefully selected,
culturally aligned acqulsitions.

Net debt

£21.Im

2020: £15.9m
2019: £14.1m

Leverage (multlple of underlying EBITDAY)

0.8 x

2020:09x

Cash conversion

2021 2020

£'000 £000
Net cash generated from underlying operating activities* 20,378 13,791
Tax pald (2,125) (2,907)
Cash outflow for [FRS 16 leases {rental payments excluded from aperating activity cash flows under IFRS 16) (3,741) (2,366)
Free cash flow 14,512 8,518
Underlying profit after tax* 15,040 10,706
Cash conversion 96% 80%

The cash conversion percentage measures the Group's conversion of its
underlying profit after tax into free cash flow. Due to the continued focus
on management of working capital and lock up, the Graup has again
dellverad strong cash conversion of 96% (2020; 80%). This includes the
payment of the £800,000 of VAT deferred under the Government VAT
deferral scheme at 30 April 2020. Excluding this payment would give

a cash conversion of 102%.

Capital expenditure

During the year the Group continued to invest in lts systems and
premises to expand its capacity and ensure staff continue to benefit
from a high quality working environment, with consistent systems across
the Group to ald Integration and a one firm culture.

The total £4.3m (FY20: £2,1m) invested in capital expenditure (exciuding
right of use assets capitalised as part of the adoption of IFRS 16)
included the following one-off non-recurring significant items required
as a result of the acqulsttions and continued growth of the Group:

£m
Refurbishment of new offices In Birmingham, Leeds 3.2
and Nottingham
Provislon of new / upgraded IT equipment 0.6
Total 3.8

Other capitat spend In the financial year relates ta general investment in
the [T, communications and infrastructure required for the increase in the
number of employees, and to support the programme of rolling out [T
upgrades to ensure the Group's technology is up to date and sufficient
to meet the needs of the business.

During the year the Group signed leases for new or upgraded premises in
L.eeds, Nottingham and York. Under IFRS16 these are accounted for as
right of use assets and accordingly £16.4m has been capitallsed within

non-current assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The significant investment in both the signing of new leases and
refurbishment of offices during the year underpins the Group’s strategy
of building a team culture of working together in modern offices in
prime locatlons. The home working period during the pandemic offered
the opportunity to carry out this wark whilst minimising disruption to
the business. Whilst our plan is to move to a hybrid way of working
once social distancing guldelines allow, offering a high quality office
environment is seen as key to encouraging individuals to work together
collaboratively as one team and to attracting high quality recruits. The
future hybrid format of working should enable the Group to get a further
20% capacity out of current office space, thereby maximising the
potential leverage of these costs,

The capital budgets for FY22 Include the normal level of expected
investment in general IT, communications and Infrastructure to ensure
we have the capacity required for a growing business. Due to the
acquisitions completed during the year and some relocation of offices
duse to expiring leases we expect some one-off refurbishment costs

In respect of the York, Maidstone, Sheffleld and Weybridge offices
amounting to circa £1.8m in the current financial year.

Acquisitions

During the year we completed thres acquisitions and exchanged on a
fourth. The tahle below summarises the net impact of the acquisitions
during the year and In prior years on cash In the current year and in
fulure years. This shows the Impact of consideration payable net of
any cash In the acquired businesses.

Cash Cash
impact from  impact from Total cash
acquisitions prior year impact from
Financial inthe year  acquisitions  acquisitions
year ended fm £m £m
2021 3.6 8.8 12.4
2022 6.1 5.0 111
2023 27 - 2.7
2024 1.6 - 1.6

The above inclides estimated contingent consideration charged as
remuneration in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Acquisitions completed are generally structured with an initial cash
outlay of just one third of the total consideration, with ane thitd of the
consideration being offered in shares and the balance being pald upon
the flrst and second year anniversaries post completion.

The strong cash and lock up management systems In the Group mean
that often cash Is generated from the balance shests of acquired
businesses.

Tax - Cash flow impact

Corporation tax
Corporation tax of £2.1m (FY20: £2.9m) was paid during the year.

VAT

During the COVID-19 pandemic the Group benefitted from the temporary
ahillity to defer VAT payments. As at 30 April 2020 this had a positive
Impact on cash of approximately £0.8m. All deferred VAT has been repaid
before the end of the financlal year but this had a negative impact on the

cash flow figure during FY21.
Note
* See Glossary on pages 116-117.

RV B—
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Note
* see Glossary on pages 116-117.

Lockup

Lock up days Is a key driver In delivering strong
cash performance and is the primary metric ’
used by the Group to measure the length of
time it takes to convert work recorded Into
cash recelved.

It is calculated as the combined debtor and
work in progress (WIP) days for the Group.
Management of lock up has continued to be
a key focus of the Group over the perlod as
it drives the cash generation necessary to
support the growth strategy of the Group.

Year end lock up days of 89 remained below
the Group’s targeted figure of 90 days.

This compares favourably to the total lock

up of 105 days as at 30 April 2020, The prior
year total lock up days of 105 was adversely
affected by the longer lock up profiles of
acquisitions during the year which at 30 April
2020 averaged at 130 days. By 30 Aprii 2021
this had been reduced to 97 days, which was
more In line with the Group lock up target

Underlying profit before tax (PBT)

of 90 days demonstrating how well all of the
acquired businesses have integrated into the
Group over the period, adopting our culture
of ensuring strong cash generation.

The acquisitions made during FY21 have
had an adverse impact on the lock up profile
of the Group at the year end. Excluding FY21

_ acquisitions, lock up remains at 89 days

(30 April 20: 85 days excluding acquisitions

In the financial year). The average lock up days
of acquisitions at the time of completion was
108 days which had reduced to 91 days as

at 30 April 2021. These figures exclude the
lock up relating to the Keebles acquisition

due to the exchange on this acquisition taking
place on the final day of the trading period.

Management are satisfied with the level of lack
up at the year end which remains significantly
better than the Industry average.

Since the adoption of IFRS16 in FY20 the
Board has prioritised the KPI of underlying
PBT as a more accurate measure of its
performance as this reflects all of the property
and lease costs Incurred by the Group.

The Board believes that it Is an important —
metric for monitoring the profitability of .

ongoing operations.

Underlying PBT excludes amortisation
of acquired intangibles, transactlon and

onerous lease costs in relation to acquisitions, - -

disposals of acquired assets, restructuring
costs as a result of the streamlining of the
support function in acquisitions and the cost

Lock up days

89 days

2020: 85 days
excluding the impact of the extended lock up
on acquiisitions made during the year

saving exercise undertaken in response to

the COVID-19 pandemic. 1t also excludes
contingent consideration payments required

to be reflected through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income under IFRS and share-

~ baséd payments far ane-off share awarde

made at IPO and as part of the acquisitions,
and the one-off Shara Incentive Plan offered to
employees as a result of the listing. Any share-
based payments charges relating to ongoing
SAYE and LTIP schemes are recognised as
underlying costs of the Group.

The underlying PBT for 2021 has grown by
35% over the 2020 comparative period.

Underlying profit before tax *

+35.3%

2021 17.8%
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This represents a PBT margin of 17.8%
compared with 18.3% In FY20 and 17.9%

in FY19. The profitability In FY21 has been
held back by the significant Impact that the
COVID-19 pandemic had on the business
during the first quarter of the year and the
acquisitions completed during both the latter
half of FY20 and FY21 that Initially operate
at lower than Group margins with the Graup

Fee earner to non-fee earner ratio*

SOOI EI IR WP PRI RPN

Corpofale Governunce

taking twelve to eighteen months to maximise
cost savings and Increase profitability in line
with Group profit margins. However, analysls
of the results on a half year basls shows that
margins in the second half of the financial
year were 21.8% compared to 19.8% in H2
of FY20 and 17.4% in H2 of FY19. Comparing
the profitability in the second haif of FY21 to
the second half of FY19 eliminates the Impact

Finunciol Slaterments

of COVID-19 on margins in the last month of
the FY20 financial year. The Increase in margin
over the two year perlod reflects the fact that
the Increased scale of the business is further
leveraging the overheads of the business whiist
also allowing the Group to Invest in new fee
earners, support staff and larger premises

to provide a strong base for future growth,

Knights’ business model and use of
technologies have been key in enabling the
Group to maintain a fes earner to non-fee
earner staff ratio that is much higher than
the average for the sector. This continues to
be one of the key differentlators in Knights'
business model enabling the Group to
generate such strong margins,

Fee earner to non-fee earner ratio

4.5:]

2020: 4.8:1

Note
* See Glossary on pages 116-117,

This ratio depends on where the Group s at
in terms of its growth strategy. As at 30 April
2021 the Group was operating at a ratlo of
4.5 fee earners for every one support staff (30
Aprll 2020; 4.8:1). The reduction in the ratio
compared to the previous period reflects the
restructuring of excess resource at the start
of the pandemic and a focus on recruiting at
partner level.
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Revenue growth

Although underlying profit befare tax Is our
main KPI, a key strategy for the Board is to
grow fee income via a combination of organic
and acquisitive growth and as such the level
of fee iIncome growth is monitored closely by
the Board on a monthly basis.

Acquisttive growth is generated via the
acquisitions completed each year. No targets
are set for the revenue acqulired during the
year as acquisitions will always be led by
where cultural fit is strongest. Income from
acquisitions Is treated as acquisitive income
growth In the year of acquisition and the first
full financlal year following acqulsition based
on the fees generated by the individuals
joining the Group from the newly acquired
offices. Recruitment of individuals into the
acquired offices post acquisition s treated as
part of the organic growth of the business.
Due to the Group’s strategy to fully integrate
all acquisitions into the business within
approximately 12 months post acquisition,

at the end of the first full financial year
following acquisition the income from acquired
individuals is deemed to form part of the base
Group business and any future growth/decline
In revenues Impacts the organic growth of
the Graup.

Organic growth in revenue is achieved via
annual pricing reviews and recovery of time
recorded, cross selling of further services

to exlisting cllents, new client wins and
recruitment of senior fee earners who bring
with them a good quality client following and
capacilty to take on more work.

-, ‘Average full time equivalent

Acquisitive fee income growth
Acquisitions that completed during the year
contributed £2.1m to revenue for the year and
the full year impact of acquisitions made in
FY20 added £28.4m. Total income from the
FY20 acquisitions was £38.9m, the full year
impact being net of the income recognised in
FY20 for these acquisitions of £10.5m.

The acquisitions that completed In FY20 were
generating income of £45.9m per annum at
the point of acquilsition. We typically budget for
a circa 20% loss of income through intended
churn and streamiining of unprofitable work
streams giving a base expected fee income

of £36.7m. Therefore during the year the

FY20 acquisitions have outperformed
management’s expectations.

The number of full time equivalent fee earners
in the Group remained constant at 865 (FY20:
865). Underlying this was a combination of
successfully bringing on new recruits and
new jolners via acquisition, partially offset

by restructuring undertaken as a resuit of

the COVID-19 pandemic and normal course
performance management.

Organic fee income grawth

The overall movement in organic fee income for
the year shows a decline of 3% compared to
FY20. This reflects the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the macro economic enviranment
during the first quarter of the year, with the
organic growth result In H2 being significantly
higher than H1 {(-15%). However through a
combination of the increasing momentum
through the second half of the year, the
continued work on recovery of time, pricing
and the recruitment of high quality individuals
with a cllent following, the Group reported
strong organic growth of 10% for the second
half of the year (compared to H2 in FY20). As
the economy continues to recover from the
pandemic, management remain focussed

on maximising the organic opportunities
available to the Group through further focus

on develaping existing client relationships and
further recrultment of high callbre individuals
with a client following.

Although not a KPI in its own tight, the level of
fee income is a product of the number of fee
earners employed and the feas per fea earner
generated during the year, with the quality of
the people In the business being an important
driver of the latter. *

.- fee earners during the year

¢ 2020,622 -

" Feesperfeeearner ..~
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In summary

The Board is pleased with
the profitability during

the year which has been
achieved despite the
significantinvestmentin
the strengthening of the
management and support
staff function. Income

has grown as a result of
acquisitions during the
current and prior year and
strong organic growth was
achieved in the second
half of the year, reflecting
the continued onboarding
of high quadlity talent

and clients, as wellas
improving our pricing.

The ability of the Group to dellver such a strong
result is particularly pleasing in the context

of the significant impact of COVID-18 during
the year.

In addition to the above, the lower than
- - anticlpated lovels of net debt, due tothe . — -~ o —- .

Group's excellent cash management, places

the Group in a strang position to continue

to grow the business both organically and

through selective acquisition opportunities.

AR

Kate Lewis
Chief Financial Officer
14 July 2021




~Knights Group Holdings Plc

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board Is responsible for continually reviewing and assessing the principal risks facing the Group, both from a financial and
non-financial perspective and ensuring that controls are put in place to ensure the Group’s exposure to these risks are minimised.

Although tisks and uncertainties are formally reviewed annually by the Board, they are continually considered by the Board in all business and
strategic dscisions. The principal risks are identified as follows but the Board recognises that the nature and scope of risks that the Group is
exposed to may change and as such this list Is not intended to be exhaustive: !

Principal risk

44

Description

The Group provides, amongst other things,
legal, tax, and town planning services
which gives rise to the potential liability

for negligence, breach of regulatory duties
or other similar third party claims.

Such clalms have the potential to cause
financlal loss and could also negatively
impact the reputation of the Group which
ultimately could adversely affect the financial
performance of the Group.

The legal sector Is heavily regulated and as a
result, in addition to the normal government
guidelines and regulations that a business

is subject to, the Group Is also regulated by
the Solicitors Regulation Authority (SRA),
Information Commissioners Office (CO) and
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). Non-
compliance with any regulations could result
In reputational damage to the business and
may have financial implications,

Restrictions imposed by the Legal
Services Act 2007 (LSA)

Knights Group Holdings PLC is a Licensed
Body. The LSA places restrictions on the
holding of ‘restricted interests’ in Licensed
Body law firms. This restricts the maximum
shareholding that can be held, without prior
SRA approval, by a non-lawyer shareholder
to 10 percent of the issued share capital.

If a non-authorised shareholder were to
obtain a shareholding in excess of 10% this
would be classed as a criminal offence and
the SRA could force divestment or revoke
the Licensed Body status of the Group.

Employee misconduct and litigation

As a professional services provider, the
Group Is exposed to the risk that personnel
may engage in misconduct or improper use
of confidential client information.

Such misconduct could damage the Group’s
reputation or result In regulatory sanctions
and financlal damage.
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Mitigation

The Group malntains comprehensive professional llability insurance to
reduce or mitigate against any financlal risk from claims that may be made.

the business to ensure that they are handled effectively, and in line with
the Group's policies and procedures, Further investment has been made
into the claims and complaints team during the financial year in order to
strengthen this department as the buslness continues to grow.

Potential claims and complaints are dealt with by a central team within ;

The claims team works closely with insurers and the relevant regulatory :
bodies to proactively identify and minimise risk.

The processes and procedures implemented by the business are

continually reviewed and amended to take Into account up to date
guldefines and advice, and are communicated to the lawyers and advisers :
within the business. :

The Board considers the business’ professional dutles to its cilents to be
of paramount importance and conslders that the business has appropriate
processes and procedures in place and generally has a good claims history.

The Group has a strong Compliance and Regulatory team which regularly
monitor compliance with all necessary regulations. External advice Is taken
if required. The Board Is regularly updated on any regulatory developments
and any re-assessment of risk so that it can ensure that such matters are
fully considered In all business and strategic decisions.

The Compliance team works closely with the SRA to ensure there are

no breaches and reviews shareholding regularly in order to enable the
Compliance team to assist shareholders with sesking appropriate authority
from the SRA to the extent that their shareholding exceeds or is expected to
exceed 10%. The Board ensures that advisors and shareholders are aware
of this Issue.

The Group aims to ensure that colleagues are appropriately trained,
supervised and incentlvised to ensure their behaviour and actlivities do not
inadvertently result In poor outcomes for clients.

Knights adheres to an Information Security policy and processes that draw
on best practice from ISO 270001 and Cyber Essentials plus. This policy
Is delivered annually to all colleagues and new recrults on induction and
integration of an acquired business.

The Group takes data protection seriously and has In place robust data
protection procedures to ensure it is compliant with GDPR regulations.

The Compliance team undertake regular audit of files and the Group
maintains robust processes to mitigate the risk of fraudulent transactions.
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Description

The key areas of operational financial risk
for the Group, like all professional services
businesses, include:

» incomplete recording of time worked by
fee earners In the provision of services
to clients;

» incotract valuation of contract assets
(unbilled revenue); and

s fallure to collect monies owed to the
Group from [ts clients for work performed
an thelr behalf or expenses incurred in the
course of perfarming the work.

Ability to attract and retain personnel

The ability to attract and retain suitably
qualified and experienced personnel is critical
to the Group's success as colleagues within
the business constltute the principal assets
and contributors to revenue. There is strong
competition In the market place for such
personnel and any difficulties In attracting
and retaining such high quality personnel
could impact on the Group’s abllity to deliver
the financial forecasts.

Successlon planning and dependence
on key personnel

The Group's future success and strategy

is dependent on the performance and
retention of the Executive Directors and
senior management team. The loss of a key
individual or the Inability to expand the senior
management team as the business grows
could negatively Impact the reputational and
financial performance of the Group.

Mitigation

The Group prepares an annual budget on a bottom up basis. The budget
is phased on a monthly basis and includes specific assumptions relating
to number of fes earners; number of client hours per day and the recovery
rate for the work done.

Each month the actual performance of the Group Is compared to the
budget and the prior year period and material variances are investigated.
This control allows management to identify potential areas of risk and to
take appropriate corrective actions.

Contract assets are valued on a monthly basis by the responsible fee earner.
Once complete this valuation Is further reviewed to ensure it Is appropriate
and In accordance with expected recovery levels.

The Group's standard credit terms are 30 days from date of invoice.

The Group aims to collect all receivables in accordance with these terms.
Debtor days and aged unpaid bills are monitored continuously to ensure
that monies owed to the Group are collected on a timely basis. The Group
has a robust system in place for chasing overdue debts, the effectiveness
of which is demonstrated by Its Industry leading low levels of debtor days.

Continuous training and engagement is undertaken with all colleagues by
the senior management team regarding each of these areas of financlal risk.

The Group invests heavily In working to attract high quality personnel with
organic growth being a key focus for the Board.

The Group also offers competitive remuneration packages in its current
locatlons, flexible working conditions and a no targets team cuiture allowing
individuals to maximise thelr job satisfaction and work/life balance.

The Group enjoys low staff turnover and the Board strives to continuously
engage with its employees to ensure that employees understand the
drivers of the business. The Board supported by the leadership team seeks
to ensure that there is continuous reinforcement of the transparent and
collaborative culture despite the changing working environment as a result
of COVID-~19 with regular all staff, office, team and ane to one engagement.

Employee contracts include restrictive covenant provisions to protect the
business where possible.

During the year the Board has continued to work hard to expand and
strengthen the management team of the Group to ensure the management
structure In place is sufficient to support the future growth of the business.

In particular in the last year the Client Services team has grown with the
introduction of three new Directors with each Client Services Director being
responsible for the day to day management of two to three offices and
integration of acqulsitions within those offices that he or she oversees.

The operatlons team has been strengthened considerably in order to seek
to ensure that the execution and integration of acquisitions and the ongoing
focus on arganic growth and strengthening of the existing business can be
maintained with a wider team taking responsibllity for these activities.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Principal risk Description

A key part of the Group's strategy is to
expand the business through the acquisition
of culturally aligned, earnings enhancing
acquisitions, Detalled financial and legal due
diligence is carried out however there is the
risk that there are unforeseen issues that
adversely affect the reputation or forecast
financial performance of the Group.

If newly acquired businesses are not properly
allgned and Integrated this could have
negative impacts on the rest of the business
and cause reputational damage. Thers is also
the financial risk that the acquired business
does not perform as expected.

Current uncertalnty in the market as a result of
the global COVID-18 pandemic could result in
a general economic downturn which may have
a negative impact on the financlal performance
of the Group.

There are a large number of potential
competitors within the legal and professional
services market competing for the Group's
professionals and clients, any loss of which
could impact the financial performance of
the Group.
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Mitigation

The Group has an experienced In house acquisitions team that undertakes
a robust due diligence process with expert external advice being sought
where necessary, Warranties and disclosures are obtained from the sellers
as appropriate.

The Board recognises that cultural Integration s critical to the success of
every acquisition. During the year the acquisition and integration teams
have continued to be strengthened and the full Integration plan and
acquisition handbook utilised by the Group has been under continuous
review and refinement. The continual review of the acquisition and
integration process ensures that all acquisitions are fully integrated onto the
Group's operating platform as soon as possible and learnings from each
integration are captured to continuously improve the integration process
for all stakeholders. Cultural integration of the new colleagues is key at all
stages of the acquisition and integration process and continues to be a
focus with continuous reinforcement by the leadership team and the existing
employess of the business.

The Board belleves its exposure to both macro and micro environmental
factors s imited due to there being no reliance on any one practice area, client
or professional, The Group's continuous focus on cash collection results in it
having good headroom to ccunteract the impact of the lock down measures
taken by the government throughout the course of the last financial year.

As announced on 26 March 2020, the Group moved quickly to putin place
a number of prudent cost saving and efficlency measures in relation to the

- uncertainty created by COVID-19. Employee salaries were then reinstated with

effect from Novemnber 2020 once the Immediate effects of COVID-19 on the
business had stabilised demonstrating the benefit of a corporate structure in
which the senlor leadership were able to act with agllity whilst supporting its '
lawyers to remalin focused on deliveting value to cllents.

Management reviewed budgets monthly and Investigated material variances
and this together with regular focused conversations with clients, suppliers and
other key stakeholders helped inform when those cost saving measures could
be removed.

The Group expects that the number of law fims may decrease due to the
uncertainty within the market, an ever increasing regulatory burden and the
traditional partnership structure operated by many law firms resulting in such
firms having limited cash resources to counteract any decline Inrevenue as a
result of the lock down measures taken by the government over the course of
the last twelve months. The Board belleves that this positions the Group well to
attract talent from potential competitors.

The Board also believes by maintalning the high quality work and strong client
base, fawyers will continue to be attracted to Knights business.
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Principal risk
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Description

Knights' brand, and the reputation of the
Group and Its professionals are drlving factors
behind the success of the Group. Anything
that damages the Group’s brand or reputation
could negatively impact the future success of
the business.

Damage to the Knights brand could have
a detrimental impact reputationally which
uttimately could have financlal implications
for the Group.

The Group is heavily refiant onits
information technology systems for all
day to day processes. A major IT system

failure or a malicious attack, data breach -~ -

or virus could Impact the ability of the
Group to operate having bath reputational
and financial implications.

Financial Statements

Mitigation

Management have in place detailed processes to ensure that all work Is
undertaken [n accordance with the Cade of Conduct and Professional
Ethics. Regular internal audits are undertaken to identify areas of non-
compliance and the Group has employment policies and procedures in
place to deal with such Issues. The employment contracts for all employees
also contain appropriate provisions in regard to the standards expected and
preservation of confidential information.

An apen, candld and non-hierarchical culture is nurtured whereby all colleagues
are expected to behave in accordance with the internal processes and
standards in place.

The Group takes appropriate steps to protect its Inteflectual property rights.
Corporate profile Is & key part of the Board's strategy and external public
relations advisers are engaged to assist where necessary.

The Group’s systems have a highly resillent design with minimal single points
of failure.

They are supported by appropriately qualified and experienced individuals .
and third parties. External expert advice and support is sought when necessary.
Critical systems fall and recovery is regularly tested and no Issues have

been Identified.

The Board lialses regutarly with their key suppliers to continue to develop
and improve the operating systems utilised by the Group.

Knights' Informatlon Security Awareness training helps colleagues to identify
and prevent fraudvmisuse of information and this training is regularly updated
to ensure that where certain risks are increased as a result of environmental
factors (such as cybercrime in light of COVID-18), the business and colleagues
are aware of any heightened risk. Beyond training Knights' candid culture and
team ethos delivers a supportive high communication environment which
ensures colleagues can ask questions and be guided as required.

This strategic report and the information referred to herein was approved on behalf of the Board on 14 July 2021.

Q Wlas

Kate Lewis

Chief Financlal Officer
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Chairman’s Introduction

The Board recognises the importance of high
standards of corporate governance as the basis
for promoting long-term growth for the benefit
of all of the Group’s stakeholdetrs.

As Chalrman, | am responsible for leading principles set out in the Corporate Governance
the Board to ensure that it has in place the Code for small and mid-sized companies
strategy, people, structure and cutture to published by the Quoted Companies Alliance
deliver value to its stakeholders, and for in April 2018 {the QCA Code) as the basis of
ensuring that the governance arrangements its governance framework.

that the Group has in place are proportionate
and apprapriate for size and the constitution
of the Board and the complexity of the
business. In accordance with the AIM rules
the Group has elected to comply with the

The underlying principle of the QCA Code is
to “ensure the Company is managed in an
efficient, effective and entrepreneurlal manner
for the benefit of all sharaholders over the
longer term”.

Governance principle Compliant Explanation

Establish a strategy and
business model which
promotes long-term value
for shareholders

Seek to understand and
meet shareholder needs
and expectaticns

Take into account wider

stakeholder and social
responsbilities and
their implications for
long-term success

Embed effective risk
management, considering
both opportunities and
threats; throughout

the organisation

As a Board, we are committed to providing

the leadership required to ensure that the
culture that Is so integral to the success of the
business is embedded within the business and
work hard to engage with employees and other
key stakeholders to ensure that this healthy
corporate culture continues to be delivered
through open and honest dialogue and we are
delighted to set out below how we comply

with the QCA Code.

Further reading
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Governance principle Compliant Explanation Further reading

Maintain the Board as a The Board has three established Gommittees for Audit
weli-functioning, balanced > d
team led by the Chair

Ensure that between
them the Directors have
the necessary
up-to-cate expetrience,
skills and capabilities

Evaluate Board performance
based on clear and

relevant objectives, seeking
continuous improvement

Promole a corporate culture
that is based on ethical
values and behaviours

Maintain governance
structures and processes
that are fit for purpose and
suppoit good declsion-
making by the Board

Communicate how the
Company is governed and is
performing by maintaining a
dialogue with sharcholders
and other relevant
stakeholders

S et e
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Corporate Governance Statement

Board Composition

The Board comprises six Directors, threa

of whom are Executive Directors and thres
of whom are Non-Executive Directors,
reflecting a blend of different experiences and
backgrounds further details of which are set
out on page 49. The Board believes that the
composition of the Board brings a desirable
range of skills and experience in light of the
Group’s challenges and opportunities as

a public company, while at the same time
ensuring that no individual (or a small group
of individuals) can dominate the Board's
decision-making.

Whilst the Chairman has a considerable
length of service and previous Interest in the
Group, It has been determined that in terms
of interest, perspective and judgement he
remalns independent and Is supported by
the two additional independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for delivering

the Group's strategy and for its overall
management of the business and meets
regularly to review, formulate and approve the
Group’s strategy, budgets, corporate actions
and to constructively challenge the Executive
Directors who are responsible for the day-to
day running of the Group. The operation of
the Board is documented in a formal schedule
of matters reserved for its approval which Is
reviewed annually to ensure that it remains
current in light of changes to legisiation,

the size and growth of the Group and
changes within the sectar that the Group
operates within.

Directors are expected to attend all mestings
of the Board and of the Committees on which
they sit, and to devote sufficlent time to
enable them to fulfill their roles as Directors.
In circumstances where Directors are unable
to attend any meeting they are provided all
papers to be considered at that meeting and
can provide any comments in advance of any
meeting for consideration by the rest of the
Board. The table below detalls the Directors
attendance at scheduled monthly Board and
Committee meetings in the financial year
2020/2021,

Name Board* Remuneration Audit
Balbinder Johal 13/13 - -
David Beech 12113 - -
Jane Pateman 13/13 5/5 3/3
Kate Lewls 13/13 - -
Richard King 13/13 - -
Stephen Dolton** 10/11 4/4 11
Gillian Davies 272 171 i

* During the year additional mestings ware held principaily to approve the terms of tha acqulsitions undertaken within the perfod.

** Stephen Dolton reslgned as a Director an 17 March 2021 and Gllilan Davies was appainted on the same date.

In addition to the scheduled meetings the
Board holds periodic strategy days to review
the strategic priorities and growth opportunities
for the business. The next strategy day Is
expected to be scheduled in September.

The Company Secretary supports the Board
with compliance and governance matters

and ensures that all Directars are aware of
their right to have any concerns minuted, to
ask questions regarding ongoing governance
requlrements and to seek independent advice
at the Group’s expense where appropriate.

Committees

The Group has established an audit committee
(the Audit Committee) and a remuneration
committee (the Remuneration Committee)

with formally delegated duties, authority, and
responsibilities, and written terms of reference.
These terms of reference are kept under review
to ensure that they remain appropriate and
compliant with changes to legislation.

Each Committee is comptised of the Non-
Executive Directors (excluding the Chair} with
Giliian Davles chairing the Audit Committee
and Jane Pateman chalring ihe Remuneration
Committee. Each Committee has unrestricted
access to employees of the business or
external advisors to meetings, to the extent
that they conslder it necessary in relation to
any specific matter under conslderation. Both
Committees have sought to utilise external
advice with the Remuneration Committee
llalsing with FIT Remuneration Consultants
LLP for the purposes of advising on the terms
of the performance share awards granted

to certain PDMR's within the business and
benchmarking executive pay, and the Audit
Committee meeting with RSM UK Audit LLP,
the Group’s auditors, both with and without the
presence of Executive Directors and members
of the finance team.

The Group has elected not to constitute a
dedicated nomination committee, instead
retalning such decision-making with the
Board as a whole given the size and nature
of the Board composition. The Board has
used external advisors to intraduce any other
individuals with skills that the Board believe
may bs required In delivering its overall
strategy and this was how Gillian Davies was
Identified to act as Non-Executive Director

in March 2021,

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for:

P reviewing the performance of the Executive
Directora and malting recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to their
employment and remuneration; and

® the granting of share options under the
Group's Omnibus Plan or any other share
scheme which it may adopt.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible for:

B ensuring the financial performance of
the Group is properly reported on; and

®» monitoring the Internal controls
of the business.

Each of the Committees meets regularly and
at least twice a year and the Chief Financial
Officer also attends meetings of the Audit
Commilttes by invitation to discuss any
matters of relevance. Details of the reports
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee can be found on pages 54 and
58 respectively of this Report.

The Board has also constituted a disclosure
committee (the Disclosure Committee) to
enfarce the Knights Group's inslde information
policy and ensure compliance with the Market
Abuse Regulatlon (MAR) and the AIM Rules for
Companles in raspent of inslde information.

Board effectiveness and culture

The Board conslders the evaluation of its
performance to be an integral part of corporate
governance {o ensure it has the necessary
skills, experience and abllitles to fulfil its
responsibliities. The Internal evaluation process
undertaken seeks to identify and address
opportunitles for improving the parformance

of the Board and to solficit honest, genuine and
constructive feedback. The Board considers
the evaluation process Is best carried out
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internally at this stage of the Company's
development however this decision shall
be kept under review.

In undertaking its internal review process in
particular the following matters are reviewed
at least annually or more frequently should
the need arise:

® the Board's composition in terms of skills,
experience and balance;

P the independence of the Non-Executive
‘Directors;

P Board operationel effectiveness and
decision making;

B conduct of meetings and effective sharing
of infarmatlon and communication amongst
the members of the Board,;

B engagement with shareholders and
other stakeholders;

B Director contribution; and

D the Board's strategy and its implementation.

The Chairman Is responsible for ensuring

the internal review process is appropriate for
the business’ needs, and deals with matters
raised throughout the review process to ensure
that constructive feedback is provided and

if required external support can be made
avallable in respect of any areas that may
require improvement.

Following the review undertaken in 2020/2021
the following steps were taken in response
the feedback provided at the review:

» FIT Remuneration Consultants provided
training to the Board to ensure all Board
members have a clear understanding of
market expectations in respect of the role,
scope and authority of the Remuneration
Committee; and

® more regular strateglc meetings were held
throughout the year in order to consider
the opportunities and risks ta the business
in light of the changing economic climate
resulting from the impact of COVID-18 in
the legal sector.

The Board carries a breadth of experience in
sectars outside of the legal services market
with strengths aligned with enhancing Knights'
cutture, Following the evaluation undertaken
during the financlal year 2020/2021, the

Board is satisfied that it has a good balance
of experience and skills allowing for both
collaborative working and robust challenge.

Internal controls and risk management

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management activities. These activitles
are designed to identify, assess, respond to,
report on and monitor the tisks that might
threaten our abllity to achleve the Group's
objectives within its risk appetite.

The Group has implemented policies on
internal control and corporate governance.
Some of these policies have been prepared
in order to ensure that:

®» proper buslness records are maintained and
reported on, which might reasonably affect
the conduct of the business;

Corporate Governance

B monitoring procedures for the performance
of the Group and emerging risks to the
business are presented to the Board at
regular Intervals;

P budget proposals are submitted to the Board
no later than one month before the start of
each financial year albeit this policy has been
adapted during the COVID-19 pandemic
given the evolving impact of the pandemic on
the economy and in this financlal year those
budgets have had to be updated after the
conclusion of the financial year to include the
acquisition of Keebles LLP which completed
on 11 June 2021;

B accounting policies and practices suitable
{or the Group’s activities are followed in
preparing the financial staternents; and

P the Group is provided with general
accounting, administrative, secretarial
services and external advice and audit
as may reasonably be required.

The Group continues to review its system

of Internal control to ensure compliance with
best practice, whilst also having regard to its
size and the resources available. Details of
the Group’s principal risks and how these
are addressed can be found on page 44

of this Report.

As might be expected In a business such

as Knights, a key control In the business Is

the day to day supervision of the Executlve
Directors supported by the senfor management
team who maintain responsibility for key

areas of the operations. The adequacy of the
systems for internal control Is also reviewed

by the Audit Committee on an annual basis
and compllance Issues are discussed at each
Board meeting in order to ensure that any risls
arising in a changing and evolving environment
can be mitigated and/or eliminated.

Knights has an established buslness-continuity
plan which has regular input from Legal,
Compliance, IT, HR, Finance, Facilities, Public
Relations and Client Services. This has ensured
that the business has been able to quickly
implement steps to ensure that in fight of the
ongoing pandemic alt of our stakeholders
needs have been considered and the ability

to continue to support our clients has bean
maintained without disruption.

Relations with stakeholders

The Board is aware that the long term
success of the Group is rellant upon its
employees, clients, shareholders, suppliers,
communities and regulators. As such the
Group Is committed to bullding a sustainable
buslness that enables all its stakeholders to
thrive: minimising the Group’s Impact on the
environment, looking after employees and
communitles and operating ethically with the
highest levels of governance to ensure that the
Group’s continued growth in accordance with
its strategy reflects its stakeholders needs and
expectations as well as those of the Group.

In order to achieve these alms the Group's
senior management teams maintain regular
communications with colleagues and
encourage them to share feedback and to
allow the candid flexible culture to thrive. The
level of communication with employees has
only increased during the COVID-19 situation
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with senior management hosting regular calls
with team leaders, the CEO holding several
‘all employees' webinars and encouragement
of regular communication within teams within
the business.

The Group also encourages regular feedhack
from its clients and tracks its net promoter
score to indicate the willingness of clients

to recommend the Group's services. Based

on client responsss in the week commencing
15 February 2021 the Group's het promoter
score was +75 out of +100 which is considered
above average amongst its peer group. The
Group endeavors to ensure that clients are
met with regularly to canvas thelr opinion

on the service levels received and to allow
them to provide any feedback as to how

these relationships and/or services can be
improved. The Group has a strong track record
of retaining deep client relationships with some
of these relationships remaining in place for in
excess of 25 years across a number of service
lines provided within the Group’s business.

The Group's business places a strong
reliance on technology and consequently
the Group works closely with its practice
management system provider to enhance
the practice management platform for the
benefit of the Group which in turn benefits
our supplier’s technology.

The Group continues to work hand In hand
with its regulator, the Solicitors Regulation
Authority (SRA) and its complaints handling
body, the Legal Ombudsman, in ensuring that
it abides by its professlonal and reguiatory
duties and obligations in an open and
transparent manner.

The Board s proud of the progress it has made
in enhancing the sustainability of its operations.
Jane Pateman is the Director on the Board with
overall responsibility for Environmental, Social
and Governance strategy. Further details of the
steps that Knights has taken to ensure it can
uphold these principles are detalled on page
23 of this Report.

The Executive Directors meet with the
institutional shareholders both on an adhoc
basis and on a more structured basis around
the publication of the Group's interim and
end of year results. General information about
the Group Is avallable on the website at
www.Knightsplc.com but both the Chalr and
Gillian Davies as Senior Independent Director
are available to discuss any matter any
shareholder may wish to raise if required.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM of the Group
will take place on the 21st
September 2021 and the
Notice of Annual General
Meeting which includes
the associated resolutions
accompanying this
Annual Report.
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| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 April 2021.

The Remuneration Committee comprises me as Chair of the Committee and Giltian Davies who is the other current member of the Conmmittee.
We are both Independent Non-Executive Directors, Steve Dolton was also a member of the Remuneration Committee during the year until he

stepped down from the Board in March 2021,

Whilst COVID-19 has resulted in a significant amount of economic uncertainty, both nationally and internationally, our resuits demonstrate the
fundamental resilience of our businesses and our disciplined and effective response. We are proud of the hard work and commitment of our

colleagues during this unprecedented period, helping to ensure that we continue to provide our clients with outstanding service and support.
Our inilial response to the pandemic was one of prudence, suspending dividend payments and temporarily reducing all Board members’ salaries
by 30% and reductions for all staff whose salaties were £30,000 or more by 10% (or to £30,000 wheve the reduction would have taken them
below £30,000) with effect from 1 April 2020. Salaries of all staff and all Board memisers were reinstated on 1 November 2020 and since then
the Remuneration Committee has not deemed it appropriate to take any further measures. The business has completed a full pay review process
for alt staff ahead of the coming financial year.

Jane Pateman
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Responsibilities

The Remuneration Committee reviews the performance of the
Executive Directors and makes recommendations to the Board

on matters relating to thelr remuneration and terms of service.

The Remuneration Commit:ee also makes recommendations to the
Board on proposals for the granting of share options and other equity
incentives pursuant to any employee share option scheme or equity
incentive plans in operation from time to time. During the year this
included ths grant of restricted share awards and long term incentive
plans to employees within the Group.

The Remuneration Committee meets on a planned basls and met
5 times during the year.

In exerclsing their role, the Remuneration Committee has ragard to the

recommendations put forward in the QCA Code and, where appropriate,

the QCA Remuneration Committee Gulde and assoclated guldance,

During the year FIT Remuneration Consuttants LLP (FIT) provided

the Committee with external remuneration advice, including providing
areport to benchmark remuneration packages and on all aspects

of remuneration policy for the Executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is satisfied that the advice received was objective and
independent. FIT Is a member of the Remuneration Consuitants
Group and the voluntary code of conduct of that body is designed

to ensure that objective and independant advice is given to
Remuneration Committees.

Our performance and link to remuneration

As summarised In the Chairman’s Statement on page 6, the Group
continued to grow both organically and through targeted acquisitions
over the year. The Group performed well with a strong financial
performance In FY21 H2 as the Group’s momentum recovered after
the initial impact of COVID-18.

As disclosed last year an annual bonus arrangement Is in place for
Richard King with a maximum apportunity of 36% of salary and an
annual bonus arrangement was also Introduced for Kate Lewis for
the 30 Aprll 2021 financlal year with a maximum opportunity of 35%
of salary,

The Intention was for the bonus arrangements to be based on

achievement of financial and non-financial measures set at the beginning

of the financlal year aligned to the key annual goals supporting the
Group's strategy.

However, due to the uncertainty around what the full impact of the
pandemic on performance was going to be, it was agreed to assess
final performance outcomes against a robust performance in the round

framawork for both the CFO and COO following the year end. The Group

achieved analyst consensus for revenue and underlying PBT, executed
and Integrated three acquisitions whilst operating remotely during the

COVID-19 pandemic, Efficlency improvements were also achieved within

the business In respect of the operating systems utilised by the Group.
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In light of the staff pay reduction during the year and the suspension
of dividends, the Cammittes felt that although the achievements were
strong In the clrcumstances, it would be appropriate to moderate the
bonus outcome. Therefore, bonus awards of 20% of salary for Kate
Lewis and 17.5% of salary for Richard King have been made.

Long-term incentives (Performance Share Awards) were granted

to Executive Directors In July 2020 and are intended to be awarded
annually to the Executive Directors. Awards are subject to a 3 year
performance period with vesting dependent-on underlying EPS
performance. The vesting of the July 2020 award is dependent on
underlying EPS performance in the financial year ending 30 April 2023,
with 25% vesting for underlying EPS of 24.19p, 60% vesting for EPS
of 25.46p and Increasing to 100% vesting for EPS of 26.73p. A sliding
scale operates between these polnts. In addition, Performance

Share Awards were made to key members of the leadership team
during the year.
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Executive Director remuneration

Each of the Executlve Directars has a service agreement with the Group.
Each service contract may be terminated by either party serving six
months’ written notice. At its discretion, the Group may make a payment
in lieu of such notice or place the Executive Director on garden leave.
The service contracts also contaln provisions for early termination in

the event of various scenarios and contain typical restrictive covenants.

An independent benchmarking exercise was undertaken during the year
for the roles of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Operating Officer agalnst a group of similar sized AtV companles.
This review confirmed to the Remuneration Committee that:

B> the salary levels are below the tower quartile position for ail
Executive Directors;

B the majority of companies offer an annual bonus arrangement
for all Executive Directors;

B the median level of maximum banus opportunity is 100% of salary;

B the majority of the Executive Directors in the comparator companies
participate In long-term incentive arrangements;

B the median face value of LTIP awards Is in the range of 70%-75% of
salary, In line with the 75% of salary level Performance Share Awards
awarded to the CFO and COO In July 2020; and

® the low salaries combined with the no ot low incentive levels of the
Executive Directors, results In all the positions being below the lower
quartile pasition on an an-target total remuneration paosition.

The Committee conslders that alignment between Group strategy and
the remuneration of its Executive Directors is critical and as such there is
a need to provide market competitive remuneration, Incentivise Executive
Directors to achleve the annual business pian and the longer-term
strateglc objectives of the Group and to ensure that Executive Directors’
interests are aligned with those of shareholders. The Committee has
therefore made a number of changes to the remuneration packages

of the Executive Directors as detailed further below.

The key remuneration components of executive packages are
summarised as follows:

Base salary: The salary of an Executive Director will be reviewed annually
by the Remuneration Committee without any obligation to increase such
salary. The current base salaries are shown below. As noted above the
salaries of the Executive Directors were temporarily reduced by 30%

with effect fram 1 April 2020 and were reinstated on 1 November 2020.

Financial Statements

David Beech: Whilst David's salary for the financial year ended 30 April
2021 was £250,000, it is recognised that a market-standard salary for an
aqulvalent CEO of an AIM listed company with a similar market capital

of the Group is £325,000 (‘CEO Reference Salary’) and it has been
agreed that this salary would become payable when the Remuneration
Committee agrees that it had become appropriate for the Group to do so.

David’s salary was increased to £300,000 with effect from 1 May 2021 in
order to bring his salary closer to the CEQ Reference Salary, with a view
to increasing David's salary so that it is in line with the GEO Reference
Salary by 1 May 2022 if the Remuneration Committee agrees thatitls
appropriate far the Group to do so. Whilst the Committee recognised
that this was a significant increase In percentage terms this was fargely
an historic issue that required addressing and was determined to

be approptiate considering the individual’s strong performance and
leadership of the business. The Committee also acknowledges that the
CEO doses not receive awards under the Gompany's share plans due

to his shareholding.

Kate Lewis: Whilst Kate’s salary for the financlal year ended 30 April
2021 was £175,000, it is recognlsed that a market-standard salary for an
equivalent GFO of an AlM fisted company with a simllar market capital of
the Group is £240,000 (‘CFO Reference Salary’) and that this salary would
become payable when the Remuneration Gommittee agreed that it had
become appropriate for the Group to do so.

Kate's salary was Increased to £220,000 with effect from 1 May 2021

in order to bring her salary closer to the GFO Reference Salary and

with a view to Increasing Kate's salary so that it is in line with the CFO
Reference Salary by 1 May 2022 if the Remuneration Committee agrees
that it is appropriate for the Group to do so. Whilst the Commiittee
recognised that this was a significant increase in percentage terms

this was determined to be appropriate considering continulng strong
performance and contribution.

Richard King: Whilst Richard’s salary for the financlal year ended 30 April
2021 was £200,000 it is recognised that a market-standard salary for an
equivalent COO of an AlM listed company with a similar market capital

of the Group is £240,000 ('COO Reference Salary’) and that this salary
wauld become payable when the Remuneration Committee agreed that
it had become appropriate for the Group to do so.

Riohard’s ealary wae Increaced to £220,000 with effect from 1 May

2021 in order to bring his salary closer to the COO Reference Salary

with a view to increasing Richard's salary so that it Is In line with the

CFO Reference Salary by 1 May 2022 if the Remuneration Committee
agrees that It Is appropriate for the Group to do so. Whiist the Committee
recognised that this was a significant increase in percentage terms this
was determined to be appropriate considering both strong performance
and contribution.
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Pension and benefits

Anclliary benefits include the reimbursement of all reasonable and
authorised out of pocket expenses, access to healthcare bensfits,
a wellbelng support platform and 2 x salary life cover. The Group also
contributes to pensicn plans or as an additional cash supplement

In respect of the Executive Directors at a rate of 3% in line with the
automatic enrolment guidelines and which mirrors the contribution
across all employees, positioned competitively to the market in which
the Group operates.

Annual bonus

A plan was operated for Richard King and Kate Lews for the 30 April
2021 financlal year with a maximum opportunity of 35% of salary with
performance criterla based on profit-based and strategic targets as
set by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
intends to agree a plan for sach of the Executive Directors for the

30 April 2022 financial year with a maximum opportunity of 75% of salary
with performance criteria based on financlal and strategic targets aligned
to the business strategy as set by the Remuneration Committee. The
bonus structure will consist of a mix of financial and strategic targets, with
& 70% weighting for financial performance and 30% for strategic targets.

A discretionary share plan, the Omnibus Plan:

Share-based awards may be granted In 3 forms as considered
appropriate by the Remuneration Committee:

- Restricted Stock Awards: Awards granted in the form of nil
or nominal cost share options, subject to time-based vesting
requirements and continued employment within the Group. No
performance conditlons will apply to Restricted Stock Awards.

- Performance Share Awards: Awards granted In the form of
nli or nominal cost share options, whereby vesting is subject to
satisfaction of performance conditions and continued employment
within the Group.

- Share Options: Awards granted In the form of a share option with
an exercise price equal to the market value of an Ordinary Share at
the time of grant, subject to continued employment within the Group.
Share options may or may not be sublect to performance conditions.

The Intention Is to grant Performance Share Awards to Richard King
and Kate Lewls In July 2021 over shares with a value equal to 100%

of salary. The awards will have a 3-year performance period with vesting
dapendent on underlying EPS performance.

Non-Executive Directors

Bal Johal, was appointed Non-Executive Chairman of the Group by
letter of appointment dated 1 June 2018. The appointment is subject

1o re-election at the Annual General Meeting and thersafter is terminable
on 3 months’ notice by either the Group or Bal. The annual fee payable
to the Chairman was unchanged throughout the year at £60,000.

The other Non-Executlve Directors were appointed subject to re-election
at the Annuat General Meeting and are terminable on one months’ notice
by either party.

The current fee payable for services as a Non-Executive Director was
unchanged throughout the year at £40,000 with an additional £10,000
payabie to the senior independent Non-Executive Director. Gilllan Davies
was appolnted as senior independent Non-Executive Director on

17 March 2021.

As noted above these feas were temporatily reduced by 30% with effect
from 1 April 2020 and reinstated on 1 November 2020.

As it is listed on AlM, the Group Is not required to provide all of
the information included in this Report. However, in the interests
of transparency this has been included as a voluntary disclosure.
The Report is unaudited.

| do hope that this Report clearly explains our approach to
remuneration and enables you to appreclate how it underpins
our business growth strategy.

)\

e
Jane Pateman
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
14 July 2021
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Directors’ emoluments

Fees/ Benefits Bonus Pension 2021 Total 2020 Total

basic salary

£000 - £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Executive Directors
David Beech 212 - - - 212 231
Kate Lewis 149 - 35 189 145
Richard King? 170 - 35 210 197
Non-Executive Directars
Balbinder Johal 51 - - - 51 51
Steve Dolton? 37 - - - 37 45
Jane Pateman® 34 - - - 34 39
Gillian Davies* 6 - ) 6 -
Aggregate 659 - 70 10 739 708
Note

' Richard King was appointed a Non-Executive Diractor of the Group\on 1 June 2018 and subsequently appointed Chiaf Operating Officer on 15 January 2019,

2 Steva Dolton was appolnted a Non-Executive Diractor of the Group an 1 June 2018 and resigned on 17 March 2021,

3 Jane Pateman was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Group on 18 January 2019,

4 Glilan Davies was appolnted a Non-Execuitive Director of the Group on 17 March 2021.

Long-term incentives

Type of award  Date of grant Number Exercise price Fair value Performance Vesting date
of shares per share atgrant conditions

Kate Lewis Restticted 29June 2018 7 241379 T £0.002 £350,000' N/A June 2021
Stock Award .

Kate Lewis Performance 24 July 2020 30,667 £0.002 £131,000 EPS5 July 2023
Share Award

Richard King Performance 29 March 2019 63,352 £0,002 £183,750° EPS3 July 2022

) . Share Award - - - . . - - - - R - - -

Richard King Performance 24 July 2020 35,115 £0.002 £150,000 EPS5 July 2023

Share Award

Note
1 Based on PO price of £1.45,

2 Based on 3-day average share price of £2.600482,

3 3.year performance period with vasting depandent on underlying EPS performance in financlal year 30 April 2022 EPS, 25% vesting for EPS of 20p and increasing on a stralght-fine basis

to 100% vasting for EPS of 25p.

4 Based on 3-day average share pHce of £4.2717.

& 3.year performance period with vesting dependent on underlying EPS performanca in financlal year 80 April 2023 with 25% vesting for EPS of 24.18p and 60% vesting for EPS of 25.46p
Increasing to 100% vesting for EPS of 26.73p. A sliding scale operates between these points,
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Audit Committee report

Dear Shareholder,

1 am pleased to present the Audit Committee
report for the year ended 30 April 2021.

The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that the financial
performance of the Group is properly reported and reviewed. lis role

includes monitoring the integrity of the financial statements (including

annual and interim accounts and results announcements), reviewing

risk management and internal control systems, reviewing any changes

to accounting policies, reviewing and monitoring the extent of the
non-audit services undertaken by RSM UK Audit LLP (RSM) and

overseeing the relationship with them, In addition the Committee has
considered the impact of COVID-19 particularly around Going Concern.

Gillian Davies
Chair of the Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee and attendance

The Committee consists of two independent Non-Executive Directors: myself (as Chair) and Jane Pateman. Kate Lewis,
the Chief Financial Officer and other Executive Directors may attend the Committee meetings by invitation.

During the year the previous Chair of the Audit Committes, Steve Dolton,
resigned as a Non-Executive and Audit Committee Chair on 17 March
2021 to pursue other interests. | was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director and Audit Committee chair on 17 March 2021, The Committee
met three times during the pericd and attendance of the members Is

shown on page 52 of the Corporate Governance Report. The Committee
has also held discussions with RSM, without Executive Directors being
present to discuss any issues arising from their audit work, Neither the
Graup nor its Directors have any relationships that impalr the external
auditor’s independences.

Duties
The maln duties of the Audit Committee during the year included:

1 Monitoring the integrity of financlal statements

The Committee reviswed both the interim and the annual financlal
statements as well as related results announcements made as
part of thelr disciosure, This process included a review of any
Judgements made In preparing the results, ensuring sufficlent
attention was given to matters where significant estimation

« was Involved. This Includes revenue recognition, accaunting for
acquisitions and the use of alternative performance measures
which are used to enhance shareholders understanding of the
Group’s financial performance.

In consideration of the significant accounting judgements used,
the Committee reviewed the recommendations of the Chief
Financlal Officer and received reports from RSM an their findings.

These judgements are as follows:

®» Revenue recognition policy
The Group recognises revenue on legal and professional services
provided based on the methodology set out in IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Gustomers, There is estimation involved in
establishing the value that will eventually be recovered on contracts.

Management use the expected outcomes as at the period end to
establish the estimated value and compare to histeric outcomes to
ensure reasonableness. Estimates are updated as work progresses
and any changes in revenue recognition as a result of a change in
clrcumstances Is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
income for that year.
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In relation to any contingent matters, where the likelthood of
success is less than highly probable, the value recognised in
contract assets Is further reduced to reflect this uncertainty.

The Committes considers that the approach adopted by
management is prudent and minimises the risk of overstatement
of Income resulting in future revenue write-offs.

» Accounting for acquisitions

During the year the Group made four acquisitions. Accounting for
these acquisitions involves significant judgement to determine the
allocation of purchase price, the treatment of deferred consideration,
assessment of the requirement for any fair value adjustments,
identification and valuation of the Intangible assets arlsing, and
estimation of the useful lives of these assets. Having reviewed
management’s approach and the resulting accounting treatment,
the Committee is satlsfied that the approach adopted is reasonable
and fairly represents the underlying transactions.

P Goodwill and intangible assets impairment

At the year end there is £80m recognised in the financlal statements
relating to goodwill and intanglble assets from both current and prior
year acquisitions. On an annual basis management need to satisfy
themselves that the carrying value of the goodwill is supportable by
future expected returns from the Group via a detalled impairment
review at the period end and that there are no Indications that the
carrying value of the intanglble assets has been impaired. Having
reviewed management's impalrment revisws and conclusions, the
Committee Is satisfled that the carrying value Is supportable and

the assets do not need to be impaired.
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P Use of alternative performance measures
The Board uses a number of alternative performance measures
to assess business performance. A key driver for the Board
is management of its net debt position. A key focus of the Board
is the underlying profitability of the business therefore the Board
uses measuras based on underlying profitability of the Group,
excluding one off and non undetlying items to monitor the growth
in underlying profitability.

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee is satisfied that this is a reasonable measure
to use to review profitability of the underlying business and all non :
underlying costs are appropriately classified as non underying in !
the accounts.

Risk management and internal controls

As desctibed on page 30 of the Strategic Report and page 53 of
the Corporate Governance Statement, the Board has established
a framework of risk management and Internal control systems,
policles and procedures. The Committee Is responsible for
reviewing the risk management and internal control framewark,
ensuring that it operates effectively. The Committee is satisfied that
the internal controls currently in place are sufficient and operating
effectively for a business of this size.

At present the Group does not have an internal audit function and
the Committes believes that in view of the current size and nature
of the Group’s business, management is able to derive sufficlent
assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls and risk management procedures without a formal
internal audit function. This will be kept under review as the :
business evalves, )

3 Changes to accounting policies
The Committes Is satisfied that there are no changes in accounting
policles impacting the reparted results for the year.

4 Reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by RSM
The Committee monitors the provision of non-audit services by
RSM to ensure this has no impact on their independence.

During the year RSM provided prohibited services under the FRC's
Ethical Standards guidance relating to the provision of an AP link
for making tax digital for one month. Once identified provision of

this service ceased immediately. Fees in relation to this service were
£175. The Committee Is satisfied that the provision of this service
has no impact on the independence of the audit team.

5 Overseeing the relationship with RSM
The Committes considers a number of areas when reviewing
the external auditor relationshlip, namely their performance
in discharging the audit, the scope of the audit and terms of
engagement, thelr independence and objectivity and remuneration,

The external auditor prepares a plan for its audit of the full year
financial statements which Is presented to the Committee before
the commencement of the audit.

The plan sets out the scope of the audit, areas of perceived
significant risk whers wark will be focused, the audit timetable and
any praposed remuneration. This plan is reviewed and agreed by
the Committee in advance of the detalled audit work taking place.

Following its external audit process, RSM presented its findings
to the Committee for discussion. No major areas of concern were
identified by RSM during the year.

The Committes has confirmed that it Is satlsfled with the
independence, objectlvity and effectiveness of RSM UK Audit
LLP and has recommended to the Board that the auditors be
reappointed. There will be a resolution to reappolint the auditars
at the forthcaming AGM.

6 Application of IFRSs, and hew and forthcaming standards
There are no significant IFRS's yet to be adopted that the
Committee expects to be relevant or have a signfficant impact
on the financial statements.

(5 Pom
Gillian Davies

Chalr of the Audit Committee
14 July 2021
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in
submitting their report and the
financial statements of Knights

Group Holdings plc.

Principal activities and business review

The principal activity of the Group Is that of the provislon of legal and
professional services. The principal activity of the Company is that of

a holding company. The results for the year and the financial position

of the Group are disclosed in the detalled financial statements Included
on pages 66-113. A review of the performance of the business during
the year and potential future developments is included in the Chalrman’s
report, CEQ’s report and the financial review.

Dividends

The Board has decided that it will not be proposing a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 30 April 2021. No interim dividend was
paid during the year. The Board intends to resume paying dividends
In respect of the year ended 30 April 2022 In accordance with the
previous dividend pollcy.

Future developments

The Board plans to continue to Invest In technology, recrultment and
acquisitions within both the legal and non-legal sectors to support the
Group's strategy of becoming the leading legal and professional services
business outside London. Further detalils of the Group’s future strategy
can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 16-17.

Post balance sheet events

As at the date of signing the accounts, there are no significant Post
Balance Sheets Events that require any further disclosure.

Directors and their Interest in the shares of the parent company
The following Directars have held office since 1 May 2020,

Name Number of shares %
DA Beech 16,800,000 20.34
KL Lewis 2,820 -
RA King 105,460 0.13
B8S Johal 210,000 0.25
S Dolton {resigned 17 March 2021) - -
J Pateman 10,000 0.01

G Davies {(appointed 17 March 2021) - -
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Substantial shareholdings

As far as the Directors are aware the only notifiable haldings equal to
or in excess of 3% of the total issued share capital as at 30 April 2021
were as detalled below:

Name Number of shares %
David Beech 16,800,000 20.34
Octopus Investments 11,067,812 13.4
Jupiter Asset Management 8,098,366 9,80
Canaccord Genuity Wealth 4,475,000 5.42
Management (inst)

Columbla Threadneedle Investments 3,970,155 4.81
Aegon Asset Management UK 3,475,535 4.21
Invesco 2,681,175 3.12

Directors' indemnity provisions

During the periad, and up ta the date of approval of the financlal
statements, the Group purchased and maintained Directors and
Offlcers Liability Insurance for all of the Directors and Officers to
indemnify them from any losses that may arise in connection with
the execution of their duties and responsibilities to the extent
permitted by the Companies Act 2006,

Risk management

The Board manages financial risk on an ongoing basis. The key
financlal risks refating to the Group are discussed in more detall
in note 32 to the financial statements.

The Group's other principal risks and uncertaintles are outlined
in the Strategic Report.

Political donations

The Group has not made any political donatlons.

SECR

Under S414C(11) the Group has included the SECR report
in the Strategic report on page 29 as it is considered to ba
of strategic Importance.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible
for preparing the Strategic
Report, the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable

law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
group and company financial statements for
each financial year. The Directors have elected
under company {aw to prepare group financial
statements in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

and have elected under company law to
prepare the company financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law) and
the AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange.

The group financial statements are required by law and International
accounting standards In conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 to present fairly the financial position and
performance of the group. The Companies Act 2006 provides In relation
to such financial statements that references In the relevant part of that
Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to
thelr achieving a falr presentation.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financlal
statements unless they are satisfied that they glve a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit
or loss of the group for that perlod.

In preparing each of the group and company financlal statements,
the Directors are required to:

a. selact sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

c. for the group financlal statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with international accaunting standards
In conformity with the requirements of the Companles Act 2006;

d. for the cutnpany Mianelal slalements stale whether applicable
UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained in the company
flnancial statements;

e. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basls unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the company will
continue In business.

The Directors are rasponsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s and the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the group and the company and enable them to
ensure that the financlal statements comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006. Thay are also respongible for safeguarding the
assets of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Iregularities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and Integrity of the
corporate and financlal information included on the Knights Group
Holdings plc webslte.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation
In other jurisdictions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Knights Group Holdings plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Knights Group Holdings plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘group’) for the year ended
30 April 2021 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, the consolidated and company statement of financial position,
the consolidated and company statement of changes in equity, the consolidated and company statement of cash flows and notes to the financial
statements, including significant accounting policies. The financlal reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group
financial statements is applicable law and International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, Including Financlal Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 April 2021
and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with International Accounting Standards In conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

« the parent company financial statements have bean properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibllities under those
standards are further described In the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements section of our report. We are independent

of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethlcal requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements In the

UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities and we have fulfilled our other sthical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the galng concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements Is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the group's and parent company's ability to continue to adopt
the golng concern basls of accounting included evaluating management’s method of assessment, reviewing the forecasts prepared by

the Directors, performing sensitivity analysls, comparing the prior year forecast to actual outturn, confirming the terms of the banking facilities
available to the group, checking the forecast covenant compliance and headroom avaitable ta the group, and considering the adequacy of the
disclosures made by the Directors In the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s or the parent company’s abllity to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibiiities of the Directors with respect to going concem are descrbed in the relevant sections of this report.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit Group

matters .
» Valuation and recoverability of amounts recoverable on contracts and Impact on revenue recognition
« Acquisition accounting, timing of abtaining control and valuation of intangibles assets acquired
Parent Company

* None Identified

Materiality Group
* Overal materiality: £771,000 (2020: £539,000)

¢ Performance materiality: £578,000 (2020: £404,000)
Parent Company

o Overal materiality: £514,000 (2020: £365,000)
¢ Performance materiality: £385,000 (2020: £273,000)

Scape Qur audit procedures covered 99% of revenue, 99% of het assets and 98% of undetlying EBITDA.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the group financial statements

of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of materlal misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including
those which had the greatest effect an the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the group [and parent companyj] financlal statements as a whole, and in forming

Coporaie Gover onee Financial Statements

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinlon on these matters.

Revenue recognition and contract assets

Key audit
matter
description

The Group's accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition is set out in note 2.5. Note 4 sets out the critical judgements
and estimates applied by the Directors in relation to the valuation of unbilied contingent fee agreements and of amounts
recoverable on contracts, which may have a material effect on the amount of revenue recognised in the period, and note 5
to the financial statements gives detail on revenue.

There Is a risk that revenue could be materialy misstated due to recognising revenue in the wrong accounting period,

or in the wrong amount. Revenue is materially impacted by changes in the contract assets balance (amounts recoverable
on contracts) which is subject to management judgement about recovery rates and provisions. The Group has recognised
revenue of £103.2 milllon in respect of fees billed and accrued in the year, which consists of a large number of relatively low
value transactions. Due to the large volume of transactions in the year there is a risk that not all of the matters in the year
have been appropriately billed.

The Group’s contract assets balance at the year end is £28.0 mlllion (see note 22). The contract assets are valued on
aline by line (case by case) basis using an estimated recovery rate at the period end. The process of valuing contract
assets and, in particular, estimating recovery rates, is judgemental and therefore considered to be a key audit matter.

How the
matter was
addressed
in the audit

Our response to the key audit matter included:

+ assessing management's revenus recognition policy for fixed fee arrangements, unconditional fee-for-setvice arrangements,
and varlable or contingent fee arrangements for compliance with IFRS 15 — Revenus from contracts with customers

« assessing the reasonableness of the revenue figure in relation to fee-earner numbers and salary costs in comparison
to prior financial years

« performing data analytics to test the revenue recognised by ensuring that the revenue transactlon cycle was completed
through to cash receipt or inclusion in trade receivables

« comparing the year end work ih progress valuatlon and recovery rates to the prior year for each office, (excluding those
acquired in the year)

« comparing the expected recovery rate in the prior year valuation of work in progress to the actual amounts recovered
for a sample of fee earners during the year

* reviewing the work In progress balances at various dates during the year for a sample of fee earners and checking
subsequent recovery rates to confirm their period end valuations

« period-end cut off testing to ensure that contract assets and revenue had besn recognised in the correct accounting period

« reviewing the utilisation rates during the year for staff on an office by office basis and enquiring where these appeared
to be unusually low, in order to test completeness of the ime being recorded to matters

o agreeing the recoverability of the balance of unbilled revenue to post year end billing and cash receipts and, where biling
has not yet occurred, challenging fee-earners about the expected recovery, confirming unbilled revenue Is recorded in the
correct period and at the corract amount and is supported by time costs incurred.

Key
observations

Based on the work performed, we concluded that revenue is being approprlately recognised In accordance with IFRS 15,
and that the estimates used in the valuation of amounts recoverable on contracts are reasonable,
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

to the Members of Knights Group Holdings plc

Acquisition accounting and valuation of intangibles assets acquired

Key audit
matter
description

During the year the group made four acquisitions involving aggregate consideration of £14.7 million, including deferred
consideration of £5.1 million as set out in note 20. There are significant intangible assets arising as a result of each acquisition,
including goodwiil of £8.1 million and customer relationships of £3.7 million (note 19). The determination and allocation of the
purchase price, the identification and valuation of the intangible assets arising, and the useful lives of these assets, particularly
the customer refationships, involve the exercise of a significant degree of management |udgement and Is therefore considered
to be a key audit matter.

Additionally, the date on which control is obtained in each acquisition is a key Judgement In assessing the acquisition
date (see note 4).

The details of acquisitions made in the year are set aut In note 20 Notes 2.4 (business combinations), 2.7 {goodwill
and 2.8 (intanglble assets other than goodwill) set out the accounting policies In respect of business combinations
and note 19 to the financial statements summarised the intanglble assets added through acquisitions in the year.

How the
matter was
addressed
in the audit

Our response to the key audit matter included:

« obtaining copies of purchase documentation for each acquisition and considering which party has control, the percentage
acquired, the consideratian offered and details of any deferred consideration

« reviewing the detalls of clauses in the heads of terms and the sale and purchase agreements for each acquisition
1o determine the date on which contro! passes, and hence determining the date of acquisition i.e. the date contro!
was obtained

= agreeing the amounts of consideration to cash amounts paid and the share consideration to share certificates issued
and the market price on issue

« conflming that the accounting treatment applied for each transaction is in accordance with relevant accounting standards

« reviewing and challenging the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the fair value calculations to value the customer
relationships and agreeing these to supparting evidence, Including the growth rate, customer attrition rate and discount
rate applled

« consldering whether there are any other intangible assets which should be recognised as part of the fair value exercise

« reviewing the useful life applied to customer lists and comparing this to historic client retention rates in the acquired
businesses, and considering the estimated remalning employment term for fee earners brought in with the acquilsition

» considering whether fee earners leaving in the period impacted the carrying value of the client relationships recognised
in past acquisitions

« confirming that the disclosures made in respect of each acqulsition are In accordance with the relevant standard.

Key
observations

Following discussions with management and adjustments to the treatment of payments to retiring fee earners for restrictive
covenants, and detalled consideration of the date on which the Group obtains control of the acquirees, based on the audit
work performed we consider the acquisition accounting to have been appropriately applied and that management has identifled
and valued the acquired intangible assets in accordance with IFRS 3, Business combinations.

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certaln thresholds which help us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably
influence the economic decislons of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the size of the misstatements. Based on our
professional judgement, we determined materiality as follows:

Group Parent company
Overall materiality £771,000 (2020: £539,000) £514,000 (2020: £365,000)
Basls for determining 3% of underlying EBITDA 0.7% of net assets

averall materiality

Rationale for

A key metric used by management and shareholders The parent company does not trade; its function

benchmark appiied In assessing performance of the Group is underlying Is to hold investments In the Group's trading entitles,

T| i .
EBITDA, s disclosed in rioto 36 As a result, the benchmark for this entity is net assets.

Performance materiality £578,000 (2020: £404,000) £385,500 (2020; £273,000)

Basis for determining 75% of overall materiality 75% of overall materiality

performance materiality

Reporting of misstatements  Misstatements in excess of £38,500 and : Misstatements in excess of £25,700 and

ta the Audit Committee misstatements below that threshold that, in our misstatements below that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporiing on qualitative grounds. view, warranted reparting on qualitative grounds.
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An overview of the scope of our audit
The group conslsts of seven components, all of which are based in the UK.

The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

Number of components Revenue Net assets Underlying EBITDA
Full scope audit 3 99% 99% 98%
Specific audit procedures 1 1% 1% 2%
Total 4 100% 100% 100%

The remaining three components are not material either individually or in aggregate.

Of the above, for one component specific audit procedures on amaunts recoverable on cantracts, being the only material balance in that component
which carries a significant risk, were undertaken by component auditors.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financlal statements and our auditor's repart thereon.
The Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our oplnion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, except o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other Information Is materially Inconsistent with the financial
staternents or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we Identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other Information,

we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given In the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financlal year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financlal statements; and

s the Strategic Report and the Directors® Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are reciulred to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and thelr environment obtained In the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
In our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« centain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not recelved all the Information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibllities statement set out on page 62, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financlal statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directars are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Directors
elther Intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

to the Members of Knights Group Holdings plc

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whoie are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with ISAs {UK) wifl always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
1o influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Iregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures
In the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to help Identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may
have a material effect on the financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identifled or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements due to
fraud, to obtain sufficlent appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud through desighing
and Implementing appropriate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibifity of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the entity's
operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection of fraud.

in Identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of Iregularities, including fraud, the group audit engagement team:

« obtained an understanding of the nature of the industry and sector, including the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group and parent
company operate in and how the group and parent company are complying with the legal and regulatory frameworks;

s inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own Identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities,
including any known aclual, suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

« discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regutations and how fraud might oceur including assessment of how and where
the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.

The most significant laws and regulations were determined as follows:

Legistation / Additional audit procedures performed by the audit engagement team included:

Regulation S ’ T -
IFRS and Review of the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting docurnentation; and

Companies Completion of disclosure checklists to Identify areas of non-compliance.

Act 2006

Tax compliance inspection of advice received from internal tax advisors;

regulations Inspection of correspondence with local tax authorities;

Input from a tax specialist was obtained regarding the tax impact of employee share schemes in operation during
the year and the Impact of transaction costs incurred in acquisitiens on the group's tax charge; and
Conslideration of whether any matter identified during the audit required reporting to an appropriate authority
outslde the entity.

The areas that we identified as being susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud were:

Risk Audit procedures perfarmed by the audit engagement team:

Revenue Our audit procedures in this area are detailed above under key audit matters.
recognition

Management Testing the appropriateness of Journal entries and other adjustments;

override of controfs  Agsessing whether the judgements made In making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential blas; and
Evaluating the business rationale of any signiticant ransactions that are unusual or outslde the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financlal Reporting Council’s website at:
hitp://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibliities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Other matters which we are required to address

During the year the provision of an application programming interface, enabling the group to download its periodic VAT detalls to HMRC in
compliance with the Making Tax Digita! legislation, was inadvertently provided. This was not a service permitted by the FRC’s Revised Ethical
Standard 2019, We have reassessed our independence and concluded that it has not been compromised due to the size of the fee totalling

£175 for the year, the automated nature of the service, and the fact that it does not impact the Group’s accounting and financial reporting systems,
or the production of the financial statements. Provision of the service ceased as soon as it was discovered. We have discussed the inadvertent

"breach with the audit committee, as described in their report on page 59 of the financial statements, who also concluded that our independence

was not compromised.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. Ta the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

23*\ Ok b

GEOFF WIGHTWICK {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Festival Way

Stoke on Trent
Staffordshire

ST158BB

15 July 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 April 2021

Year ended Year ended

30 Aprif 2021 30 April 2020

Note £'000 £'000

Revenue 5 103,201 74,254
Other operating income 7 1,310 834
Staff costs 8 (62,707) (45,578)
Depreciation and amortisation charges 1 {7,730) (4,276)
Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets (223) (112)
Other operating charges 12 (16,173) (11,504)
Operating profit before non-underlying charges 17,678 13,678
Non-underlying operating costs 13 (10,288) {8,090)
Operating Profit . 7,380 5,588
Finance costs 14 (1,881) (1,530)
Profit before tax 5,509 4,058
Taxation 16 (2,107) (2,238)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity owners of the parent 3,402 1,820
Earnings per share Pence Pence
Baslc earnings per share 17 4,14 2.44
Diluted earnings per share o ) o - 17 4.09 2.41

72




Strener fic Report ‘ Corporalé GOVemeInce I Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 Aprii 2021
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets and goodwill 19 79,5623 69,135
Praperty, plant and equipment 21 9,538 5,562
Right-of-use assets 21 40,406 23,749
129,467 98,446
Current assets
Contract assets 22 28,530 21,507
Trade and other receivables 23 31,521 27,046
Cash and cash equivalents 4,783 12,741
64,834 61,294
Total assets 194,301 159,740
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 24 165 . 164
Share premium 25 68,362 66,252
Merger reserve 26 (3,536) (3,536)
Retained earmnings 26 17,691 13,070
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 82,689 75,950
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabllltles 37 39,020 21,078
Borrowings 27 23,650 28,650
‘Deferred consideration 28 - 127
Deferred tax 29 5,655 5,429
Provisions 31 2,998 -
71,323 55,284
Cumrent liabilities
Lease liabilities 37 3,620 2,766
Borrowings 27 414 -
Trade and other payables 30 32,303 20,019
Deferred conslideration 28 1,095 2,723
Contract liabilities 22 216 177
Corporation tax liability 765 675
Provisions 31 1,876 2,146
' 40,289 28,506
Total liabilities 111,612 83,790
Total equity and llabilities ) 194,301 159,740

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for Issue on 14 July 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

£ VRV
Kate Lewis

Director

Registered No. 11290101
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 April 2021

Share Share Merger  Retained
capital  premium reserve  earnings Total
Note £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 1 May 2019 147 32,486 (3.536) 12,216 41,313
Profit for the period and total comprehensive income - - - 1,820 1,820
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments e - - - 789 789
Issue of shares 24,25 17 33,766 - - 33,783
Dividends 18 - - - (1,755) {1,755)
Balance at 30 April 2020 164 66,252 (3,536) 13,070 75,950
Profit for the petiod and total comprehensive income - - - 3,402 3,402
Transactions with owners In thelr capacity as owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 9 - - - 1,219 1,218
Issue of shares 24,25 1 2,117 2,118
Dividends . 18 ~ - - - -
Balance at 30 April 2021 165 68,369 (3,536) 17,691 82,689
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 Aptil 2021

g

Financial Statements

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 Aprii 2020
Note £000 £'000
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 34 20,378 13,791
Non-underlying operating costs pald 13 (4,268) (3,398)
Interest received 461 328
Tax paid (2,126) (2,907)
Contingent acquisition payments (5,597) (1,850)
Net cash from operating activities 8,849 5,964
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries 20 {1,195) (11,907)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets 19 (196) (26)
Purchase of propery, plant and equipment 21 (4,356) (2,501)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6 21
Landlord capital contribution 2,265 -
Payment of deferred consideration {3,171) (2,116)
Net cash used in investing activities {6,647) (16,529)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 20,543
Proceeds of new borrowings 19,000 44,800
Repayment of borrowings {24,000) (35,150)
Repayment of dabt acquired with subsidiaries 20 {2,387) (7,049)
Repayment of lease liabilities (2,564) (1,576)
Interest and other finance costs paid (1,772) (1,411)
Associated lease costs (289) -
Dividends paid - (1,755)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (12,012) 18,402
Net (decrease)/ increase In cash and cash equivalents 9,810} 7,837
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 12,741 4,904
Cash and cash equivatents at end of period {net of overdraft £1 ,852,000) 2,931 12,741
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2021

1. General Information

Knights Group Haldings plc (“the Company") Is a public company limited by shares and is registered, domiciled and Incorporated In England.
The Group consists of Knights Group Holdings plc and all of its subsidiaries.
The principal activity and nature of operations of the Group is the provision of legal and professional services. The address of its registered office Is:

The Brampton
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire

ST5 0QW

2. Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS in conformity with the requirements of Companies Act 2006.

Applying IFRS requires the Directors to exercise judgement and use certain ctitical accounting estimates, the judgments and estimates that
the Directors deem significant in the preparation of these financial statements are explained in note 4.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basls unless IFRSs requires an alternative treatment. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,

Monetary amounts are presented In sterling, being the functional currency of the Group, rounded to the nearest thousand except where
otherwlise indicated.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all perlods presented in the
financlai statements, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Golng concern

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basls as, at the time of approving the financial statements, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group
has a strong trading performance, generates strang operating cashflows and has banking facllities of £40,000,000 avaliable until June 2023.
The Group's forecasts show sufficient cash generation and headroom In banking facilities and covenants, in relation to anticipated future
requirements to support the Directors’ concluslon that the assumption of the going concern basls of accounting In preparing the financial
statements is appropriate.

In the perlod since the pandemic arose and the UK entered lockdown at the end of March 2020, the Group has continued to trade profitably

and cash generation at an operating cashflow level has remained strong and in line with expectation. In order to satisfy the validity of the going
concern assumption, a number of different trading scenarios have been modelied and reviewed. Some of these scenarios forecast a significantly
rmore negative trading performance than Is expected. In all of these scenarios the Group remained profitable and with signlificant headroom In

its cash resources for the 12 months from the date of approval of the accounts.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of Knights Group Holdings plc and all of its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries results
are consolidated in the financial statements from the earller date that economic benefit is obtained or control commences until the date that
control ceases. ’

On 18 June 2018, the whole of the share capital of Knights 1759 Limited was acquired by the Company via a share for share exchange agreement.
The acquisition is outside the scope of IFRS 3 because Knights Group Holdings Limited did not meet the definition of a business. In the absence of
specific guldance in IFRS, the Group has selected an appropriate accounting policy using the hierarchy described in paragraphs 10 to 12 of IAS 8,
which permits the consideration of other Fnancial Reporting Standards, The Group has adopted the principles of merger accounting from FRS 102.
Accardingly, the consolidated financial statements for the Group have been presented as If Knights 1759 Limited had been owned by Knights Group
Holdings plc throughout the preceding period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidlaries are entities controlled by the Group. Tha Group controls an entity when It is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
Involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential vating rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date Is the date on which contral is transferred to the acquirer.
The financial statements of subsldiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the earller date that contral commences until
the dats that control ceases.
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Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consalidation.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impalrment of the asset transferred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial information of subsidiarles to bring the accounting policies used Into line with those !

used by the Group.

Audit exemption of subsidiaries

The followlng subsldiaries are exempt from the requirements of the UK Companles Act 2008 relating to the audit of individual accounts

by virtue of s479A of the Act.

Name ' Registered number

BrookStreet Des Roches 0C317863

Dakeyne Emms Gilmore Liberson Limited 06850969

ERT Law Limited ’ 09182964 {
Croftons Solicitors LLP 0C343375
Shulmans LLP 00348166

ASB Law LLP 0C351354

ASB Aspire LLP : 0C327667

OTB Eveling LLP 0C371214

Mundays LLP 0C313856

The outstanding llabliities at 30 April 2021 of the above named subsidiarles have been guaranteed by the Corpany pursuant fo s479A to s479C
of the Act. In the opinlon of the Directars, the possibllity of the guarantee being called upon is remote since the trade, assets and majority of liabilitles
of these subsldiaries were transferred to Knights Professlonal Services Limited before 30 April 2021. .

2.4 Business combinations

The cost of a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date, of the assets given, equity Instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed. .

The excess of the cost of a business combinatlon over the fair value of the Identifiable assets, liabliities and contingent liabilities acquired
is recognised as goodwill.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt of equity securities, are expensed as incurred.

2.5 Revenue

The Group earns revenue from the provisicn of legal and professional services. Revenue for these services is recognised over time in the accounting
period when services are rendered as the Group has an enforceable right to payment for work performed to date under its client terms of
engagement.

Fee arrangements for legal and professional services include fixed fee arrangements, unconditional fee-for-service arrangements ("time and
materials”), and variable or contingent fee arrangements.

For fixed fee arrangements, revenue is recognised based on the stage of completion with reference to the actual services provided as a propartion
of the total services expected to be provided under the contract. The stage of completion is tracked on a contract-by-contract basis using the hours
spent by fee-earners providing the services.,

In fee-for-service cantracts, revente Is recognised up to the amaunt of fees that the Group is entitled to bill for services performed to date based
on contracted rates.

Under varlable or contingent fee arrangements, fees may be earned only In the event of a successful autcame of a client’s claim. Fees under these
arrangements may be fixed or may be variable based on a specified percentage of damages awarded under a claim.

For varlable or contingent fee arrangements management makes a detailed assessment of the amount of revenue expected to be received and the
probabillity of success of each case. Variable consideration Is recognised over the duration of the matter only to the extent that it Is highly probable
that the amatint recognised will not be subject to significant reversal when the matter is concluded based on the expected amount recoverable at
that polint in time. In suich circumstances, a level of judgement Is required to determine the likelihood of success of a given matter, as well as the
estimated amount of fees that wlll be recovered in respect of the matter. Where the likelinood of success of a contingent fee arrangement Is less
than highly probable, the value recognised in contract assets is further reduced to reflect this uncertainty.

Certain contingent fee arrangements are undertaken on a partially funded basls. In such arrangements, the funded portion of fees Is not contingent
on the successful outcome of the litigation and in these instances the revenue is recognised up to the amount of fees that the Group is entitled to bill
for services performed to date based on contracted rates. The remaining consideration is variable and conditional on the successful resolution of the
litigation. The varlable consideratlon Is recognised over the duratian of the matter and included in revenue based on expected amount recoverable
only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount recognised will not be subject to significant reversal when the uncentainty Is resolved at
that point In time.
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Knights Group Holdings Plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2021

2. Accounting policies continued

The Group’s contracts with clients each comprise of a single distinct performance obligation, being the provision of legal and professional services
In relation to a particular matter and the transaction price is therefore allocated to this single performance obligation.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs are reflacted in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which the circumstances that give rise
to the revision become known by management.

The Group has determined that no significant financing component exists in respect of the provision of legal and professional services because
the period between when thz entity transfers its services to a client and when the client pays for that service will generally be one year or less.

Conslderation for services provided under contingent or variable fee arrangements may be paid after a longer period. In these cases, no significant
financing component exists because the consideration promised by the customer Is variable subject to the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future
event that is not substantially within the control of the client or the Group,

A receivable Is recognised when a bill has been issued 1o the client, as this Is the point In time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Unbilled revenue is recognised as conlract assets. Costs incurred in fulfiling the future performance obligations of a contract are recognised
as contract assets if the costs are expected to be recovered.

Contract liabilities are recognised in respect of consideration billed in advance of satisfying the performance obligation under the contract.

Revenue does not include disbursements. Recoverable expenses Incurred on cllent matters that are expected to be recovered and are billed
during the period are recognised in other income.

2.6 Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and the deferred tax expense. Current tax assets are recognised when the tax
paid exceeds the tax payabie. Cument tax Is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax assets and liabilitles are measured using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. )

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability Is settled based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of alt timing differences that exist at the reporting date. Timing differances are differences between
taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the incluslon of income and expenses in tax assassments in different periods from
thelr recognition In the financlal statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered by

the raversal of deferred tax liabllities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is recognlised on differences between the value of assets (other than goodwill) and liabifities recognised in a business combination
and the amounts that can be deducted or assessed for tax. The deferred tax recognised Is adjusted agalnst goodwill.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities are offset, if and only if, there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and the entity intends either to settle on a net basls or to realise the asset and settle the liabilflty simultaneousty.

2.7 intangible assets ~ Goodwill

Goadwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of

the identiflable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is Initially recognised as an
asset at cost and |s subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gooduwilt is tested annually by the Directors for evidence
of impalrment.

2.8 Intangible assets — Other than goodwill

Intangible assets purchased, other than in a business combination, are recognised when future ecenomic benefits are probable and the cost
or value of the asset can ba measured reliably.

Intangible assets arising on a business combination, such as customer relationships, are recognised at estimated fair value, except where the
asset does not arise from tegal or contractual rights, and there Is no history or evidence of exchange transactions for the same or similar assets
and estimating the assets fair value would depend on immeasurable variables. The fair value represents the Directors' best sstimate of future
economic banefit to be derived from these assets discounted at an appropriate rate.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at astimated cost (which for Intangible assets acquired in a business combination Is the fair value
at acquisition date) and are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a stralght-line basis over thelr estimated useful lives, as follows:

Purchased computer software - dyears
Customer relationships - 4-25years
Restrictive covenants - remalning length of covenant

Brand ~ 100 vyears

Purchased computer software is amortised over a period of 4 years, being the minlmum period expected to benefit from the asset.

Customer relationships are amortised over a period of 4-25 years being the average length of relationshlp with key clients for acquired entitles.
Restrictive covenants are amortised over the remalning length of covenant,

Brand value Is amortised over a petlod of 100 years based on the Directors’ assessment of the future life of the brand. This is supported by a trading
history dating back to 1759. Brand value relates to the ‘Knights’ brand only. Other acquired brands are not recognised as an asset as the acquired
entities are rebranded as Knights and the impact of such recognition would not be material.
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2.9 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Depreclation is provided on property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write each asset down to its estimated residual value over
its expected useful life, as follows:

Expenditure on short leasehold property 10% on cost

Office equipment —  25% oncost
Furniture and fittings -~ 10% oncost
Motor vehicles - 25% oncost
Right-of-use assets —  ramalning life of the lease (between 1 and 21 years)

Residual value is calculated on prices prevalling at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal, for the asset as if It were at the age and
in the condition expected at the end of its useful life,
2,10 Impairment of non-current assets

An assessment is made at each reporting date of whether there are Indications that non-current assets may be impaired or that an impalrment
loss previously recognised has fully or partially reversed. If stich indications exist, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

. Shortfalls between the carrying value of non-current assets and thelr recoverable amounts, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use, are recognised as Impairment losses. All other impairment fosses are recagnised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Recognised Impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Reversals of impalrment losses
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On reversal of an impairment loss, the depreciation or amortisation is adjusted to allocate
the asset’s revised carrying amount (less any restdual value) over Its remalning useful life.

2,11 Professional indemnity provision

In common with comparable practices, the Group is involved in a number of disputes in the ordinary course of business which may give rise

to claims. Provision is made In the financial statements, within provisions for all claims where costs are likely to be Incurred. This represents the
cost of defending and concluding claims and any excesses that may become payable. The Group carries professional indemnity insurance and
no separate disclosure is made of the cost of claims covered by insurance as to do so could seriously prejudice the position of the Group.

2,12 Leases

The Group leases offices, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are for periods of between 1 and 25 years. Lease terms are hegotiated
on a lease by lease basis and centaln a variety of terms and conditions.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and

a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months ar less) and leases of low value assets {being those assets with a value less than £4,000). For short term and
low value leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line basls over the term of the lease.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basls. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following leasa payments:

+ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease Incentives recelvable;

« variable lease payments that are based on an index or arate;

« amounts expected to be payahle by the Group under residual value guarantees;

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certaln to exercise that option; and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease term assumed reflects the Group exerclsing that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of simllar value in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are of both principal and interest included in financing activities in the cash flow.
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Right-of-use assets are recognised at commencement of the lease and initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, plus any incremental
costs of obtaining the lease and any lease payments made at or before the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Subsequent to Initial recognition, the lease llabllity is reduced for payments made and increased to reflect interest on the lease liabllity (using the
effective interest method). The related right-of-use asset is depreclated over the term of the lease o, if shorter, the useful economic life of the leased
asset, The lease term shall include the period of an extension option where it Is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Interest on the
lease liability is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

An estimate of the costs to be incuned in restoring the leased asset to the condition required under the terms and conditions of the lease is
recognised as part of the cost of the right-of-use asset when the Group incurs the obligation for these costs. The costs are incurred at the start
of the lease or over the lease term. The provislon is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation.

79



RO

Knjghts Group Holdings Plc I Annuc Roport and Accounls 202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2021

2. Accounting policies continued

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

+ the lease term has changed or there is a significant change In the assessment of exercise of a purchase aption, in which case the lease liabllity
Is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

« The lease payments change duse to changes in an Index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed rasidual value, in which
cases the lease liability Is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initia! discount rate (unless the lease payments change
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, In which case a revised discount rate is used);

«+ alease contract is modified and the lease modification Is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liabllity is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

2.13 Retirement benefits
2.13a Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. The amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income In respect of pension costs
is the contributions payable In the year. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually pald are shown as either
accrued expenses or prepayments and other recelvables.

2.13b Defined benefit pension scheme

Eor defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and gains and losses on settlements and
curtaliments. They are Included as part of staff costs, The interest cost and the expected return on assets are shown as a net amount of other finance
costs o credits adjacent to Interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately In the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Defined bensfit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, in separate trustee administered

funds. Penslon scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabllitlies are measured on an actuarial basls using the projected unit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retum an a high quality corporate bond of aquivalent currency and term to the scheme liabllities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.

Defined benefit assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financlal Position, on the basis that future economic benefits are not available
to the Group in the form of a reduction in future contributions or a cash refund.

For the "With Profit Section’ contributions are recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income In the period to which they relate as there

is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. A liability will be recognised based on the agreed share of the Group in
the scheme. No asset (2020: liability) has been recognised on the basis that future economic benefits are not avaitable to the Group in the farm
of a reduction In future contributions or a cash refund.

2.14 Share based payments

The cost of providing share based payments to employees is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the vesting period of the
awards. The cost is based on the fair value of awards at the date of grant of the award using an appropriate valuation model. The amount recognised
as an expense will be adjusted to reflect differences between the expected and actual vesting levels. Further details of the schemes are included

In note 9.

2.15 Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised on the date when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financlal
instruments are recognised initially at falr value. Financial instruments are derecognised when the Group is no longer party ta the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Contract assets and trade recelvables
Contract assets and trade receivables which are receivable within one year are initfally measured at fair value, These assets are subsequentiy
measured at amortised cost, being the transaction price less any amounts settled and any Impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses ('ECL) on contract assets and trade raceivables. The expected credit losses
on trade recelvables includes spacific provisions against known receivables and an estimate using a provision matrix by reference to past
experlence and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position on the remaining balance. The expected credit losses on contract assets
and other receivables s assessed based on historical credit loss experienced on these types of assets adjusted for known foreseeable
estimated losses.
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Financial liabilities and equity

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities and equity instruments according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting alt of its liabilities.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables due within one year are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the transaction
price less any amounts settled.

Deferred consideratlon

Deferred consideration is initially recognised at the falr value of the amounts payable and subsequently at amortised cost of the agreed payments

In accordance with the agreement. Any interest payable on the balance is reflected in the value of the liability and charged monthly to the Statement
of Comprehensive income as it arises,

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs assoclated with the borrowings. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method. Interest expense is recognised on the basls of the effective interest
method and is included in interest payable and other similar charges.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset Is derecognisad only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire o are settled, or substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred to another party. A financial liability (or part thereof) is derecognised when the abligation specified in the contract
Is discharged, cancelled or explres.

3. Accounting developments

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for the future

At the date of these financial statements, there were new and revised IFRSs which were In Issue but which were not yet effective and which
have not been applied. The principai ones are;

Revised IFRS Effectlve date
Amendments to IFRS9, IAS39, IFRS7, IFRS4 and IFRS16 Effective 1 January 2021, endorsed 13 January 2021
Amendments to IFRS4 Insurance Contracts - deferral of IFRSS Effective 1 January 2021, endorsed 15 December 2020

Amendments to IFRS3 Business Combinations; IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment,  Effective 1 January 2022
IAS37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Annual

Improvements 2018 — 2020

IFRS 17 : Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

Amendments 1o IAS1 Presentation of Financlal Statements: Classification of Liabilities 1 January 2023
as Current and Noen-current and Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group
in future periods.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in nate 2, the Directors are raquired to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and Hlabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assoclated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factars that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), that the Directors
have made In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financlal statements.

Amounts recoverable on contracts - contingent fee arrangements

A level of judgement is required to determine the likelihood of success of a given matter for contingent fee arrangements. This is determined

on a contract-by-contract basis after considering the relevant facts and circumstances surounding each matter. The valuation exercise Is conducted
by experienced fee earners with detalled understanding of the cases. The canrying value of contingent fee arrangements at 30 April 2021 was
£5,781,0600 (2020: £4,114,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2021

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

IFRS 16

In applying IFRS 16, the Group uses judgement to assess whether the interest rate implicit In the lease Is readily determinable. When the Interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Group estimates the incremental borrowing rate based on its external borrowings secured
against similar assets, ad|usted for the term of the lease.

Business combinations

Management make judgements regarding the date of conrol of an acquisition in accordance with IFRS10. The judgement considers the individua]
legal agreements on each transaction and the date at which the Group starts to exercise control over the activities of the subsidary, usually the date
of exchange of contracts. Financial performance of the acquisitions are included in the consolidated group results from the deemed date of control.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty in the teporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and liabllities within the next financial year, are discussed below. )
IFRS 16

The Group makes estimates of the cost of restoring leased assets to their ariginal condition when required to do so under the terms and conditions
of the lease. Those estimates are based on the current condition of the leased assets and past experience of restoration costs.

Amounts recoverable on contracts — recoverable amounts

The valuation of amounts recoverable on contracts (“ARCC") involves the use of estimates of the likely recovery rate which will be made on the
gross value of chargeable time recorded to each matter.

This percentage represents management's best estimate of future value fallowing aline by line review of the matters by fee earners. The estimation
process takes into account the progress of the case at the reporting date, the estimated eventual fee payable by the client and the amount of time
which will be incurred by fee earnars In bringing the matter to a successful conclusion, The amount recognised in AROC at the year end was £28,530,000
{2020: £21,507,000), a 3% change in the estimated recovery of all matters would Impact tha profit for the period by approximately £982,000

{2020: £930,000).

Accounting for business combinations and valuation of intangibles

Business combinations are accounted for at falr value. The valuation of goodwilll and acquired Intangibles is calculated separately on each individual
acquisition. In attributing value to Intanglble assets arising on acquisition, management has made certain assumptions in relation to the expected
growth rates, profitability, length of key customer relationships and the appropriate weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC') and Internal rate

of retumn (IRR).

The value attributable to the intangible assets acquired on acquisitions also impacts the deferred tax provision refating to these items.
The total canrying value of intangibles is £26,544,000 (2020: £24,195,000).

In order to assess the impact of the key assumptions on the values disclosed in the accouints the Directors have applied the following sensitivities
to the acquisitions in the current year:

Rate applied in the Annual profitimpact  Value of intanglble assets
Key assumption financial statements Sensitivity tested £°000 £'000
Long term growth rate 2% 0% 9 (10)
WACC and IRR 11% —24%M 5% 55 (64)
Laength of customer relationships 4-10 years 5 years (243) 492

(1) each acquisition has been reviewed and, dependent upon the structure of the acquisition, an appropriate WACC ar IRR rate has been applied. These sensitivities have been
calculated by adjusting the adopted rates as noted above.

Growth rates are estimated based on the current conditions at the date of each acquisition with reference to independent surveys of future growth
rates In the legal professlon in real, inflation adjusted terms,

The length of customer relationships is estimated by considering the length of time the acquiree has had its slgnificant client relationships up to
the date of acquisition and historic customer attrition rates as appropriate.

The Directors consider the resulting valuations used glve a reasonable approximation as to the value of the intangibles acquired and that any
reasonably possible change in any one of the estimations in isolation would not have a material impact on the financlal statements.

The Directors undertale an annual Impairment review of goadwill to assess whether the camying value Is stiil supported by using a discounted cash
flow model to derive the value In use of the cash generating unit ({CGL"). Gash flow forecasts are derived from the most recent financlal budgets
approved by management for the next three years and extrapolated using a terminal value calculation.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates for the Group's revenues from legal
and professional services and the EBITDA margin. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

Revenue growth over the three years of the forecast period reflects, for FY22, the current run rate of pre-tax revenue from the Group's exlsting
business and a full year of revenue from acquisitions made during the year ended 30 April 2021, with an element of organic growth In FY22, FY23
and FY24. The long term growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%) is based on UK economic growth forecasts for the legal services market,

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of the CGU value in use. Management considers there Is no reasonably
plausible scenario under which goodwill would be impaired.
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5. Revenue

Financial Statements

All revenue is derived from contracts with customers and is recognised over time. As more fully explained in note 6, the Group’s legal and
professional services business operates as a single business unit so there are no relevant categories into which revenue can be disaggregated.

The transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations of contracts at 30 April 2021 is not required to be disclosed becauss

it is comprised of contracts that are expected to have a duration of ane year or less.

Management information does not distinguish between contingent and non-contingent revenue as contingent fees are not separately

identifiable from other fees.

6. Segmental reporting

The Board of Directors, as the chief operating decislon-making body, reviews financial information for and makes decisions about the Group's
overall legal and professional services business and has identified a single operating segment, that of legal and professional services operating

entiraly in the UK.

The legal and professional services business operates through a number of different service lines and in different locations; however, management
effort is consistently directed to the firm operating as a single segment. No segmental reporting disclosure is therefore provided as all revenue

Is derived from this single segment.

7. Other operating income

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Other income 912 495
Bank interest 398 399
1,310 894
8. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (Including Executive Directors) of the Group was!
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
Number Number
Fee earners 933 884
Other employees 230 168
1,163 832
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Wages and salarles 54,927 40,290
Social security costs 5,603 4,244
Other pension costs 1,848 2,938
Share based payment charge 619 276
Other smployment costs 1,169 782
Aggregate remuneration of employees ) 84,188 48,580
Redundancy costs analysed as non-underlying costs (note 13) (1,459) {2,952)
Underlying staff costs in Statement of Comprehensive income 62,707 45,578
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8. Staff costs continued

Directors’ remuneration
Companies Act disclosures

The total amounts for Directors' remuneration In accordance with Schedule 5 to the Accounting Regulations were as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 729 698
Money purchase pension contributions 10 10
739 708

The number of Directors to whom benefits are accruing under money purchase pension schemes is 2 (2020: 2).

The remuneration of the highest paid Director was:

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000

Salaries, fees, honuses and benefits in kind 212 231

9. Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to its employees. The Group recognised total expenses of £1,219,000 (2020: £783,000)
relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the year.

Any charges relating to schemes introduced as one-off schemes as part of the listing are included in non-undetlying costs because the Directors
view these schemes as a reward to employees for their past performance prior to the IPO. All charges relating to other recuning LTIP or SAYE
schemes are Included as a normal operating expense.

The following schemes were in place during the peried.

Omnibus Plan

The Omnlbus Plan is a discretionary share plan, which Is administered, and the grant of awards Is supervised by, the Remuneration Committee.
Three forms of award are available under the Omnibus Plan, as considered appropriate by the Remuneration Commiittes, as follows:

a) "Restricted Stock Awards”: Awards granted in the form of nil or nominal cost share options, subject to time-based vesting requirements
and continued employment within the Group. No performance targets will apply to Restricted Stock Awards.

b) “Performance Share Awards": Awards granted in the form of nil or nominal cost share options, whereby vesting Is subject to satisfaction
of performance conditions and continued employment within the Group.

¢) “Share Options": Awards granted In form of a share optlon with an exercise price equal to the market value of an Ordinary share at the time
of grant, subject to continued employment withinthe Group. Share Options may or may not be subject to perfarmance conditions.
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Restricted stock awards Performance share awards
Waighted Weighted
average average
exerclse price exercise price
Number Pence Number Pence
Outstanding at 1 May 2019 451,845 0.2 63,352 0.2
Granted during the period 129,112 - 142,862 -
Fotfeited during the pericd (11,104) - - -
Exercised during the period (28,967) - - -
Outstanding at 30 April 2020 540,886 0.2 206,214 0.2
Exercisable at 30 April 2020 53,819 0.2 - -
Granted during the periad 85,322 0.2 77,410 0.2
Forfeited during the perlod (15,278) - (39,814) -
Exercised during the period (59,119) - - -
Outstanding at 30 April 2021 551,811 0.2 243,810 0.2
Exercisable at 30 April 2021 69,934 0.2 - -

The options outstanding at 30 April 2021 had a weighted average exercise price of 0.2p and a weighted averags remalning contractual life
of 0.9 years. Shares exercised during the year had a weighted average price of 432p.

The following restricted stock awards were granted in the period; 65,214 aoptions were granted on 12 June 2020, and 20,108 options were
granted on 1 September 2020. In addition 65,782 of performance share awards were granted on 24 July 2020 and 11,628 on 1 September 2020.
The maximum term of any award is 3 years.

The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted on these dates is £661,027. The model used is based on intrinsic values
and the inputs are as follows:

10,684 options 21,052 options

20,979 options 20,979 options 23,256 options 65,782 options 1 September 1 September Weighted

12June 2020 12June 2020 12June2020 24 July 2020 2020 2020 average

Share price ' 358p 358p 358p 427p 162p 462p 406p
Exerclse price 0.2p 0.2p 0.2p 0.2p 0.2p 0.2p 0.2p
Expected life 0.9 years 1.8 years 2.7 years 3.0years 2.0 years 3.0 years 2.2 years

Share Incentive Plan (“SIP”)

The SIP Is an “all employee” schems under which every sligible employee within the Group was invited to participate. Eligible employees cotiid
apply to invest up to £1,800 from pre-tax Income in partnership shares; matching shares were awarded on the basls of 2 free matching shares for
each partnership share purchased. The matching shares are forfelted if the employee leaves within 3 years of the grant date. The Black-Scholes
valuation model was used for this scheme. :

Partnership Matching

Shares Shares

Number Number

Outstanding at 1 May 2019 204,173 408,347
Withdrawn during the period (22,649) -
Forfeited during the period - (45,298)
Outstanding at 30 April 2020 181,524 363,049
Unrestricted at 30 April 2020 - -
Withdrawn during the period (66,891) -
Forfeited during the period - (133,782)
Outstanding at 30 April 2021 114,633 229,267

Unrestricted at 30 April 2021 - -

Sharesave Scheme (“SAYE")

This is an HMRC approved scheme and is open to any person that was an employee or officer of the Group at the launch date of each scheme.
Under the scheme, members save a fixed amount each month for three years. Sublect to remaining in employment by the Group, at the end
of the three-year perlod they are entitled to use these savings to buy shares in the Company at 80% of the market value at launch date,
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9. Share-based payments continued

The first schems was launched In November 2018 and a new SAYE scheme was launched In February 2020.

SAYE options
Weighted
average
exercise price
Number Pence
. Outstanding at 1 May 2019 896,435 162
Granted during the pefiod 664,796 36t
Forfelted during the period (188,681) 221
Exercised during the period (12,361) 162
Qutstanding at 30 April 2020 1,360,189 251
Exercisable at 30 April 2020 - -
Forfeited during the period (104,557) ' 350
Exercised during the period (16,678) 164
Outstanding at 30 April 2021 1,238,954 244

Exercisable at 30 April 2021 - -

The options outstanding at 30 April 2021 had a welghted average exercise price of 244p and a weighted average remalning contractual life
of 1.2 years.

November 2018 scheme

The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted in November 2018 is £500,000. The inputs Into the Black-Scholes madel
are as follows:

Exercise ptice 162p
Expected volatility 39.2%
Expected life 3.1 years
Risk-free rate 1.4%
Expected dividend yield 1.1%
February 2020 scheme

The aggregate of the estimated falr values of the options granted in February, 2020 Is £1,163,000. The Inputs into the Black-Scholes model
are as follows:

Exerclse price 361p
Expected volatility 34.3%
Expected life 3.1 years
Risk-free rate 1.1%
Expected dividend yield 0.7%
Warrants

Warrants were Issued to Numis Securities Umited on Admission in respect of their services and shall be exercisable for a period of five years.

Warrants
Weighted
average
exercise price
Number Pence
Outstanding at 30 April 2019 706,897 1.7
Exercised during the period (706,897) -

Outstanding at 30 April 2020 - -

Outstanding at 30 April 2021 ' - -

The warrants were exercised In the prior period and raised £1,230,000.
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10. Retirement benefit schemes

Financial Statements

The Group operates a defined cantribution penslon scheme for employees. The total cost charged to income of £1,848,000 (2020: £2,938,000)
represents contributions payabile to the scheme by the Group. As at 30 Aprit 2021, contributions of £439,000 (2020: £281,000) due in respect

of the reporting period had not been pald over to the schemes.

The deflned benefit impact is discussed In note 38. There were no charges against income in the year ended 30 April 2021.

11. Depreciation and amortisation charges

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000
Depreciation 1,309 858
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3,684 1,809
Amortisation 2,704 1,501
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33 8
7,730 4,276
Depreciation of £43,000 (2020: £86,000) is included In non-underlying operating costs.
12. Other operating charges
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Establishment costs 4,140 2,335
Short term and low value lease costs 291 161
Other overhead expenses 11,742 9,008
16,173 11,504
13. Non-underlying operating costs
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Redundancy and reorganisation costs 1,459 :2,952 '
Transaction costs 1,245 1,406
Onerous shaort life asset leases 132 -
Impaimment of right-of-use assets 635 126
Loss on disposal 284 97
Shars based payment charges 600 513
Contingent consideration treated as remuneration 5,933 2,996
10,288 8,090
Non-underlying costs cash movement
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000
Non-underlying operating costs 10,288 8,090
Contingent consideration shown separately (5,933) (2,996)
Non cash movements:
Share based payment charge (600} (513)
Loss on disposal (284) y7)
Onerous leases (302) (111)
Accrual 1,009 (975)
4,268 3,398
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2021

13. Non-undetlying operating costs continued

Non-underlying costs relate to redundancy costs to streamline the support function of the Group following acquisitions and in FY21 as a result

of reorganisation actions taken in response to the Impact of COVID-19, transaction costs in respect of acquisitions, onerous lease costs In yespect
of acquisitions, disposals of acquired assets and share based payment charges relating to one off share schemes offered to employees as part

of the IPO and an acquisitions. Nohe of the above costs relate to the underlying costs of the business.

Contingent consideration is included In non-underlying costs as It represents payments agreed under the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements with vendors of certain businesses acquired which are contingent on the continued employment of those individuals with the Group.
The payments extend over periods of one to three years and are designed to preserve the value of goodwill and customer relationships acquired
in the business combinations. IFRS requires such arrangements to be treated as remuneration and charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
income. The Individuals also receive market rate salaries for their warl, in line with other similar members of staff in the Group. The contingent
earmout payments are significantly in excess of these market salaries and would distort the Group’s results If not separately identified.

14. Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£000 £'000

Interest on borrowings 704 628
Interest on leases 1,177 790
Bank arrangement fees - Al
Interest on deferred consideratlon - 41
1,881 1,530

15. Auditor’'s remuneration

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£000 £'000

Fees payable to the parent company’s auditor and thelr associates for the audit of the parent company’s 29 29
annual accounts

Fees payable to the auditor and their assoclates for other services to the Group:
—The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 113 95
Total audit fees 142 124
- Audit-related assurance services : . : 16 21
— Other advisory services - 3
Total non-audit fees 16 24

For the year ended 30 Aprll 2021 £nll (2020: £5,000) of non-audit costs relating to tax services have bean charged to the share premium account in the year.
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16. Taxation
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Corporation tax:
Current year 2,852 1,918
Adjustments In respect of prior years (247) (20)
2,605 1,895
Deferred tax:

Origination and reversa of temporary differences {498) 343
Tax expense for the year 2,107 2,238
The charge for the period can be reconciled to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000

Profit before tax 5,509 4,058
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%) 1,047 771
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 1,307 1,487

Adjustment in respect of prior years (247) (20)
Tax expense for the year 2,107 2,238

The impact of non-underlying costs on the effective rate of tax is set out below:
Year ended 30 April 2021 Year ended 30 April 2020

Non- Non-

Total Underlying Undertying Total Underlying Underlying

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 - £'000

Profit before tax 5,509 18,419 (12,910) 4,058 13,616 (9,558)
Tax expense ' 2,107 3,379 {1,272) (2,238) (2,910) 672

Effective rate of tax 38% 18% 10% 55% 21% (79%)

In the budgat on 3 March 2021, the UK Government announced an increase in the main UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 25% with effect
from 1 April 2023. The change in rate was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. Deferred tax has been calculated at 19% which was the tax rate
substantively enacted at 30 April 2021, The effect of remeasuring deferred tax to 259% would increase recognised deferred tax liabilities at 30 April
2021 to £8,400,000 and increase recognised deferred tax assets at 30 April 2021 to £959,000. The Impact of this on the year ended 30 April 2021

would result In a deferred tax charge of £1,287,000.

17. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated using profit after tax and the welghted averaga number of Ordinary Shares in issue

during the perlod.

Year ended Year ended
30 Aprit 2021 30 April 2020
Number Number
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 82,189,113 74,675,462

Effect of dilutive potential Ordinary Shares: )
Share options 1,021,132 724,542
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share 83,210,245 75,400,004
£:000 £'000
Profit after tax 3,402 1,820
Earnings per share Pence Pence
Baslc earnings per share 414 2.44
Diluted earnings per share . 4.09 2.41

Underlying eamings per share is calculated as an alternative performance measure in note 36,
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18. Dividends

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2021 of Op per share (2020: Op per share) - 931
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2021 of Op per share (2020: 1.10p per share) - 824
- 1,755
For the year ended 30 April 2021 the Board decided not to propose a final dividend.
19. Intangible assets and goodwill
Customer
relationships Purchased
and Restrictive computer
Goodwill Brand Covenants software Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 26,807 5,401 15,380 346 47,734
Acquisitions of subsidlaries 13,270 - 11,0956 - 24,365
Adjustment in respect of cansideration not payable (199) - - - (199)
Additions - - - 26 26
As at 30 April 2020 39,678 5,401 26,475 372 71,926
Acquisltions of subsidiarles 7,435 - 3,702 - 11,137
Measurement period adjusiments 544 - 118 9 671
Additions - - 1,097 196 1,293
As at 30 April 2021 47,657 5,401 31,392 577 85,027
Amortisation and impairment
As at 1 May 2019 - 216 907 167 1,290
Amortisation charge - 54 1,373 74 1,501
As at 30 April 2020 - 270 2,280 241 2,791
Adjustments - - - 9 9
Amortisation charge - 54 2,568 82 2,704
As at 30 April 2021 - 324 4,848 332 5,504
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2021 47,657 5,077 26,544 245 79,523
At 30 April 2020 39,678 5,131 24,185 131 69,135
At 30 April 2019 26,607 5,185 14,473 179 46,444

The adjustments to goodwill are measurement period adjustments which have not been applied retrospectively as they are considered
to he immaterial,

An intanglble asset of £1,097,000 was recognised in the year ended 30 April 2021 relating to certain individuals who left the business with
restrictive covenants. The agreed terms of the restrictive covenants are deemed to preserve the value of the asset and it is therefore amortised
to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straightiine basis In line with the terms of the restrictive covenants. ’

The catrying amount of goodwill of £47,657,000 {2020: £39,678,000) has been allocated to the single cash generating unit (CGU) present
in the business, which is the provision of legal and professional services,

The recoverable amount of the Group’s goodwill has been determined by a value in use calculation using a discounted cash flow model.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next three years
and extrapolates cash flow using a terminal value calculation based on an estimated growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%). This rate does not exceed
the expected average long-term growth rate for the UK legal services market,

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates for the Group’s revenues from
legal and professlonal services and the EBITDA margin. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
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The rate used 1o discount the forecast cash flows is 15.1% (2020: 18.4%).

Revenue growth aver the three years of the forecast period reflects, for FY22, the current run rate of revenue from the Group's existing business
and a full year of revenue from acquisitions made during the year ended 30 April 2021, and an element of organic growth In FY22, FY23 and FY24
through continued recruitment and increases in chargeable hours and recovered rates. The long-term growth rate is based on UK economic
growth forecasts for the legal services market.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of the CGU value in use. Management considers there Is no reasonably
plausible scenario under which goodwill would be impaired.

20. Acquisitions

Acquisitions summary

During the year the Group has completed three acquisitions and exchanged on one more, the table below summarises the consideration paid
and the net cash flow arising on alf acquisitions In the period.

Total
£'000
Total identifiable assets and liabilities acquired V 7,224
Goodwill ' 7,435
Total consideration 14,659
Satisfied by:
Cash (£4.8m yet to pay on Keebles completion) 8,909
Equity Instruments (1,246,234 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc) (€3.5m yet to Issue on Keebles completion) 5,450
Deferred consideration arrangement 300
Total consideration transferred 14,659
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration {net of cash acquired) (£4.8m yet to pay on Keebles completion) 6,005
‘Net investing cash outflow arlsing on acquisition 6,005
Repayment of debt acquired {excluding £0.4m yet to pay an Keebles completion) 2,387
Net financing cash outflow arising on acquisition ) 2,387

The allocation of far values Is Incomplete at the perlod end and values are provislonal. Detalls for the individual acquisitions are Included
on the following pages.

The acquisition date in each case Is the date of exchange of the sale and purchase agreement, being the date on which contro! passes
and the Group is exposed to variable returns.
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20. Acquisitions continued

OTB Eveling LLP (‘OTBE’)

On 23 November 2020, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire OTBE by purchasing the controfing membership interests of the entity.
This acquisition completed on 14 December 2020. OTBE is a law firm which will Introduce Knights' existing corporate, employment, dispute

resolution and real estate offering to the South West region.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identlfiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.

Canying Fair value
amount adjustment Total
£000 £'000 £'000

Identifiable assets
identifiable intangible assets - 443 443
Property, plant and equipment 58 - 58
Right-of-use assets - 201 201
Contract assets 480 (58) 432
Trade and other receivables 375 - 375
Cash and cash equivalents 64 - 64
Liabilities
Trade and other payables (202) (34) (236)
Lease liabilities - (201) (201)
Borrowings (255) - (255)
Provisions (20) (54) 74)
Deferred tax - (84} (84)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 510 213 723
Goodwill 683
Total consideration 1,406
Satisfied by:
Cash 706
Equity instruments (164,336 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings pic) 700
Total consideration transferred ' : o 1,408
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration {net of cash acquired) 642
Repayment of debt 255
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 897

The goodwill of £683,000 arlsing from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill s expected to be deductible

for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the conslderation was determined on the basls of the volume welghted average share price

for the 5 days prior to exchange.

A contingent consideration arrangement was entered into as part of the acquisition. This Is contingent on the sellers remaining In employment by
the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis
over the 2 year post-acqulsition period. The maximum undiscounted amount of all potential future payments under the contingent consideration
atrangement is £700,000 and is payable in equal instalments on the first and second annlversary of completion.

OTBE contributed £1,003,000 of revenue to the Graup's Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period from 1 November 2020 to 30 April 2021.

The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets bsing incorporated into Knights Professional Services

Limited from 14 December 2020.

The revenus and profit had the acquisition occurred at the beginning of the year Is not separately identifiable due to lack of management account

information avallable and the full integration on hive up.
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Mundays LLP (‘Mundays’)

On 21 March 2021, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire Mundays by purchasing the controlling membership intarests of the entity.

Economic benefit Is assumed from 21 March 2021. This acquisition completed on 16 April 2021. Mundays is a law firm which will strengthen Knights®

presence in the South East.

The amounts recognised in respect of the Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set aut in the table below,

Canying Fair value
amount adjustment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Identifiable assets
Identifiable intangible assets - 805 905
Praperty, plant and equipment 795 © 786
Right-of-use assets - 3,159 3,159
Contract assets 753 (117) 636
Trade and other recelvables 1,144 (114) 1,030
Cash and cash equivalents 3,051 - 3,051
Liabilities
Trade and other payables ' (1,977) 268 (1,709)
Lease liabilities - (3,201) (3,201)
Borrowings (2,132) - (2,132)
Provisions (172) (149) 321)
Deferred tax - (173) (173)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 1,462 569 2,031
Goodwill 1,974
Total consideration 4,005
Satlsfied by:
Cash . 2,755
Equity instruments {289,908 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc)’ 1,250
Total consideration transferred 4,005
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration (net of cash acquired) (296)
Repayment of debt 2,132
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 1,836

The goodwill of £1,974,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill Is expected to be deductible

for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average share pfice

for the 5 days prior to exchange.

A contingent conslderation arrangement was entered Into as part of the acquisition. This is contingent on the sellers remaining in employment by
the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a stralght-line basis
over the 2 year post acquisition period. The maximum undiscounted amount of all potential future payments under the contingent consideration

arrangement is £1,375,000 and is payable on the first and second anniversary of completion, £750,000 and £625,000 retrospectively.

Mundays contributed £956,000 of revenue to the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period from 22 March 2021 to 30 April 2021,
The profit contributed Is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into Knights Professlonal Services

Umited from 16 Aprii 2021,

The revenue and profit had the acquisition occurred at the beginning of the year is not separately identifiable due to lack of management account

information avallable and the full integration on hive up.
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20. Acquisitions continued

Housing Law Services LLP (‘HLS’)

On 31 March 2021 the Group exchanged contracts to acqulre spegcific asset and liabilities of HLS. HLS provides niche housing team that will
complement the existing Knights housing services offering. The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are as set out in the table below.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities are as set out in the table below.

Canying Fair value
amount adjustment Total
£000 £'000 £'000

ldentiflable assets
|dentifiable intangible assets - 503 503
Contract assets 15 - 15
Trade and other receivables 128 - 128
Cash and cash equivalents 267 - 267
Liabilities
Trade and other payables (62) 9 {71)
Deferred tax - (96) (96)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities ' 348 398 746
Goodwill 92
Total consideration 838
Satisfied by:
Cash 638
Deferred consideration 300
Total conslderation transferred 838
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration (net of cash acquired) 271
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 271

The goodwill of £92,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

HLS contributed £181,000 of revenue to the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period from 31 March 2021. The profit
contributed Is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into Knights Professicnal Services
Limited from 23 April 2021.

The revenue and profit had the acquisition occurred at the beglnning of the year is not separately identifiable due to lack of management
account information avallable.
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Keebles LLP (‘Keebles)

On 30 April 2021, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire Keebles by purchasing the controlling membership interests of the entity.
Economic benefit was obtalned from 30 April 2021. This acquisition complsted on 11 June 2021. Keebles provides entry into Sheffield
and complements the Group's existing presence In Nottingham and Leeds.

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.

Canying Falr value
amount adjustment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Identifiable assets
|dentifiable intangible assets - 1,851 1,851
Property, plant and equipment 398 - 398
Right-of-use assets - 1,255 1,255
Contract assets 3,114 - 3,114
Trade and other receivables 3,109 (109) 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,374 - 1,374
Liabilities
Trade and other payables (2,087) (640) (2,727
Lease liabilities - (1,255) (1,255)
Overdraft (1,852) - (1,852)
Debt 414) - (414)
Provisions {189) (480) (669)
Deferred tax - (351} (351)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 3,453 271 3,724
Goodwill’ 4,686
Total consideration 8,410
Satisfied by: o o B ) o
Cash ' . ’ 4,910
Equity Instruments (791,890 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc) 3,500
Total consideration transferred 8,410
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash conslderation {net of cash acquired) (£4.8m yet to pay on Keebles completion) 5,388
Repayment of debt 414
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 5,802

The goodwill of £4,686,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce, None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the cansideration will be determined on the basls of the volume weighted average share
price for the 5 days prior to exchange,

A contingent consideration arrangement was entered into as part of the acquisition. This is contingent on the sellers remaining in employment

by the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basls over the 2 year post acquisition period. The maximum undiscounted amount of all potential future payments under the contingent
consideration arrangement Is £3,132,000 and Is payable on the first and second anniversary of completion.

A non-refundable deposit of £100,000 was paid on exchange.

The revenue and profit had the acquisition occurred at the beginning of the year is not separately identiflable due to fack of management account
informatlon avallable and the businass structure of the acquired entity.
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21. Property, plant and equipment

Expenditure on .
short leasehold Office  Furniture and Right-of-use
property equipment fittings  Motor vehicles assets Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
As at 1 May 19 2,006 1,932 1,049 5 18,407 24,399
Acquisttions of subsidiaries 367 586 151 - 4,515 5,618
Additions 1,129 982 12 - 1,822 3,945
Disposals (1) (70) (217) 5 - (293)
As at 30 April 2020 3,501 3,430 985 - 25,744 33,670
Acquisitions of subsidiarles 566 493 183 - 4,615 5,857
Additions 3,350 1,005 1 - 16,385 20,741
Disposals {160} (20) (149) - (154) (483)
Impairment - - - - (739) (739)
Alignment 618 (452) 11 - - 177
As at 30 Apri] 2021 7,875 4,456 1,041 - 45,851 59,223
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 May 2019 406 950 312 5 - 1,673
Deprsclation charge 250 494 114 - 1,995 2,863
Eliminated on disposal - @) (158) ®) L - (67)
As at 30 April 2020 656 1,440 268 - 1,995 4,359
Depreciation charge 446 761 102 - ©og727 5,036
Efiminated on disposal - (25) 3) (24) - (84) {136)
impairment - - - - (193) (193)
Aligneert 618 (410) 13 - - 213
As at 30 April 2021 1,693 1,782 359 - 5,445 9,279
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2021 6,182 2,674 682 - 40,406 49,944
At 30 April 2020 2,845 1,990 727 - 23,749 29,311
At 30 April 2019 1,600 982 737 - - 3,319

Depreciation of £43,000 (2020: £86,000) and net impalrment due to leases being classified as onerous of £546,000 (2020: £nil) Is included
in non-underlying operating costs.

See note 37 for further details of Right-of-use assets.

22. Contract assets and liabilities

Contract Trade Contract

assets receivables liabilities

£'000 £'000 £000
As at 30 April 2021 ' 28,530 25,951 (216)
As at 30 April 2020 21,507 22,450 (177)

The movement during the year ls not separately Identifiable.
Contract assets
Contract assets consist of unbilled revenue in respect of legal and professional services performed to date.

Contract assets In respect of fee-for-service and fixed fee arrangements are billed at appropriate intervals, normally on a monthly basis in arrears,
in line with the performancs of the services. Where such matters remain unbilled at the period end the asset is valued on a contract-by-contract
basls at its expected recoverable amount.

The Group undertakes some matters based on contingent fee arrangements, These matters are billed when the claim is successfully settled.
For matters angoing at the period end, each matter is valued based on its specific clrcumstances. If the matter has agreed funding arrangements
In place, then It Is valued based on the estimated amount recoverable from the funding depending on the stage of completion of the matter.
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i the liability of a matter has been admitted and performance obligations satisfied, such that it is no longer contingent, these matters are valued
based on the expected recoverable amount. Due to the complex nature of these matters, they can take a considerable time to be finalised
therefore performance obligations may be settled in one period but the matter not billed until a later financial period. The amount of contingent
fee work in progress at 30 April 2021 was £5,781,000 (2020: £4,114,000).

If the performance cbligations for contingent matters have not been satisfled at the reporting date, these assets are valued on a contract-by-contract
basis taking into account the expected recoverable amount and the likelthood of success. Whete the likelihood of success of a contingent fee
arrangement is less than highly probable, the amount recognised In contract assets is further reduced to reflect this uncertainty.

During the year, contract assets of £4,196,000 (2020: £8,292,000) were acquired in business combinations,

An Impalrment loss of £30,000 has been recognised in relation to contract assets in the year (2020: £27,000). This is based on the expected credit
loss under IFRS 9 of these types of assets. The contract asset loss is estimated at 0.2% (2020: 0.2%) of the balance.

Trade recelvables

Trade recelvables are recognised when a bill has been issued to the cllent, as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due. Trade recelvables also includes disbursements.

Bills are payable within thirty days unless otherwise agreed with the client.

Contract liabilities

When matters are billed in advance or on the basis of a monthly retainer, this is recognised in contract liabilities and released over time when the
services are performed.

23. Trade and other receivables

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£000 £'000

Trade receivables 26,953 23,003
Impairment provision — Trade recsivables {1,002) (553)
Prepayments and other receivables 5,570 4,596
31,521 27,046

Trade recelvables

The average credit perlod taken on sales Is 35 days as at 30 April 2021 (2020: 42 days). No Interest is charged on trade recelvables. The Group
uses approprlate methods to recover all balances once overdue. Once the expectation of recovary is deemed remote a debt may be written off.

The Graup measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to Iifetime expected credit losses (ECLY). The Group applies

the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 8, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. As the Group's histarical credit loss experlence does not show significantly different loss patterns for different client
segments, the provision for loss allowance is based on past due status.

The following table detalls the risk profile of trade raceivables {excluding disbursements) based on the Group's provision matrix.

31-60 days 61-80days  91-120 days >120 days

30 April 2021 : Not past due past due past due past due past due Total
Expected credit loss rate 0.21% 0.22% 0.24% 1.17% 23.20% 3.10%
Estimated total gross carrying amount (£'000) 12,925 3,958 1,362 827 2,696 21,768
Lifetime ECL £'000 27 9 3 10 625 674

In addition to the above on trade receivables a further £328,000 (2020: £80,000) impairment loss has been recognised against disbursement
balances. This is based on 100% impairment against all disbursements with no activity on the matter for over 12 months and 0.2% against the
remainder of the balance based upon the expected credit loss of this type of asset.

Other receivables

As at 30 April 2021 other receivables Includes £nll (2020; £187,000) of consideration paid in advance relating to the acquisition of Cummins Solicitors
Lirnited which Is contingent on continued employment over a 2 year period. This was released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over
the 2 year period.
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24. share capital
Ordinary shares
Number £'000
As at 1 May 2019 73,325,419 147
Changes during the period
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each Issued at share placing 4,761,905 9
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each issued In respect of exercised share options 41,328 1
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each issued in respect of exercised share options equivalent to dividend entitiement 138 -
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each issued In respect of exercised share warrants 706,897 1
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each Issued as consideration in the purchase of subsidiaties 3,240,644 6
As at 30 April 2020 82,076,332 164
Changes during the paricd
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each issued in respect of exerclsed share options 75,798 -
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each issued in respect of exercised share options equivalent to dividend enitiement 418 -
Ordinary shares of 0.2p each issued as consideration in the purchase of subsidiaries 454,244 1
At 30 April 2021 (allotted, called up and fully paid) 82,606,792 165
25. Share premium
£'000
As at 1 May 2019 32,486
Premium arising on issue of equity shares 34,475
Expenses of Issue of equity shares (709)
As at 30 April 2020 66,252
Preriiim atising oh 1ssue of equity shares 2117
At 30 April 2021 68,369
26. Reserves
Merger Reta[ned
reserve earnings
£'000 £'000
As at 1 May 2019 (3,536) 10,158
IFRS 16 impact (note 37) - 2,058
Profit for the petiod and total comprehensive income - 1,820
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments - 789
Dividends (note 18) - (1,755)
Balance at 30 April 2020 (3,538) 13,070
Profit for the peried and total comprehensive income - 3,402
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments -~ 1,219
Balance at 30 April 2021 (3,536} 17,691

The merger reserve of £3,536,000 arose on the share for share exchange by Knights 1759 Limited and Knights Professional Services Limited.
The reserve Is the difference between the nominat value of Knights 1759 Limited share capital and amounts pald to the shareholders as part of
the Group reorganisatlon in October 2616 and the share capital, share premium value and capital redemption of the shares acquired in Knights

Professlonal Services Limited.

Retained Earnings represents cumulative profits and iosses of the Group net of distributions ta members,
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27.Borrowings

30 April 2021 30 Aprit 2020
£000 £'000

Secured borrowings at amortised cost: .
Bank loans 24,064 28,650

Total borrowings 24,064 28,650
Amount due for setiement within 12 months 414 -
Amount due for setiement after 12 months 23,650 28,650

The above excludes lease liabilities.
All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated In sterling.
The Group has a credit facility of £40,000,000 in total (2020: £40,000,000). The facility remains available until 25 June 2023.

The facility is a revolving credit facility and is has the ability to roll on a monthly or quarterly basis and Is due for final repayment on 25 June 2023.
The facllity is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the Graup's assets. The facility canies an interest margin above LIBCR of between
1.65% and 2.45% depending an the leverage level. A commitment fee of one third of the applicable margin is payable on the undrawn amounts.

The short term bank loan Is secured by a debenture over all of the assets of Keebles LLP. The debenture was released on 14 June 2021.

28. Deferred consideration

30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000

Non-current liabilities

Deferred consideration -~ 127
- 127

Current liabilities
Deferred conslderation .- - - - SRETE B 1,005 - - 2,723
1,095 2,723

Deferred consideration as at 30 April 2021 relates to the acquisitions of Fraser Brown, ASB Law LLP, EGL and Shulmans LLP and Is not contingent.

In addition the Group has contingent consideration relating to acquisitions accrued and included within trade and other payables. This is contingent
based upan continued employment and Is being accrued on a monthly basls in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in accordance with the
terms of the agreements. It is expected that employment will continue for the terms of the agreements and, therefore, the contingent consideration
will be payable in full.

29, Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised by the Group and mavements thereon during the current and prior
reporting period.

Accelerated
capital Intangible  Share-based

allowances assets payments IFRS 16 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

As at 1 May 2019 201 3,347 (60) - 3,488
IFRS 16 impact - - - (299) (299)
Charge/(credit) for the prior year 87) (5) 9 - (83)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 1,887 - - 1,897
Charge/(credit) for the year 282 308 (156) t:)) 426
As at 30 April 2020 396 5,547 (207) (307) 5,429
Acquisitions of subsidiarles - 704 - - 704
Charge/(credit) for the year 148 (411) (242) 27 (478)
As at 30 April 2021 544 5,840 (449) (280) 5,655
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29. Deferred tax continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable tight to do so, The following Is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances after offset for financial reporting purposes:

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£000 £'000

Deferred tax assets (729) (514)
Deferred tax liabilities 6,384 5,943
5,655 5,429

30. Trade and other payables

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000

Bank overdraft 1,852 -
Trade payables ' 3,716 3,033
Other taxation and soclal secutity 6,564 6,180
Other payables 2,293 2,817
Accrued consideration 8,310 -
Accruals . 9,569 7,989
32,303 20,018

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongolng costs. The average credit period taken
for trade purchases is 26 days (2020: 25 days). No interest is charged on the trade payables.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to thelir falr value.

Accrued consideration relates the acquisition of Keebles LLP where contracts were exchanged as at 30 April 2021 but did not formally complete untll
11 June 2021. .

The bank overdraft is secured by a debenture over all of the assets of Keebles LLP. The debenture was released on 14 June 2021.
31. Provisions

Onerous Professional

Dilapidation contract indemnity

provision provision provision Total

£'000 - £°000 £'000 £000

As at 1 May 2019 473 435 539 1,447
IFRS 16 reallocation - (435) - (435)
Acquisitions of subsldiaries 652 - 264 916
Additional provision in the year 546 - 90 636
Utilisation of provision (123) - (295) 418)
As at 30 April 2020 1,548 - 598 2,146
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 768 - 296 1,064
Additional provislon in the year 1,828 133 195 2,156
Utllisation of provision (145) {127) (220) (492)
As at 30 April 2021 3,999 6 869 4,874

The dilapidations provislon relates to lhé potentiat rectification of leasehold sites ubon expiration of the leases. This has been based on internal estimates
of the schedule of works included in the lease.

The onerous contract provision relates to vacant offices where the Group Is the lessee. The Group is actively marketing these leases for
reassignment. The provision represents the Directors® estimate of the future lease payments and other associated property costs to be pald by the
Group prior to reassignment of the leases. The onerous contracts provision also includes contracts acquired via acquisition that are non-cancellable.
The provision represents the remalning payments and other assoclated property costs under the terms of the lease. Future lease payments are offset
against the provision.

The professional indemnity provision relates to a number of disputes in the ordinary course of business for all clalms where costs are likely to be
incurred and represents the cost of defending and concluding clalms and any excess that may become payable. The Group carrles professional
indemnity insurance and no separate disclosure is made of the cost of claims covered by Insurance as to do so could seriously prejudice the position
of the Group.
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32. Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments
30 Aprif 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £000
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Contract assets 28,530 21,507
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) : 26,421 23,425
Cash and cash equivalents . 4,783 12,741
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 24,064 28,650
Deferred consideration , 1,095 2,850
Trade and other payables 25,739 12,872
Leases . 42,640 23,844
Fair value
Trade and other payables - 967

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's finance function monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks include market tisk
{interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Market risk '

The Group'’s activities expose It primarily to the financial risks of changes in Interest rates (see below). Marlket risk exposures are measured using
sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner In which these risks are managed and measured.

Interest rate risk management

The Group Is exposed to interest rate risk because the Group borrows funds at floating Interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by keeping
the level of borrowings at a manageabile level.

Interest rate sensitlvity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to Interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For floating rate llabilities, the analysis Is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting pertod was
outstanding for the whole year.

If Interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 30 April 2021 would
decreasefincrease by £120,000 (2020: decrease/increase by £143,000). This Is attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to Interest rates has increased during the current year mainly due to the increase in the borrowings of the Group.
Credit risk management
Note 23 details the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the measurement bases used to determine expected credit losses.

The risk of bad debts Is mitigated by the Group having a policy of performing credit checks or receiving payments on account for new clients
when practical and ensuring that the Group's exposure to any Individual client Is tightly controlied, through credit control policies and procedures.

Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s management of working capital and the financlal charges on its debt instruments and repayments of

principal. There Is arisk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meetings lts financial obligations as they fall due or not meet its required covenants.
The Group manages this risk and Its cash flow requirements through detailed annual and monthly cash flow forecasts. These forecasts are reviewed
regularly to ensure that the Group has sufficlent working capital to enable it to meet all of its short-term and long-term cash flow needs.

The tables below analyse the Group's financlal liabilities Into relevant maturity groupings based on thelr contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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32. Financial instruments continued

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

<1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

30 April 2021 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowings 414 - 23,650 24,064
Deferred consideration 1,095 - - 1,095
Bank overdraft 1,852 - - 1,852
Trade and other payables 23,887 - - 23,887
<1year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

30 April 2020 £'600 £'000 £000 £'000
Borrowings - - 28,650 28,850
Deferred consideration ) 2,723 127 - 2,850
Trade and other payables 13,839 - - 13,839

The Group has met its covenant tests during the year.
For lease maturity see note 37.

Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (as disclosed in note 27) and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves,

and retalned earnings as disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity).

In managing its capital, the Group's primary objective is to provide a return for its equity shareholders through capital growth and future dividend
incorne. The Group seeks to maintain a gearing ratio that balances risk and returns at an acceptable level and also to maintain a sufficlent funding

base to enable the Group to meet its working capital and strateglc Investment needs and objectives.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

30 Aprll 2021 30 Aprli 2020

£'000 £'000

Borrowings (note 27) 24,064 28,660
Cash and cash equivalents (4,783) (12,741)
Bank overdraft ] 1,852 -
Net debt 21,133 15,909
Equity 82,689 75,950
% %

Net debt to equity ratio 26 21

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policles and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases
for recognition of Income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financlal liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2.

33. Capital commitments

As at 30 April 2021 there is a capital commitment of £71,000 (2020: £82,000) In relation to an ongoing office refurbishment.
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34. Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated from operations

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£°000 £°000

Profit before taxation 5,508 4,058

Adjustments for:

Amonrtisation 2,704 1,501
Depreclation ~ property, plant and equipment 1,309 858
Depreciation — right-of-use assets (net of £43,000 (2020; £86,000) included in non-underlying costs) 3,684 1,909
Loss on disposal of equipment (net of £284,000 (2020; £97,000) included [n non-underlying costs) 33 8
Contingent consideration expense 5,933 2,996
Non-underlying operating costs 3,755 4,581
Share based payments 1,387 861
Interest income {398) (399)
Interest expanse 1,881 1,530
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 25,797 17,903
Increase in contract assets {2,827) (2.109)
Increase in trade and other receivables (135) (1,1886)
Decrease In provisions (263) (183)
Increase in contract liabllities 39 57
Decrease in trade and other payables {2,233) (697)
Cash generated from operations 20,378 13,791

Adjusted as follows

Contract Trade and other

Contract Trade and other

assets receivables Proviglone liabflitloo payables

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Movement per balance sheet (7,023) (4,475) 2,728 39 12,284
Acquired 4,196 4,534 (1,064) - (5,043)
Measurement period adjustments - (125) 417 - 482)
Keebles consideration yet to be pald/issued - - - - (8,310)
Dilapidations adjustment - - (1,510) - 150
One off - - - - 1,099
Other - (69) - - (79)
Overdraft classed as cash and cash equivalent - - - - (1,852)
Total (2,827) (135) (263) 39 (2,233)

35. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, Including both cash and non-cash changes, Llabliities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s Gonsolidated Statement of Cash

Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Borrowings Leases

£000 £'000

As at 1 May 2020 28,650 23,844
New 19,000 17,049
Acquired 2,801 4,657
Interest (net of £22,000 included in non-underlying) 573 1,199
Disposals - (60)
Repayments (net of £308,000 included In non-underlying) (26,960) (4,049)
As at 30 April 2021 24,064 42,640
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36. Alternative performance measures

This Annual Report contains both statutory measures and alternative performance measures. In management’s view the underlying performance
of the business provides a more meaningful comparison of how the Group's business Is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis.

The Group's alternative performance measures and key performance indicators are aligned to the Group’s strategy and together are used to measure
the performance of the business.

Alternative performance measures are non-GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) measures and pravide supplementary Information

to assist with the understanding of the Group’s financial results and with the evaluation of operating performance for all the periods presented.
Alternative performance measures, however, are not a measure of financial performance under IAS In conformity with the requirements of CA 2006
and should not be consldered as a substitute for measures determined in accordance with IAS in conformity with the requirements of CA 20086.

As the Group’s alternative performance measures are not defined terms under IAS in conformity with the requirements of CA 2006 they may
therefore not be comparable with simllarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Recongillations of alternative performance measures to the most directly comparable measures reported in accordance with IAS In conformity with
the requirements of CA 2006 are provided below.

a) Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA [s presented as an alternative performance measure to show the underlying operating performance of the Group excluding
the effects of depreciation, amortisation and non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended

30 Aptil 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000

Operating profit 7,330 5,588
Depreciation and amortisation charges (note 11) 7,730 4,276
Non-underlying costs (note 13) 10,288 8,090
Underlying EBITDA 25,408 17,954

b) Underlying profit before tax (PBT)

Underlying PBT is presented as an alternative performance measure to show the underlying performance of the Group excluding the effects
of amartisation of intangible assets and non-underlying items.

- .. Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 Aprit 2020

£'000 £'000
Profit before tax 5,509 4,058
Amortisation (ad]usted for amortisation on computer software) 2,622 1,427
Non-underlying costs (note 13) : 10,288 8,080
Non-recuring finance costs - 41
Undenrlying profit before tax 18,419 13,616

For the year ended 30 April 2020 non-recurring finance costs relate to exit fees and arrangement fees expensed due to the refinancing of the Group
during the year and accrued interest on deferred consideration.

c) Underlying profit after tax (PAT) and underlying earnings per share (EPS)

Underlying PAT and EPS are presented as alternative performance measures to show the underlying performance of the Group excluding the effects
of amartisation of intangible assets, share-based payments and non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£7000 £'000
Profit after tax 3,402 1,820
Amartisation (adjusted for amorlisation on computer software) 2,622 1,427
Non-underlying operating costs (note 13) - 10,288 8,080
Non-recurring finance costs - 41
Tax in respect of the above (1,272) (672)
Underlying profit after tax 15,040 10,706
Underlying earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic underlying earnings per share 18.30 14,33
Diluted underlying earnings per share 18.07 14.20

Tax has been calculated at the corporation tax rate 19% (2020: 19%) and deferred tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%).
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d) Free cash flow and cash conversion %

Free cash flow measures the Group's underlying cash generation. Cash conversion % maasures the Group's conversion of its underlying PAT into
free cash flows. Free cash flow is calculated as the total of net cash from operating activities after adjusting for tax paid and the impact of IFRS 16.
Cash conversion % is calculated by dividing free cash fiow by underlying profit after tax, which Is reconciled to profit after tax above.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000
Cash generated from operations {note 34} 20,378 13,791
Tax pald (2,125) (2,907)
Total cash outflow for IFRS16 leases (non underlying) (3,741) (2,366)
Free cashfiow : 14,512 8,518
Underlying profit after tax 15,040 10,706
Cash conversion (%) 96% 80%

37. Lease liabilities

Incremental borrowing rates applied to individual leases ranged between 1.70% and 6.49%.

30 April 2021 30 Aprii 2020 -

£'000 £000
Right-of-use assets
Property 39,420 22,649
Equipment ‘ 986 1,100
40,406 23,749
Lease liability
> 1 year 39,020 21,078
< 1 yaar 3,20 2,7RR
42,640 23,844
The table below shows lease liabilities maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows at 30 April 2021,
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
Property Equipment Total Property Equipment Total
£'000 £000 £7000 £000 £'000 £000
Less than one year 4,594 349 4,943 3,424 565 3,989
One to five years 18,313 709 19,022 11,015 850 11,865
More than five years 24,834 - 24,834 15,099 - 15,099
47,741 1,058 48,799 29,538 1,415 30,953

The table below shows amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income far short term and low value leases as at 30 April 2021:

30 April 2021 30 April 2020
Property Equipment Total Property Equipment Total
) £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 1000 o)
Expenses relating to short — term leases 244 47 291 143 18 161
244 47 291 143 18 161

For right-of-use asset depreciation and lease interest charges on leases please see note 11 and 14,

Total lease payments, including short term and low value leases for the year to 30 April 2021 were £4,340,000 (2020: £2,366,000).

105




Knights Group Ho|dings Pic 1 Annual Report anc Acconits 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2021

38. Defined benefit pension schemes

The Stonehams Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit penslon arrangement, the Stonehams Pension Scheme (the “Scheme”). The Scheme provides benefits

based on salary and length of service on retirement, leaving service, or death. The following disclosures exclude any allowance for any other pension

schemes operated by the Group.

The Scheme was acquired as part of the acquisition of ASB Law where contracts were exchanged on 5 March 2020. Therefore the disclosures

below represent the period of ownership from 5 March 2020 to 30 April 2021. The scheme is closed and provides benefits for 43 legacy employees

(now pensioners and deferred members).

The Scheme Is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pensions Act 2004. A valuation of the Schema is carried out at least once
every three years to determine whether the Statutory Funding Objective is met. As part of the process the Group must agree with the Trustees
of the Scheme the contributions to be pald to address any shortfall against the Statutory Funding Objective.

The most recent comprehensive actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carled out as at 31 December 2018. The results of that valuation were
updated to 30 April 2021 allowing for cashflows in and out of the Scheme and changes to assumptions over the perlod.

From January 2020 the Employer started to make annual contributions of £35,000 per annum towards administration expenses. No change
In this is expected for the next financial year. Administration expenses from 1 November 2017 to 31 December 2019 have been met directly
from the assets of the Schems. The Group will separately meet the cost of the PPF levy.

The Scheme typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and longevity risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high

quality corporate bond yields; if the return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Currently assets are Invested In very low risk funds, which will reduce volatllity. The investment approach Is reviewed every

three years as part of the valuation process,

Interest risk There is some hedging in the asset portfolio, but at a low level,

A decrease In the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability but this will be partially offset by an increase In the return

on the plan’s debt Investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan flability Is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
particlpants both during and after their employment. An increase In the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase

the plan‘s llabllity.

The average duration of the Schemes obligations is 16 years.

Explanation of amounts in the financial statements
Actuarial assumpiions

Principal actuarlal assumptions

30 April 2021 30 April 2020
% ' %
Discount rate 1.83 1.68
Retail Prices Index (“RPI”) Inflation 3.53 2.85
Consumer Price Index {"CPI”) Inflation 2.83 1.95
Pension increase (LP[ 5%) 3.36 2.80
Penslon increase (LPI 2.5%) 2.24 2.03
Post retirement mortality 80%/100% (m/f) S2PA CMI_2020 90%/100% (m/f) S2PA CMI_2017
projections {with standard smoothing projections (with standard smoothing
parameter of 7.5) using a long-term paramster of 7.5) using a long-term
] improvement rate of 1.0% pa improvement rate of 1.0% pa
Cammutation 80% of members are assumed  80% of members are assumed to take
to take the maximum tax free the maximum tax free cash possible
cash possible using current using current commutation factors

commutation factors
Life expectancy at age 65 of male aged 45 22,6 236
Life expectanoy at age 65 of male aged 65 244 22.6
Life expectancy at age 65 of female aged 45 23.5 25.2
Life expectancy at age 65 of female aged 65 ' 253 241
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The average duration of the Schemes obligations is 16 years.

The current asset split is as follows

Financial Statements

Asset Asset
allocationat  allocation at
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
Equities and growth assets 78% 20%
Bonds, LDl and cash 22% 80%
Value as at Value as at
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000
Fair value of assets 3,255 3,384
Present value of funded obligations (2,791) (2,732)
Surplus in scheme 464 652
Deferred tax - -
Net defined benefit surplus after deferred tax 464 652
The falr value of the assets can be analysed as follows:
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Low risk Investment funds 720 692
Credit Investment funds 1,673 1,434
Matching funds 691 998
Cash 171 260
Fair value of assets , 3,255 3,384
Q0 April 20241 30 April 2020
£'000 £'000
Adminlistration costs 29 2
Interest on liabilities (10) 2
Total charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 19 -
Remeasurements over the period since acquisition
30 Aprit 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000
Loss on assets in excess of interest (7 (145)
Loss on scheme obligation from assumptions and experience (157) -
Gain on scheme obligations due to scheme experience 5 -
Total remeasurements {169) (145)
The change in value of assets
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000
Fair value of assets 3,384 3,534
Interest on assets 50 8
Benefits paid (133) (11)
Administration costs (29) 2)
Loss on assets in excess of interest {17 (145)
Fair value of assets 3,255 3,384
Actual return on assets 33 (137)
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38. Defined benefit pension schemes continued

Change in value of liabilities
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000
Value of llabilities 2,732 2,737
Interest cost 40 6
Benefits pald {133) (11)
Actuarial gain 152 -
Value of liabilities 2,791 2,732

Sensitivity of the value placed on the liabilities
Approximate effect on liability
30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000
Discount rate
Minus 0.50% 229 208
Inflation
Plus 0.50% 164 161
Life Expectancy
Plus 1.0 years : 113 123

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, inflation rate and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumplions occuning at the end of the reporting
petiod, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligation as it is unilkely that the
changes in assumptions would occur In isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may ba correlated.

The With Profits Section of the Cheviot pension
Allocation of liabllities between employers

The With Profits Section was acquired as part of the acquisition of ASB Law where contracts were exchanged on 5 March 2020 and the transaction
completed on 17th April 2020.

The Trustes has discretion under the contribution rule on how the cost of providing the benefits of the With Profits Section is allocated between
employers. The contribution rule applles until the earlier of the discharge of the employer by the Trustee and the termination of the With Profits
Section. The Trustee's current policy is not to discharge employers. Employers therefore remain llable under the contribution rule even if their
last member dies or transfers out.

The Trustee has been considering how best to ensure all employers bear an appropriate share of the With Profits Section’s obligations whilst
ensuring falrness between employers and a practical and transparent methodalogy far the future.

As discussed at the Employers’ Meeting on 5 July 2017, the Trustee has declded to fix the allocation between employers on the basis of the
promised benefits just before the Section was re-classified in 2014 (the valuation as at 31 December 2013). The allocation to each employer
will be expressed as a percentage of the total Scheme liabilities. The intention is to apply this percentage to any funding, buyout or IFRS deficit
in the future to calculate any contribution that may be due or any accounting liability.

The astimated percentage In relation to Knights Professional Services Limited is 0.790%.

This approach enables each employer to calculate the extent of thelr obligation to the Section on the basis of the funding leve! at any time.
Cheviot will publish funding updates on the website: quarterly, on the scheme funding basls, which includes an allowance far future investment
returns; and annually, on an estimated buyout basis, which looks at the position should all benefits be secured with an external provider.

Estimated funding position as at 30 April:

Scheme funding basis
30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£000 £'000
Total assets 92,200 94,400
Total liabilities excluding expenses ' (88,600) (97,200}
Surplus/(deficit) 3,600 (2,800)
Funding level 104% 97%
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Allocation to the Group
The estimated share of the Scheme liabilities Is 0.780%.
Over the year to 30 April 2021, the Section’s funding position improved from a small deficit to a small surplus.

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£'000 £'000
Estimated cost of praviding benefits (700) (768)
Value of assets 728 746
Resulting surplus/{shortfall) 28 (22)
Funding level 104% 97%

The surplus/deficit has not been recognised as management consider this to be temporary and not material.
The Trustee continues to monitor the funding position.

The Trustee reserves the right to withdraw, replace or amend the policy for the allocation between employers In the future.

39. Related party transactions
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed In this note. Transactions between the Group and its other related partles are disclosed below.

KPV Propco Lid [s a company controlied by Mr DA Beech, a person with significant influence over the Group and a member of key
management personnel.

The Group leases a property from KPV Propco Ltd. During the year rents of £376,000 (2020: £367,000) were charged by KPV Propco Ltd
to the Group. A FRi lease of The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme was granted for a term of 25 years from and Including 24 July 2017
to 24 July 2039 at a current rent of £376,000 per annum (excluding VAT).

The Group received a contribution for repair wark in the year from KPV Propco Ltd of £26,000 (2020: £nil). These repairs relates to the building
and site and were therefore pald by KPV Propco Ltd.

During the year Knights Professional Services Limited charged KPV Propco Ltd for professlonal services totalling £126,000 (2020: £98,000).
At 30 April 2021, there was an amount of £3,000 owed to the Group from KPV Propco Ltd {2020: £246,000 owed to KPV Propca Ltd by the Group).

During the year Knights Professional Services Limited provided legal services to the Directors In an individual capacity of £154,000 (2020:£nil).
At 30 April 2021, there was an amount of £1,000 (2020: £nlf) owed to the Group from the Directors which was subsequently settled in line with
normal credit terms offered.

Remuneration of key management personnge! - - -

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below In aggregate for each of the categorles specified in IAS 24
Related Party Disclosures.

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2021 30 April 2020

£000 £000

Short-term employze benefits and social security costs 1,193 1,174
Penslon costs 22 23
Share-based payments 209 181
1,424 1,378

Key management personnel includes Board members and Directors of the Group and the main trading company Knights Professional
Services Limited.

Transactions with directors
Dividends totalling £nil {2020: £787,000) were paid in the year In respect of Ordinary Shares held by the Gompany's Directors.
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Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 April 2021

30 Aprit 2021 30 Aprit 2020

Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 43 2,363 1,145
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries 44 73,210 69,118

75,573 70,263

Current assets
Trade and other recelvables . 31 48
Total assets 75,604 70,311
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital i 45 165 164
Share premium 45 68,369 66,2562
Share based payment reserve ' 46 2,364 1,145
Other reserve 46 (100) (100)
Retained earnings 46 4,315 2,565
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 75,113 70,026
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 81 58
Corporation tax liabllity 410 227
Total liabllities 491 285
Total equity and liabilities ' 75,604 70,311

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company s exempt from the requirement to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The Company reported a profit for the year ended 30 April 2021 of £1,750,000 (2020: £2,957,000).

The financlal statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 14 July 2021 and are signed on Its behalf by:

£ Wlais

Kate Lewis
Director

Registered No. 11290101
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Financial Statements
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the perlod ended 30 Aprit 2021
Share-Based Retained
Share capital Share premium Payments  Other reserve earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 May 2019 147 32,486 356 (100) 1,363 34,252
Profit for the period and total
comprehensive income - - - - 2,957 2,957
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments - - ~ 789 - - 789
Issue of shares 17 33,766 - - - 33,783
Dividends paid - - - - (1,755) (1,755)
At 30 April 2020 164 66,252 1,145 (100} 2,565 70,026
Profit for the period and total
comprehensive income - - - - 1,750 1,750
Transactions with owners In their
capacity as owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments - - 1,219 - - 1,219
Issue of shares 1 2,117 - - - 2,118
Balance at 30 April 2021 165 2,364 {100) 4,315 75,113

68,369
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

40. Accounting policies

The separate financlal statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The Company meets the definition
of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reporting Requirements’ issued by the FRC. Accordingly, these financial statements
were prepared in accordance with Financlal Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'.

As permiitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to share-based
paymants, financlal instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a
cash-flow statement, standards not yet effective and certain related party transactions.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those
set out in note 2 to the consalidated financial statements except as noted below.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for Impairment.

On 18 June 2018, the whole of the share capital of Knights 1759 Limited was acquired by the Company via a share for share exchange agreement.
This was a Group reorganisation satisfying the criterla of 1AS 27:13. The Investment cost Is measured at £nil because the carrying amount of the
equity ltems shown In the separate financlal statements of Knights 1759 Limited was negative at the date of the reorganisation.

Investments In subsidiarles includes capital contributions to subsidiaries as a result of the Issue of equity-settied share-based payments to
employees of subsidiaries. The accounting policy for share-based payments is set out in note 2.14 to the consolldated financial statements.

41, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 40, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabliities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assaclated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In the perlod In
which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects only that perlod, or in the period of the revision and future periads if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

There are no major accounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of resulting In a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the Company's assets and liabllities within the next financlal year.

42, Profit for the year

As permitted by 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate Statement of Comprehensive Income Is presented In respect of the parent Company.
The profit attributable to the Company Is disclosed In the footnote to the Company's Statement of Financial Position,

The auditor’s remuneratlon for audit and other services Is disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The average monthly number of employees comprised of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and was & (2020: 6). Thelr aggregate
remuneration borne by the Company was £nil (2020: £nll).

The Directors’ emoluments are disclosed In note 8 to the consolldated financial statements.

43. Investments in subsidiaries

£'000
Cost and net bools value
At 30 April 2019 356
Capital contribution in respact of equity-settled share-based payments 789
At 30 Aprll 2020 1,145
Capital contribution In respect of equity-sattled share-based payments ‘ ' 1,219
At 30 April 2021 2,364
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Further information about share-based payment transactions is provided in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements,

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 30 April 2021 are as follows:

Praportion  Proportion of
) Place of business and of ownership  voting power
Name registered office address Principal activity Class of shares interest % held %
Knights 1759 Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Holding company Ordinary 100%* 100%™
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Knights Professional The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Provision of legal Ordinary 100% 100%
Services Limited Staffordshire, ST5 0QW and professional
services
Turner Parkinson LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant** N/A 99.99% 99.99%
Staffordshire, ST5 CQW
Spearing Walte LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant** N/A 99.99% 99.99%
Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Darbys Solicitors LLP Midland House West Way, Botley, Oxford, Dormant** N/A 99.99% 99.99%
OX2 OPH
Knights Solicitors LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant N/A 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Cummins The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Darmant** Ordinary 100% 100%
Solicitors Limited Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
BrookStreet The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Business Support N/A 99.99% 99.89%
des Roches LLP Staffordshire, ST5 0QW Services
K&S Secretaries Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Darmant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST CQW
Knights Trustee Company  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
No 1 Limited Staffordshire, ST5 OQW
Knights Trustee Company The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
No 2 Limited Staffordshire, ST5 0QW .
K&S Directors Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 O0QW
Turner Parkinson The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Nominees Limited Staffordshire, STS 0QW
K&S (Naminees) Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
’ Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
K&S (560) Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%™
Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Charden Enterprises The Brampton, Newcastie-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%***
Limited Staffordshire, ST5S 0QW
Four Below Zero Limited ~ The Brampton, Newcastie-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%***
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Endzin Limited The Brampton, Newcastie-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%***
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
DDB Caonsuiting Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%***
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Wingelock Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%***
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
ASB Asplre LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST6 0QW .
ASB Law LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Edward Cursham Limited  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Patrick Wood Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW ‘
Gavin White Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%

Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

43. Investments in subsidiaries continued

n4

Staffordshire, ST5 0QW

Proportion  Proportion of
Place of business and of ownershlp  voting power
Name registered office address Principal activity Class of shares interest % held %
Donald Peel Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Christopher Barnes Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Richard Wollacott Limited  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Thomas Gray Law Limited  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS CQW
John Tansur Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Wendy Hooley Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS AQW
Adrian Slater Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Laura Mackin Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Anthony J Ogley Limited ~ The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Erin Vickers Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Fiona Boswell Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS CQW
_ Clive Day Limited _ The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant -~ Ordinary . 100% - 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Edward Capes Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST6 0QW :
ERT Law Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, STS 0QW .
Arthur Chapman Limited ~ The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant A Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Simon Lelghton Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant A Ordinary and 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW B Ordinary
Bob Agnew Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant A Ordinary 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Croftons Solicitors LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant N/A 100% 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Croftons Legal The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Services Limited Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Dakeyne Emms Gilmour ~ The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant D Ordinary 160% 100%
Liberson Limited Staffordshire, ST5 0QW £ Ordinary
G Ordinary
L Ordinary
Shulmans LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant NA . 99.9% 99.9%
Staffordshire, STS 0QW
SLS Trust C/0 Shulmans LLP, 10 Wellington Place, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Corporation Limited Leeds, England, L.S1 4AP
OTB Eveling LLP* The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant N/A 100%**** 100%
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Proportion  Proportion of

Place of business and of ownership  voting power
Name registered office address Principal activity Class of shares interest % held %
Mundays LLP* The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant N/A 100%**** 100%
Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Mundays Trustee The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant N/A 100% 100%
Services Limited* Staffordshlre, ST5 0QW
Munday Company The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant N/A 100% 100%
Secretaries Limited* Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Knights Wealth The Brampton, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Management Limited Staffordshire, ST5 0QW

* Held directly by Knights Professlonal Services Limited.

** The acquired entities we'e active during the financial year, but are dormant as at 30 April 2021.

*** Legal title held on behalf of nominees.

“***Indirect ownership through each of the direct parent companles, belng Knights Professlonal Services Urnited and K&S Directors Limited.

44. Amounts receivables from subsididries

30 April 2021 30 April 2020
£1000 £'000

Amounts recelvable ‘rom subsidiaries 73,210 69,118

Amounts receivable from subsldlaries are repayable on demand. Interest Is charged at a rate of 3.5% per annum and is payable annually
on 30 April each year. Unpald interest on 30 Aprll each year Is added to the principal of the loan.

The balances are considered recoverable from the future cash flows of profitable trading subsldiaries. They are classified as non-current
assets because they are not expected to be realised within 12 months of the reparting perlod.

The Cornpany measures the loss allowance for Intra-Group recelvables at lifstime expacted credit losses (ECL’). The ECL is estimated

using a probabllity-welghted analysis of all possible outcomes with reference to the debtors’ financlal position and forecasts of future economic
conditions, The resultant estimated ECL. is not considered material to the financfal statements, therefore the Company has recognised a loss
allowance of £nil (2020: £nil) against amounts receivable from subsidiaries.

45. Share capital and share premium account

The movements on these items are disclosed in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

46. Reserves

The Share-Based Payment Reserve is a non-distributable reserve representing the total credits to equity in respect of equity-settled
share-based payment charges recognised as capital contributions within investments.

The Other Reserve atose as a result of applying the requirements of 1AS 27:18 to the share-for-share exchange acquisition of Knights 1759
Limited because the total equity of Knights 1759 Limited was less than the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company as consideration.

Retained Earnings represents cumulative profits and losses of the Company net of distributions to members,
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